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Quality
Policy

Our quality policy stems from our vision
and is to maintain industry leadership and
customer satisfaction through production of
high quality sugar, yarn and allied products
at lowest cost, using environment friendly
technology and safe working conditions.
We run our business with integrity and
professionalism and believe in continual
improvement and a fair deal for our
investors, customers, suppliers and

employees.



n. Mission & Values

To gain and maintain leadership in the industries it
competes in by producing the best quality products
with lowest possible cost.

To give the best returns to shareholders by optimal
allocation of resources to the products and markets
the company competes in.

To provide the best value products and services
to its customers through investment in technology.
human resources, operational systems and processes.

To provide the best working environment to its
employees and provide opportunities to them
for enhancing their skills.

To work with its farmers, suppliers and distributors as
partners developing their expertise and profitability.

To pursue environment friendly policies and effectively
and efficiently use all energy resources aiming for zero
waste and a clean healthy environment in its vicimty.

To be a socially responsible corporate citizen supporting
education, health, environment and socio economic
development of the society.
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In most households around

the world, biscuits are a
popular snack. In fact, families
sit together in the morning
dipping biscuits into their cups
of tea and contemplating on
the day ahead.

<

Shakarganj Mills Limited

Sharcholders’ Information

Stock Exchange Listing

Shakarganj Mills Limited is a listed company and its
shares are traded on all the three stock exchanges of
Pakistan. Daily quotes on the company *s stock can be
obtained from leading newspapers. Shakarganj is listed
under “Sugar and Allied”

Public Information

Financial analyss, Stock brokers, imterested investors
andd fimancial media desiring information about
“Shakargan)™ should contact Tang Aleem at
Company 's registered Odfice, Lahore.

Tel: +92-42-5T83R30 & 33 +92-42-5T83R27-29
Email: tarigaleem@ shakarganj com_pk

Sharcholders” Information

[l'bqlli.l.'ii."\ﬂ |_'|.‘:-|'||_'|:|1|.ing lost stock cerificates, dividend
payment, change of address, venfication of transfier
deeds and share ransfers should be directed 1o
Sharcholder Services Department at the Registered
Office at Lahore.

Tel: +92-42-5TRIRI0 & 33 +92-42-5T83817-19
Fax: +92-42- 5875916 ’
E-mail: tarigaleem @ shakarganj com_pk

Products

B Ethanol

B Particle Board
B Sugar

B Yam

Legal Advisor
Hassan & Huassan Advocates, Lahore

Auditors
AL F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountanis

Bankers

B ARM Amro Bank

B Allied Bank Limited

B Askan Commercial Bank Limited
B Hank Alfalah Limited

B Crescent Commercial Bank Limited
B Faysal Bank Limited

B Meezan Bank Limited



Shareholders’ Information

m MCOCB Bank Limied

B Nanonal Bank of Pakistan Limited

B The Bank of Pungab

B Umited Bank Limited

® Standard Charterd Bank { Pakistan) Limited

Works

Prancipal Facility

Management House, Toba Foad Jhang, Pakistan
Tel:+02.47-7629337-41 '

Tlx: 4347 1CIP PR Fox: +92-47- 7620272
E-mail ssLgarss shakarganj.com.pk

Satellite Facility

63 K.M. JThang Sargodhi Road, Bhone
Fel: +92-47-7223016, 223075

Fax; +92-47-7223017

Website
www. shakargan).com.pk

The word halva is originally Registered Office

Crescent Standard Tower,

d‘ﬂﬂ“ﬂ‘d fl'ﬂﬂ'l th-E‘ Arabtc mﬂt 1-B Block E 2. Gulberg I, Lahore, Pakistan

Tel: +92-42-5TH3IE2T-20

hulw (sweet) and is used to Fax: +92-42-5875916
Principal Office

*mﬁhﬂ many diﬁﬁl’lﬂt types' 1l Floor, Crescent Standard Tower.
. o 1(-B Block E 2, Gulberg I Lahore, Pakistan
of sweet confection, across Tel: +02-47-57R3801]. 2

Fax: +92-42-5870357

the Middle East, Central )
Karacht Office
Mm, Pakistan and' India. Sideo Avenue Centie, 264 R_AL Lines, Karachi.

Tel: +92-21-5688 149

Faisalabad Office
Mishatabad, New Lahore Road. Fmsalabad
Tel: +92.41-8753037

Annual General Meeting

The 39th Annual General Meeting of
shakargany Mialls Limnted will be held

on Thursday, March 259, 2007 ar 10130 a.m
at OQasr-c-MNoor, 9 E 2 Main Boulevard,
Giulberg 111, Lahore,
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| Highlights
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Financial Highlights
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Financial Highlights
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Value Addition
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“There is never any compromise (
being anything less than an exempla
corporate citizen



rganj Sugar Research Institute

functions of Shakargan] Suga
h Institute (SSET)
breeding to evolve high yielding, carly
disease resistant, biotic and abiotic
tolerant virieties.
the agronomic problem of
production.
h and devebopment on utilization of biomass
‘sugar industry. Efffuents and its use for
¢ agniculture,
dy sails in sugarcane producing arcas and
¢ these 1o crop management,
e tissue culture propagation for rapid
n af elite clones,
v and monitor the pests and diseases of
and to develop appropriate control

5 conduct rescarch on germination of sugarcane
selts, suomse production, translocation, siorage
ad environmental influcnces on these processes.

I To advice on the use of fertilizers and other
“agricultural chemicals, irmigation and drainage,
diseases and pests control, the use of machines

and equipments land and water management, and
other aspects of crop planting, production and
MHANagement.
@ To publish and disseminae information on all
aspeels of sugarcane production.
To conduct educational colrses in virious aspects
of sugarcane growing for cane development staff

L}

and growers.

11 To collaborate and exchange mformation and
material with Research Organizations in Pakistan
and abrosd.

12 To improve technology of sugarcane production
inside the sugar factories by iMproving process

andd milling efficiency.

The primary objective of Shakarganj Sugar Research
Institute (SSR1) is 1o contribute to profitability of SML
through developing improved sugarcanc varieties. This
report summarizes research and development BCLivities
being conducted at SSRI with emphasis on meain goals
that were achieved during the year 20K15- 2046, S5R1
has made expanding and intensifying development,
relessing new high yielding, early matuning and

2y
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hakarga

j Sugar Research Institute

disease resistant varieties for profitable cultivation of
- sugarcanc crop. The institute is also involved in
dissemination of production technology with leamwork
QHM departments of SML. The major achievements
ol SSRI in multifarious areas of R & D during the vear
e report are bricfly described below:

VAL Current Projects

i Sugarcane varicty development
2 Biological control of borers and pyrilla
3 Tissue culture propagation of clite clones
Studies on discase wlerance

Agronomic irials

Soil and water advisory service

Organic sugar project

Botanic ganden
: Research publications & Iraining courses
3 _. ' Publication of Pakistan Sugar Jowrmal

- B. New Projects

Establishment of Nematology Luh
EILISA Test for screening of sugarcans mosaic virs

M Sugarcane variety development

J‘h objective of this project is to develop cane varieties
iﬂ!hlumgwm:nl than the (‘li.xlllns commercial
vatieties. Kesearch work on :l-L"'-'\L‘|1.'||'l|'|5t.-.|11 of new cane
Vanetics continued at the same level of pricrity.

-, nll"iﬂflﬂﬂl'l of NSG-Series cane varieties- A hig
wchievement
“Three clones of NSG-Series NSG-06, NSG-311
and NSG-555 have been registered at Federal Seed
Certification Department (FSCD) Gove. of

Pakistan. Hopefully, these would be approved for

commercial cultivation dering the year 2007

Promising clones gt final stage

Two clones of CS556G- Seres and one of HoSG-
Series are ot final stage. Biometric traits are given
in table-Tand cane yield with sugar recovery %
cane are elaborated in fig. 1. CS8G-668, CS5G-676
and HoSG-259 are high vielding, early maturing,
good ratooner, non-lodging and resistant (o

ML Pesis.

%

Shakarganj Mills Limied




" =

™ < ; ~ g d -
HBarc I NeE d L 4 =Y .

& - )
FErs 1l BY

T e, contribute to organizational growt

pverall company growih

vor 1000 protessionals lik




Biometric traits of final clones (pooled mean 2003-06)

Ratoon-ability Hsense
il reaction
M B §
Resistant
Resistant
Early : Resistant

Early | ; Resistant

(Ra

Fig.1 Blomotric trists of final stage clones Clones advanced during the year under report

Pocied maans 2003-06] were 103 from S2003HoSG Senes out of 29
oz advanced lines of previous year. These clone were
I:f E planted on 2 acres. Selection was done on the
R E basis of plant height, cane girth, ullering, Millable
wa ¥ canes, cane Yield, sugar recovery % cane and
- 52 P - T 3 11 - r ey T
i Tp— S sjm.u.\d. |';..-|¢.1.um Promising clones advanced from
- el 2001-06 i given in Fig.3
nal irials Fig-3 Year wise selection of advance clones
elanes selacted for semi-final trials were _—
SAN00F HoSG, CPSG, and CSSG-Series s -
final clones were selected on the basis of 1000 e
capacity, fillering potential, cane yield, st & H"--q.\‘
= ' " L -
Iy maturity trend and discase reaction. These i - .
‘clones will be further evaluated for ratoonability, 200 -
) #thlnd beotic stresses.  Status of semi-final TR e o S i ek
Sseleetions from 2001-06 is given in Fig,2
Flg2 Yaor wise selection of somifingl clones vy E
3“‘ Progeny clones selected were 813 from 50852
m[ " ocnginal seedlings of 2004 CPSG and CSS0-
gi F "*-. Series. Plantation was completed during autsmn
"y F 1 2006, Selection of progenies was done on the
"': \-\- basiz growth, lodging, sprouting, pithiness, cane
] el ginth, periodic brix % cane and disease reaction
8 ‘_“r 00z 003 2008 = 0% These progenics were planted at 5 acres. Year wise

2
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Fresently working as the Plant Manager &l AsitH
one ol he Shakargan] plants, Asit Hayal
places greal importancs en exiensive and
cantinuous learming. That is ong of the

OO e mwas il ol newand — INNOVaLive ideas are always welcom

innovative ideas

el

M Shakargan], such employess are nol only
welcomed bul encouraged fo present any
ideas to add 1o the Company's dynamism
enthissiasm and enterprise



ugar Research Institute

w clones from 2001 -0 are

seedlings raised from 2001-06 is

Biological control

Riodogial cosmlrmd of bercr ooy
Trichogramma,_ an egy parasiic of borer complex
hirs shorwn its efficacy being meleswd regulardy in
cane ficlds since 1996, A wotal of 311638 ticho-
cards were produced during 2006 covering THYS1
ucres of sugarcane in various circles of SML. The
parasitized Trichogramma cards were provided at
a highly subsidized price of Rs.4/- per card o canc
growers of SML. Detail of acrcage covered by
years (2002-06) 1 given in fig 6.

Flg.6 Acreage coverad by releass of tricho-cands

. Bislogical Contrel of Pyrilla

lacewing (Chrysoperia carnea) dunng 2003 was
o control wietaton of pynlla perposalia m cane
fields of SML_ Abowt 1362 sheets have shown an
effective predation on cggs and nymphs of Pyrilla.
In addition, Chrysoperla is equally efficient for
borers of sugarcane, rice, maize and cotton. This
facility will be expended up to 200 sheets annually
from next fiscal year Year-wise productson of
Chrysoperia sheets is given in fig 7



=i belongs to Kot Essa Shah and
jelds in Shah Jewna. His ass

with Shakargan; is as old as the Gomgany itsell.

When Shakargan] started its factory in Bhone,

the Company and several commitied locals fike
Qal-e-Hussain s& |

the area. With a firm belief to contribute positively
to the communities whese it operales, the Company
sel up sehools and mobile dispensaries while Lhe
farmers and factory workers worked hard at giv
{heir vary best. The result was phenomenal SUCCESS
on both the business and social Ironts

5.0, Oath-e-Hurssan B

“Shakarganj brought a deser
place to ife
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hikarganj Sugar Research Institute

Fig.7 Year-wise Production of Chrysoperia Sheets

repor. Mew clone included in the

me comprised S99Ho0SG-529. The stuff
plantlets was shified in the ficld on an
3.3 acres during autumn 2006. Production
8 i tisstie culture lab from 2002-06 is

i in Fig 8. Studies on direct regeneration

| b initiated for production of more number
tlets at low cost.

Figl Year Wise Production of
Planthets Tissue culture Lab

Studies on disease wolerance

Nursery of different selection stages of promising
clomes wis grown to screen against ned rot, rust,
pokba boeng and smut (table-2). Inoculation of
pathogenicity tests was conducted from Dec. 05

o Scp, (6, Resistunce against major discases was
recorded. It is encouraging 10 know that 964
clones have shown combine resistiance out of 3410,

selection

Smet | Comb-
| [inea

!

"'.:':lllll'llll'._ irizls

Objective of this programme is to provide
technical guidance on production technology,
biometric trails of vareties, integraied pest
management, judicious use of fertiliser and
irrigation water. This has helped enhanced yvield
and guality of cane crop of SML cane growers.
The agronomic trials conducted on promising
clones *.'l"'l'l]:ln:ﬂ.‘d seed rate, pow Spacing, femilizer
application, irrigation coefficients, weed control
and post harvest losses,

“
Shakarganj Mills Limited
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Malik Imtiaz is a forward looking and
hardworking tarmer who believes in using
agricultural best practices o increase yield
and improve crop quality

From the time the seeds are sowed 10

ke time the crop is cut, Shakarganj Sugar
Research Institute shares its diSCOVENes
with Imtiaz Ahmed and many olher
progressive farmers on a reguiar Dasis

10 ensure collective growth

“I've

balik Imiiaz AN
Fam

earnt a lot of new thin
about farmin



j Sugar Research Institute

and water advisory service

Iacility developed af the institute is uweful for

Soal amad water anmalywis

e done free of cost. The serace s

for the cane prowers 1o kiow amd

ol fentility of soils and fitncas <tatus of waler

15 wxe of fertilizer and irmgation waler

irees. Analysis of soil and water samples done
& —’:jn,mpﬂlihrifn Jqug the vear

SUgar project
stion for organic sugar was completed on
230, 2006 (rom Control Union

paal, Metherlands. Regisicred growers of
: e 31. fermeniers conalrictod were
of organic sugarcans were o0

daring the year under ropon

garden

was started on July 2004 with an aim
rve national flora as cultural and scientific
3 ﬁkhmﬂt‘mn garden of its kKmnd
imdetry. Abowt 360 specics were

! winch compriscd munly trecs followed
Berte, climbers, cactus and

perms. Status of flora a1 SML during
f is given in table-3,

Two rescarch papers of S5R1 were puabliohed
Sugar Cane Imcmational UK and two papers wens
FIE"-L'HH.'I.. in Imiemaiional conferences 1 Pakistan
Three scientists of the institute have attended
imternational Iriining Ccourses, sy ||'|p|.:l‘|iIJrrI\| andd
workshops on multifanous aspects of biotechnology
of sugarcane crop

Six issues of PSJ were published on bimonthily
basis with the patronage of SSR1. Thinty rescarch
papers were published during the year umder report
Saseme papcrs recerved from Banglsdesh were
inchaded in varows oises of the pournal Abosst 150
prnted copees of cach paue were distributed 10
vanous rescarch organizaltion, universilies, sugar
rulls m the country and abroad

SSRI hbrary having devi-decumal ¢lassafication
wiik established m 1990, It provides excellent
reading matenal 1o the members.  Latest stufl has
touched Ngure of 5552, This has covered books,
manuals, proceedings, research journals and audio-
\'Idr_':r :Il\’ !'.n.‘ll:i.ll.|lu'\ “-llLII.IJ "H.{,' iy ||I||Ihlu‘ o iiseEs
with on line ssses for issuance of availsble material
Summery of the material doring the year under
epor v given on tabslec-<

““
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Palvasha Khanumm joined Shakargan| after
*JL ating in Plant Breeding and Genglics
v has always believed in herself and dared
cation and start a career in
an area wher 1 are not generally
gncouraned to do either

A5 an equal opporunity employer, Shakargani
provides promising career apporiunibies 10
well-educated and well-trained males and

males whio are now inspiring several others
in tr-=.- communily 10 gain education and
contribute censtructively to Society

Palvasha b
st Manager, Tissue (ol
Shakargan| Sugar Research sl

“Women education and carg

development

can take the countt

forward




lable-4  Status of the at libra

Deseription Z0HN] =12 2115 2005-0d

Projects
ent of Nemutology Lab

priect has been approved for the

ment of o Mematology lab at SSEL Initially,
i and identification of beneficial and harmful
. e of sugarcane crop would be completed.
1y, Biopesticides of entomopathogenis

&8 wotld be developed for major infesting
BUGATCANE Cro.

Linked Immuns Sorbent As

ine Mosaic Viros (SCMV) is amongst major
wies of sugancane in Pakistan. ELISA (Enzyme -
s Immuno Sorbent Assay) would be emploved
f e screening of promising clanes 1o SCMV.
is woubd help improve efficiency of screening
181 the disease.

%
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15 ihe Director of the Jhang At (
He starled the Gallery with an exhibition of hang Art G

a lew paintings and calligraphic works from

e ocal peope “Zara numm ho toh yeh mi
B Badi zarkhez hai saag|

ry start, Shakargan] and

Jether towards projecting the




Our CGoverning Principles

“As a responsible corporate
citizen, we always aim to act

i'l il '-l'l._|:_|i|'\ I'-.'=|-‘L'II-':|'|1_'

manner at all umes

a is an exotic
ani milk-based drink
with rose syrup Purpose and i o]

gulahl Hnd na mEd $hil-|‘iiligliﬂj Mills Limited is a sugar and sugar co-
products, food  and textiles manufaciurng company
: strands of cornflour with annual sales of Rs.5.4 billion and over 2, 1060
employees.

lli that float in it.

Shakarganj is one of the largest sugar and co-products
manufacturcr in Pakistan with a wide range of products.
With an increasingly strong emphasis on research and
technalogy, we are tuming natural products into white
crystalline sugar for general consumption, specialty
sugars for food and pharmaceutical industry, retail
package sugars, alternale energy resources, building
materials and inputs for value-added textiles,

Our emphasis is to concentrate our energies and expertise
on segments of the market where we can establish a

r
A
Shakarganj Mills Limited
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“Shakarganj treats its employees i
family members

N mast

&n able 1

1
vaas, suppliers and farmers




from which chocolate
, is said to have
d in the Amazon

4,000 years ago.

Our Governing Principles

leading position. As o company we are always searching
Tor bener, more efficient and more profitable ways 1o
manulaciure owr products and ways to employ o

technology amd kiowledge base in other related sectors

As a responsible corporate citizen, we always aim o

ACT 1T 3 RO

iy responsible manner at all times, In a
decentralized organizalion struciune our basiness

divisions devise procedures appropriate 1o and compliant

with the local laws, culture andd operaiing conditions
which are always within the following mi

ANNLEREN

governing principles

Employees

Our employees are our most crucial resource and

therefore we abide by the !I'|~It|'-'\.-\.'|:i3_._' pringiples;

*  Equal Cpponunitics - We are committed o
offering equal opportunities to all people in theis
recruttment, irmng amd carcer development, having
regand for thedr particular aplitudes and abilities
Full and fair consideration is given o applicants

with dizabilitics and every effon s made (o provide

an opponunity for retraining any person becoming

disubled whilst emploved by Shakargan)

%
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Proud owner of a 1300 ¢
still remembers the time v
his Shakargan) office on ; Prospering al

every step and moving a y on merit, Zahid
soon became an integral member of the Shakargani
team and has been so for the 1ast twenty years now

car, Zahid Mehmood

Shakarganj has a dynamic team of over 1000
emplovees, most of whom have started their
carears with the Company and grown from
strength to strength as the Company moved
from one milesione to the nexl

with its peop



Our Governing Principles |

we comsider he

|
b salery !
o be as impartant as any other function of the |
commpany and its business objectives, Tog ter

management of cach business division s dirccily
responsitle  Tor healih and safety in our locations

of operations, We seek to provide o sale and heal

workplace and system of work in line with all local

laws and repulations, W pratect all our emplovees,

visitors ard the public where they come it

the first recorded

contact with foreseeable work hazards, Owr

cimployees are reguired o adop a proactive attitude
" ]n ? ?'E B_c_ owards this end, A Heuth and Safety committee
continues 1o develop awareness of work hazards

and safety wmongst all employees. The committee

|
\
|
also mansges and measures  health and safery i
performance on & continuous basis 1
®  Mormssment and discrimingtion - we will neot |
tolerate mental, physical or sexual harassment in
the workplace. We will not allow any form of
disermination on basis of sex, rmee, creed langunge,
rehigion or colour. We expect our cmployees o
report any incident of harassment or discnmimaion
to the appropriate human resouree department
which shall conduct an mdependent inguiry imto all
such repors and take action o light of the results

of the mduiry

%
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Mohammad Siddigue joined Shakarganj in 1991
afler serving a large power pland in Sawdi Arabia
yEArS. When he decided to come back to his
nomeland and settle down permanently in Pakistan,
1 npany that matched his

for ten

e was looking for a
ideals of professionalism and excellence

Shakargan] has always believed in equipping
I5 people and plants with the most modern
hnologies and procedures. That is why
he Company does not only produce quality
1% bul also quahty prolessionals who
atever they do

Mohammiad Siddige§
bk -

W

Shakargan) Mily ._
"I wanted to join a world-cla
company



Our Governing Principles

L pnghits — managers ane reguired to take
account of the core Tnternational Labour
Ohrganization conventions and to strive to ohserve
the United Nations Declaration on Human Bights,
by respecting the rights of our employees. They

e reguired wo observe the following in particular;

Universal respect for an observance of humain
rights and fundamental freedoms for all without |
L] any discrimination,

-

i ¥
b,
S

method of making : ~.
d other ingredients . : — / ’
on of bread dough.

We remunerate airdy with respect o akills,

performance, our peers and local conditions

We briefl our employees and their representatives

omn all relevant matters on regulir bisis,

Ethical Business Practices

&  Compelifion - we are committed (o free and Cair
competition and will compete strongly but

honestly complying with all relevant laws,

& Hrbery - Shakarganj will ot condone the offering
or receiving of bribes or other such facilitaung

payments or gifts o any porson of cnlily for the

%
Shokarganj Mills Limited
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Our Governing Principles

purpose of obtiming or retaining business for
Shakarganj or inlluencing political decisions.

®  Politcal donations — Anancial donations ane not
permitted (o any political party or for funhenng
any political cause,

L Confdentialty amd accuracy of il
the confidentality of information received in the
course of busimess will be respected and never be

occasion is
without Laddoo.

used for personal gain. False information will not

be given in the course of any commercial
negoliation or trnsaction,

®  Conllict of inftepcs any personal imterest, which
may prejudice or which may reasonably be deemed
tos be prejudice, by others, the impartiality of
employees must b fl.ll'm:lu}' declared 10 semior
management. This includes, but is not limited to,
owning shares in business partners, trading in
company shares and personal or family involvement
in coommercial transactions with the company.

®  Busaness gifts and hospitality — gifts other than
items of very small intrinsic value ane not sccepied,
Employees who receive hospitality must not allow
themselves to reach & position where they may be
deemed to have been influenced in making a business

%

Shakarganj Mills Limited
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e CF SR

his Intermedaale. He (hes

and returmed after d

working as fhe Inventary Man

ior managing :

ch BOD0D Social Accountability slandards

nent quality policies

Together,
& that product quality meets

wal standards

Shafeeq and the

AR—
L acli

“Shakarganj is not just a comp
1t is also a learning institu




Our Governing Principles

deciston as i consequence. Giving and reociving of
reasonable Business products, marketing materials
and entertainment are permiitied

&  Foodd sadety st Shakurgan) recognizes
that queality and safery of our products used in
fiood as o primary product or an ingredient, is
essential for our customers, High priosity. is
placed on all aspecis of food salety, Fowod safety

systemis are regulurly reviewed o ensure their

effectiveness. FEeonomic constderations  are never
it hefore food safiety.

Board of Directors

The business and mamagement of the company are the
responsibility of the whole bosurd. There 15 a formal
schedule of maters reserved for board dectsion. These
include spproval of annunl and interim resulis, the
company’s strategic plans, annual budget larger capital
expenditure and investment propasals and overall
system of internal control and fsk management

The directors have a legal responsibality o prepare
financial statements for each financial year which give

“

Shakarganj Mills Limited



Khalid Shabbir did his Masters in Chemistry
from the Ui if Agriculture, | 1ad
He then joined a © as an instructor, Bul,

he was more inclined lowards research than he
was towards teaching, His inguisitive mind and
analytical skills brought him to Shakargan|

as one of the Traines CF sls,

Khalid and many other re

busy in working together to win (50 17025
Labaratory Standardization and Cerification for
the Company. It is expected that this will be yet
another achisvement for Shakargan|

searchers are currently

Mahammad Khalid S
Shakangan] NSy

‘| sincerely recommend Shakarga

any individual who wants to gi




a true and Foer view  of the state of affairs of the company
am ol = Pl anad loss tor that ||l.'I||.-|.| In Jrepagiaiicmn
ol these stutemienrs the dircoiors are reguined 1o

®  Select suitable accounting polickes ancd then apply

them consistenily

®  Moke extimintes and judgments thin ore reasonsible

andd pa uclenid

and flavorsome, Amratis
® a popular treat because

somewhat chewy
-.mm" a Gﬁ'ﬁla”iﬂed State whether applicable sceounting standiards have
y cmnch_‘ been Tollowed, subije

el o amd eapl

Lo any material depariures

- inthe Dinameeal stidements

®  Prepare the financial statements on the godng
concem baxis unless i ix IEPPOprEle. Iy Presame

that the company will contimge it basiness

Ihe directors dne respoansible g ensure thid [Pt
wecounting records are kept which disclose with

sanmble socurmey the finoncial position of the
corinpaany. They hive the peneral responsibility for

takinge Ao 10 sdleguard the asseis of 1l CUIPEny

Chher specific responsibilitios. are delepared 1o

haaird comitess which operibe within clearly

o

Shikoreany Nalks Limited




ifment

“Shakarganj has given
4-dimensional growth - pers
financial, social and educatiof




Our Governing Principles

defined terms of reference and report regularly 1o
the board.

Within the overall guiding principles set out above
the key objectives of the board are;

perfect

st generally includes s  The agreement of strategy
- “ke cﬂ‘fﬂﬂ’ﬁ or ®  The agreement of detailed set of objectives and
policies that facilitate the achievemeni of strategy

. “ iE“jF which ® Monitoring the performance of executive

: m combination management in delivery of objectives and strategy
: ®  Monitoring and safeguarding the financial position
ydrates and of the Company to ensure that objectives and

to start the day strategy can be delivercd

I ®  Approval of all capital expenditure, other

expenditure which is not pari of the defined
objectives or strategic plan.

®  Approving corporate iransactions — this includes
any potential acquisition or disposal,

®  Delegating clear levels of authority 1o the executive
management team, This is represented by the defined
system of internal controls which is reviewed by
the audit committee,

~
v
Shakarganj Mills Limived



Mumiaz Begum had a tough life when she
was young. Her ques! for education is the
force that kept her going. She took a train
to her school every morning and return by

iy ek o g g “| wish to make education acces

She joined Shakarganj School at Jhang tl
as its School Incharge. Her personal wish

combined with Shakargan's commilment to

the educational sector is bringing changes

in the lives of several hundred students

Shakargan] Adopled 56
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Providing approprnale frumsewo

Company and cosurng all of ihese

evaluatedd

i "rr|'|'| e JHwWernance

ol vapport and

by the

e properls

Relatiomiship with emphoyees. costomes

Iradding o cortpany shan

Enviropnmental responsibiblities
F



Mr. Misar belongs 1o a reputable business
family which is well-respected in the area
He f i associated with Shakargani
since the last twenly vears now

Ik

"Working with a prestigious comf
aads to one’s own pres

respective divisions




Shakargan) s committed to operate with the primary
responsibility of increasing sharcholder value. However
the principal responsibility to all stakeholders is never

underraned

ny places signific

imporance on communications with shorcholders, We

of northern India,
dry sweet, made
seeds or 'til' as

- - i E |
in H]ﬂdl- It 5 will communicate our achicvements and prospects to
our shareholders ina timely manner. Apan from the

in sugar syrup

annual general meenng the company communicates

n thin layers, that with its sh

acoounts, the half vearly and quanerly financial statem

fﬂr mﬂnths_ and at hakarg ( k. the T PEL Y & wiehsine,

ﬁ:i_l\_:lllﬁr.'llll mntiers ll.'n;lu.i.l:ln:.: sharcholders” approy al are

olders by way of the annual report and

Chils

Imm;'_hl o extriordinary g'_um'ml meclngs ol shaebodobers
The caompany scoretarial bis a l;ll."\l}_'jll.ilh.'ﬂ oleer o

el wath all quernes of shareholders

we seek to be honest and foir in our
relationships with our customers. We always endeavor
o proy 1de the standards of [:lru-elm.'h and services that
hinve been .u;n.'m.l whitlst ot the ssme hme url'rnl:lg wialise

fior money, Al all times wie ke all reasonnble steps 1o

Shakarganj Mills Limited




1t the many dociors an the

Shakarganj panel of Mobile Dispensaries

Al the moment .‘-E:*.:kar-::;:'---s ..-. d diSEaSE“fFEB EU




e your espresso

you should
lated sugar, which
8s more quickly, rather
cubes; white sugar
brown sugar or
real sugar rather
rs which alter
e of the coffee.

Our Governing Principles

ensure the h.11'l:lf-' andl 1.|||.||t::.-' of poods and services that

we produce.

we will carry out our business honestly,
cthically and with respect for the nighis and interests of
our supphiers. We will settle our hills promptly as they
fall due, We will co-operate with our suppliers (o improve
I.|II.I|H:L and -:!'r':c't-:nu_'. We seck 1o deviels ¥p I'|:'|illhll'|\|1|p

with :~'I1rlr|h:.'l"‘~ consistent with these basic [JFIII.L':I11|I_"\.

espectally wath respect to humon rghts and conditions

af l.'||||l|n:| inenl.

The wider community- we recognize our responsibilities
as a member of the communitics in which we operite
We strongly belicve in contributing o the well heing
ol wider Shakarganj community. We emphasize our
ellonts in community service on education, adult Bueracy,
healthcare, environmental izsues and protection of local

culture and herage

Ihese business principles apply v all our emplovees
and are the minimum standard for their behavior

The e peeratimg business divizions miny have additronal
standards. Failure to comply with our principles msy

lead 1o disciplinary action. Shakargan) encourages open

7
Shakargany Malls Limited
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s

im was 3 local Jhang
ined Shakargan] right after
d. He did &n apprenticasnip

course al Shakargan] for three years

| “This company does not only
1I-I|| III-FI:_Ill.IIE:':t:IIT that Ca rE’;E rs ¥ ” b I_J | |dS |I

l s why Shakargan] today has-one of ihe
most dynamic team of individuals




Our Governing Principles

culture in all its dealings between employees and people
with whoam it coanes in contact with. We belicve
effective communication is cssential for dealing with
any malpractice and w rongdoinmg. We will make all
cifors 1o protect the confidentiality of any person

including owr emplovees, raising any concern

and colourful
ola gunda is the
ion of icicles. “We strongly believe
summer

in contributing to the
s Pakistan.

well-being of the wider

Shakarganj community.”

2
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ad wilh the

Karoan] i

5 and downs in business

a5 sugar mills e nahonalisad and privatized
rding to prevailing policies. But, Haj

0e nor faith

abie
logether the
buting

SUgar indusiny

[0 the overall growin of the

“One must always have
in himg



I ]‘i'll,_'l,_'1l1'{ . Hi'['ﬁ I

Dear Shukarganj Shareholder:

The directors of the Company have pleasure in
submitting their repont together with the audited
accounts of the Company for the yvear ended
Septembrer 30, 2006;

The fimancial results of the company are summiriaed
b v

i 2005

(Rupees in Thousand)
thossy Profil before Tax 705 50 179697
Tz ation WY 27684
Profitl for the yeaur W 4 _AJ{!T,]:H[_
Bonus Shares 15%
Earnings per share {Rupeesy | 4.32
slitement on CUorporate and Ginancial

reporime ramework

Lo Thess financial stalements, preparcd by the
minagermcnt of the company, present fairly its
state of affairs, the result of itx aperations, cash
Mows and changes in cquity.

ot

Proper boaks of sccounts of the company have
Bean maintained.

i Appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements except for the changes as stated in
Note 5.7, Accounting estimates are based on
rensonable and prodent judgment,

4. Interational Accounting Standards, os applicable
in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of

%
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Ar5 and has baan heading it for

ars now, She believes in quality
1 for the teac 0 that they can
he same to their students

Together, Shakarganj and the Teacher
Training & Res Center have trained
over 890 1 grs and continue 1o train
more and more individuals with zeal and
commitmen

“There is always roof
improvem




Director’s Report

financial statements and any depariure there from
haxs haen :||.h:|.;|.|.::l|.:]:.' disclosed

3, The system of inter comtre] and other such
FII'IH..'L'IJIJII_'\. wiich are in p|.'|.1.' e, ang Iwinp_
continuously reviewed by the internal audin
function. The process of review will continue

amnd any weakness in controls will be removed
6. There are no 'ﬂiglll!-ln_'.'l.n'l donihis [ thl the
Company's ability [0 continue as 4 going concern.
. There has been no matenal deparure from the

4 0 | practices ol corporale governonee, s clietailed

in the listing regulations,

£, Dewmils of significant improvements in the

'(:HI'I'II!IH!!_‘\-"E\ u|'u'.'r.'|.|!'||.:||h duri L} the current Waimr arc

stated in the Chief Execunve's Review,

9. Key opersting and financial data for the last seven
isa popular years in summarnized form is annexed on Page 09

dish 10
of fried dough balls .

p flavoured

Information about taxes and levies is given in the

notes o the finuncial stalements

Total number of employees ot the end of the year
was 2, 147 (2005 1,470,

12, Following is the value of investments based on

om seeds and audited accounts for the year ended 30 September ‘
2004
Provident fund Bz 7134 M
Ciratuity fund Rs 2211 M
Pension fund Rs. 82.36 M
SUTH LR

The auditors Mis A, F. Ferguson & Co,, Charered
Accoumanis, will retire and are uligih|u lor re
appointment as auditors of the company for the next
yvear, The Audit Committee of the board has

%
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“We have worked day and nig|
make a differe



> Smiith
first to
lollipop.
idea of

es on a
easier to
to name the
rite racing
, and later
2 name.

Director’s Report

recommended the re-appointment of Mis AL F
Ferguson & Coo, Chanered Accountants for the year
ending Septombser 30, 20607

Meennes ol the Board ol Directors

During the year 5 Board Meestings were held and deil
of attendonce by cach Drrector is as follows:

Mame of Director Mo, af Meelings
Held  Atended
M. Muchor Fanm 5 1
Mr Ahsan M. Saleem (CEO) 5 5
(e cipvtiadd s Dibrecior on 2801 -2H )
M. Anjum M. Saloem F Z
(Resigned on 28-01-20006)
M. Gul Nawuz 5 5
Mr. Khalid Bushir 5 B
M Muhommad Amwar 5 3
Mr. Mubammuod Arshad 5 2
M Mubimmmad Asil -] 4

Pattern ol Shareholding

The pattern of shareholding as per Section 236 'of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 &5 attached separately on
page 194,

Mo gade in the shares of the CORMpUInY wias corried ol
by CEQ, CFO, Company Sccrctary, their spouses and
minor children except those that have been duly
reported as per the law.

Lirectors

Druring the vear Me Anjum M. Saleem resighed from
the position of Director of the company and in order 10
fill up the casual vacancy occwmed thereodf the Board
of Dircctors co-opled Me Ahsan M, Saleem as

%
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Residential Block, Shakargan

Shakarganj believes in providing its gmployees with the best possible |



the texture
up and is fruit

Director’s Report

Direetor for the remainder of term of Mr, Anjum M.
Salecm with effect from 28-01-200K. The other
directors are the same. The present term of Directors
will cxpare on May 01, 2008

Financial Stitemenis

Thie fimaneial statemenis of the Company have been
duly audited and approved without gualification by the
auditors of the Company, M5, A, F Ferguson & Co.,
Chartened Accountants and their repon is atteched with

the financial stalements.

Mo material changes and commitments affecting the
Minancial between the end of the Mnancial year o
which this balance Sheet relates and the date of the
Directors Beport.

By Order of the Board

M

Ahsan M. Salecni .
Chiefl Executive

Lahore, February (03, 2007

“
Shakarganj Mills Limited
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aickicn “We aim to play a positive
* the communities in which we ope



utive's Review

¥ our performunce was well up ko the mark,

Shakorgan standards, fnancial resulis

;ﬁilppﬂihling The strong headwinds we
g

about in the last review, sssumed gale
¥ direetly affecting our profitabiliey

weather wiecked havoc on the sugarcane
ral Punjabs, resuilting in acute shortfal] of
drastic reduction 10 recoveries, This
ek further exacerbated by arbitrary

" prices 1o unreasonable levels by

% o o point where it became

proxduce cane sugar.

and msing price of sugar resulted in
H‘Gmﬂ'nul‘llt of Pakistan but
Ention wis inan ad-hoc manmner
A if market mechanism and

irol mensures,

|mairket saw Crralis mavemaent
pean Uinion sugar regime and
[ berop of Brazil which ix o major
market.

v ol Blone came into operilion
eiirlier 0 new sugar manufacturing
bwn 1o three vears to schicve
due o the time reguired for
chain of sugarcane, This
requbred for o new plant 1o

. mil}' and positive cconommic
Miscal increased substantially,
1o the satellite facility,

been in turmoll for most part of
ichange in textile business afies
a major effect on Pakistani textile
el the elMects of these global

nurket conditions and was unable to make a positive
contnbution towards our results this YT,

In year 20022003 0 long term stralegic vision for
Shakirganj was approved by the board and subseguently
its salicnt feaures have been presemed o the sharcholders
at our annual meetings, This well thought out policy

has been followed in our sirategic business decisions,

It would be pertinent to recap on the main points of
this long term business plan:

® Sugar business: Shakarganj plans (o be the Jargest

sugrar and co products manulacturing COAY

in Pakistan. This plan is based on realignmeni

of our existing manufaeturing site at Jhang,

establishing  large new facility a1 Bhone and a

stialler facility at a third location, This would

enable us Io leverage our extensive research

and development work done for sugarcane ‘
cultivation. The footprint of these three facilities

will extend to the core arca where we focused

our development efforis.

Shakargany Mills 1




Prime Mover for Sugarcane M
This equipment is used to operate cane crushing mills in a g



tive's Review

#s: Shakarganj plans (o netain the
of its texiile business, however
d be constantly wpgreded to
quality and consistency required

ey, Al fhe xamc time reasonable
will be made 10 pencrate higher

2 iea, reducing costs and 1o

] will expand and diversify
it hase b other agriculiune based
Initial focus of this diversification
milk processing, nectars

ed b 20022003 have now
project at Bhone lus
. The third f:u'.llh}- has
zinfrstructure work has started,
ot hets been identifbed and we
dhis project by year 2008, The
m'lm')' Shakargan] Food
I s running milk plani
Prcessing capacity of 75,000
litess per day which is planncd
i ' {ihiee hundred thowsand)
PE. Donmiched its Brand of milk
andd has been well received
aperating o small guice
citrus and a tropical line. During
s plint procuced around 900
fe majority of which wias

exported o Europe. From next year the tropical Tine for
miango will be in ope

atkon and ar the same time citrus
capacity will be enhanced and o carmol concentrte line
addded 1o thix platnt

The imvestrment portfolio of the company s under 1he
process of reconligurtion and realipmment and bn this

connection subzeguent o the Close of fiscal 2006 thyg

company hues disposed ofF its investment in Infernational

Howsing Finanee Limited. Negotiations with prospective
buyers are in advanced stape For disposal of investments
in PICIC and Crescont Leasing Corporation Limited
Moreover the company has reduced (s exposure in
Altemn Encrgy Limited 1o B, 213 million as Apninst
planned limit of Bs. 493 million, Liguidity gemermted
by sale af these investments will be uriliced 1o redoce
higher cost borrowings and investments in productive
astels of the company in ling with our Tong term vision
some cash resounces will be used towards overall
reconfiguration and streagthening of the investment
portiolio by adding quality siocks having lucrative

v and potential of higher capital gpains in

order o ensure handsomie returms 1o the shareholdors

of tho company

“Z
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Vacuum Filters used in Clarification P
Filters are used to separate suspended solids from the trealedy




s Review

review the stock market has been
Tenst. Rapidly changing giobal
effect on the share prices
Shikarpuni's large investment

illion agabnst 1hese stocks, We
any el s 30 million agains

o fimancial instituiion which

i b oblgations in full

fim the economy and resulting

g hiave i dampening effect on
generally. However, strong
: Iy for industrial growth
- in agriculre secior

et perfomm well, Supply

il for our core business. has
adesquate crop throughoui

s have been able 1o face this
htl't‘ |l.1|q:|: ferm s.u;:l[rl:.' chain
1 tremts bts-cane supplices
mrgany family nnd hos o
with the vist mmber of

% by-proclucts. We

i Clos: sigarcane and
_Fi:ducu for costomers in the
il fuel and power,
thle imdusires. Somie of o
;;!ouum:& often replace

Il =L 1 R

svithetie and petrochemical altermitives

Thix operating review provides o brosder perspective
af o bustpess o enable yoo fo make an informed
judpment about our performaonce and prospects: I

contuiny updnted sections included i our previsus

repats s well as o some new infonmmtion

Supgar business

Relined sugar g primarily produced from sugoarcane of

rawy stgar i Shakarganj. The produect range includes.

eryxialline white wugar of coarse and s,
phiarmacontical and bey crge gl'.'l.ll:' siiginrs mpl

b o I.I|.I::.. |1|1'||.!|,L|,'=\. like brown, caster and cing sugars
ne well as remil packispes, These prodicrs are wserdd fonp
provwidimg naiurnl swieretness, texiure and (lavour aerdss

a full range of fisds and drinks

The sugarcane crop for this crushing sedson wias again
less than the previons season mnd recovery wias also
less then previous yoar due o Jow quality of sugarcine,
We woere well aware of the potential problem of lesser
cane avmlubility for soge prodocton and had meagde

neceaary arangementio ke available the iimported

Shakiorgan) Mills Limmkretd
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Sugar Refining Centrifugal

White sugar centrifugals operate through electrics
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g in case of lesser supply of

b enerpy management and fuel
mutcd !hul! iuicl.||l.|lc' L'II.L'iI.[:"

g wviilahle 10 profitably refine this

i metric fons of sugarcane

W metnic lons last vear, Recovery
1oy B0 parcent kst vear,

) from cane in fscal 2006 wis
L4358 metric tons Inst
W..w metrc ons of row sugar
‘melric tons of refined sugar

g or refining process,
s animal feed, a ow
and iw also used inoa diverse

of alcohol, which can be
ol vinegar, in cosmetics and

- iedustrinl products such s
| ihﬁhe blended with gasoline
1 of Pakistun hos
with gasoling thus bringing
isiness in view of high
,ma.l'gnm provuces a
grdes for these usages

oy it plant capabalities
I e 1o very high demand

il infemationally, it
ped during Gscal 2006, The

number of distillenies operting in Pakistan has bean
increased and combined with higher inbemational
demand the meolissses price saw o sharp uwpwand trend

durmy the vear, The rolutive dguesliny ol Boagebn "in'

li5|d|.1\|_l-.|_'\ WHR .l;i“l PHALEET, '7"1' rFLIT' ||_'1-' SO Y ield in I|||.'

current year. The production was therefore lower ot 277

milbon Bres compared to 332 million Hires list vear

Admiost B0 percent af ctliano] produced s Slukargan)

e expoeriead, making o positive contribution fowarnds

eountre’s fore

1 -'1..'11.“:.;_':- CArTRIES Howgever
international ethamoe] market is Tacing stfl competition
due to excessive supply o lower prices by leading ethane|
I:ll"ildl.h Tt Couniry Brazil, In order v civpo up with this
situntion vour company has identifsed o bright potentiml
of uxing ethanal s altemate Tuel within the couniry in

nbdition o exprors

|:ill'||"I:'_' Muaterials |:||-

Bagpasse 5w naturi] by-product of suear manofEcwnng
Errislska o (e [ [ N L inkermal o
Thies covivsists of resadua] pulp and Dibroas muteal of
sugarcame aller extraction of juiee. This madertal is
primariby tsed @ g Teel source in fhe Fadiory Boilers [or

steam and power generation used inthe manafactunng

."\Iil.l.l\..lr;.:.llq Biatis Lamired

%
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Boiling House of Satellite

Clarification, evaporation and crystailization processes are installed in this
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innovative fucl conservation
soopomies of scale result in
bbaggasse. We process this
.'IIF-MH e high pressure

I 0 particle board sheers. These
ised as an'nliemative to wood in
ing industry,

AT cuble meters of particle bocrd
miters list year. The decrease
lesser quantity of cane crushed

nnal fuel vsed for r‘::!-lllinp of

Top. in Pakistan

e o number of flowers which

0 fibee which is sepumicd

| gimned 1o produce staple

processed in spinning mills

The yam is sold 1o

s 10 prochace fabric, Crescent
production was at js

of 6.5 million kilograms of

s evnpared (o cormesponding
Nl incrense in the same

ces due to which gross profi

affected, The operating costs

A major portion of this

eeonomies due o

Farming business

A good stgarcane crop is always critical 1o our cone
OPCralions as sugarcane is a penshable agriculiural
prowluce open 1 risks of adverse weather and climatic
conditions, shortage and availability of water and pest
attacks. We have a large family of SUBANCANe growers
who supply us our raw material. At the core of our

supply chain management is the belief that our EIORWers
should get optimal financial retumns for their untiring
effons to produce sugarcane. As an extension of this
principle, we are endeavoring to establish best farming
practices amnd provide the farmers with the latest

techinology, Our farming business is a testing ground
for developing this technology and broadening the
knowledge buse on best practices, We lead by example
and demonstrate to our fimily of farmers how a profitable
and environmentally balanced farm is run and managed,
W have further increased the area under eultivation in
our farming business to increase our footprint in the
arcas where our suppliers are located and to provide
synergy with our research and development activities

of Shakarganj Sugar Rescarch Institute.

“

g
Shakarganj Mills Limited
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Ethanol Distillation Co

~0lumns are used in ethanol many

Uﬂuhh:eﬂﬁc:Uanuun|Lnananunr‘
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I ,__.-'“' dl:\fcln[mwnr stecess, Char company wide talent ITHEME e ing Sy steimy

tdentifies, develops and sustains the Do of tahent 6o

environment (riendly and
Hag technology for sugurcance
mainstay of o Iy chi :
X o I-'.:.I-IFE ! :r-J gE development plans and opporiunies in place for our
Shakarganj funds advancesd AT aae,

ensure we have the right people in the right job an

the right time, We endeavor to have suitible career

technalogy thicmigh Sh.l.L.'l:z:.aui
L In b SER 5 2 unigue private

i Pakistan, We have successfully bred
By suparcane varictics which
ouir femers and improve sugiar
Al the sama time low cost,
friendly hiological pest
miade available by the instine,
il benefits are open and available
HECOsE s a national service.
s &t separaic detailed repor

Wie expedt lo see excepiional performinnces by mstisvating,

ik of the corporate community developing snd rewarding our leademship team o create

e mubstamtinlly towards the a gulture of continuous improvement. We are wisrking

of taxes and other haurd to infuse specific leadership skills mmo the business,
l _.lhi.'ij't-‘l.f YOLIT COTTEGEDN Y = adding an edge to the considerable Know -l that aoir

and focal txes was people olresdy hive. As-we build up our capicities, we
million. We spent Rx, T & ane also working hand 1o build eapability. One key area
il share of workers ol focus has been the purssit of monofscurning
.JQ:F milliom, Duning the las exceilence. We recopnize that bullding a w inning
h.iﬂmad: u consolidaed eulre, characterized by lesdership. M tering
12 billivn in chape of Federal, exvellence and accountability, and rew arding people

for success s a foundation stone of our business

developmont wnad ox pansion.

-
e Ly Iﬂp‘"“’-l’” Exiensive ln-house trendng snd developoment PIOEITeEs
bt Ihe: bikiness is 1o capture vl are ome of the ool used Gor developmend ol our winming
A R e Ever-grosyimg Hhrary and subseription o all
attrnct and rerain highly relevant professional and technical journals ensures

N it i 1. o0r that knwledge-hase s apdated regulaely

“

Shakurgan) Mills Limiceg J




Vapour Condensationd
his system enables the industry to boil sugar solutions at low ié§
which in turn avoids sugar crystals turning brown durig
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B eRiemmal oppotiuniiies al .

T it e
Lo cureer developmeot and mitendane
BBy and seminnrs il viirioas

Pakisian
e At Shakargang ke sceount of

and economic well being

term hasis, All emplisvecs st

etk plans

§ il“'ﬂ.

RIMIrOIEST af Shok
REmplary. corporate citieen. W
i the ighest social stiand

5 i
BUE Buasines. Wiz ain o ply s

e in which

W ||,"'.'|. il
it polecy 13 one ol the core

g our cthical bl

W, R
LTS THEA 114 18
B deliver our shored objective
lte, healthy and oducaned

g e and reso

.:Iﬂmu Incal peeds

FCE o

e delivers o variery of

PI'LIF.I’:II!HH'.«" Ihese services
AR, prosmdoteonn ol At el

herithpe

W Py ik PRI SEEPEO
.hmtlhlul contribution to Liahor
I P Sciemces and Mutional Tesile
oo tnitia

Echools thi ingludes LR R ERE]

e prwides

dode gratully aned provident fued

ob whean drinking wiler

« IR O suppledicr beaos,

vl Grmess i of inlrastructure and builelisg

wliitional Gaeilinies where reguired. Ower 273060

Miidents enter the pates of hese upraded schiosls into

envifsitificnl cviery dov. Shaka

alxiy provwicles support fo edlucation programmme of The
Lt

indatiom. To provide back bong SUpEPOt o

e cduwcation inithative o

purpose bl weaehers Irainimng
£ al Shakar
Sor far B9 tench

IS EEE 1% O i) predtises aso paobl i

SO TFVICY

5 hove steccessTally cumipalestisd

tranonge on this facificy

Shakarpony funided special incentives Tor sehool children

mlude recognition of hgh nohiovers in schiv) exmms

willy s« I|.-I.||~I|||~x aiicd awan

By SPOCTS COMpeiions g

sehval childeen and inter-school kandwriting

LRI

s lor sehool Children and teachors

The company hax o Tar esi

ahed 73 agdoke Hiermey

ST s vacknity, of which &6 are for females

resulty ave been very encourasing. | 617 [T ig

I~

lwve S0 Tiar been 1 rHi e

this provermimie ol of

whach 3524 are lemales, Shokargan) Healthcane fnitinive

delivers primary medical Guweilities at the

rsieps aof

i extended community. Three weams of gualificd

Shakargan| Milly Limiied




Juice Clarification ff
[he treated juice is stored in these clarifiers to allow precipl
SUSpends
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sl and mobile dispensaries
) pq.!'“'nl:. during the year, Lhagnostic
trentment and free medicines are

thilk progromime.

af pur “Sukh Char™” progrnmme
‘centers have been built in 145

; known as Kisen Markas, serve
i the socinl programme in cach
bmtire cemlers arc planned to B buill

g the “Sukli Char” programine
m alsn servies as a first contact
iEach Tully staffed markaz helps
_Ihdhwlng}' and facilitating

Ahe prox
#RAllS i o struciured training
of Ant and Calligraphy. A
the works of these amists and

@ locil talent in

Bige 18 also maintmined by

un l:ll:ﬂ'lpliu"_.' COnpOate CIllze,
meiial coneems ire

ﬂ.l'h.l!d:ﬁ.' conditions for our
and visitors. [n providing o
there 1= no higher priority
EOIRUAES M provement 1o

of Team Shakarganj have
o o oblain profess onal
i it aid, in collaboration

with Pakistan Red Crescent Society - Punjab, Preventive

wedures e

action and training and tmely fesponse |
tenl with potential accidents have resulied in minimizing

recordable injuries and accidents.

Environmental protection issucs ane alwayvs considercd

o i hiehies priorily thian profit concerns Shakargan)

produces all its products from renewable crops and raw

musterind= and does n

1 belicve in making profits ot the

cost of domage o our environment. We proactively fund

and support enviconmentl proiection acnvities oo
cosmmunities in parficular and on fational level gencrally

and ammmng for "Ferdy’ wasle arng

Yy CORSETVE

our key environment friendly policies. Using sugar by
procucts 1 oar |:-|-.l-.|||rl'.|'-.': hines subseantially reduces
wset of fossil fuels and waste disposal problems. Distillery

spenl-wish ix the ultimite waste prodiict o i |'.'H-L|-.|. (L4}

process, Thisis mow big cally treated o prosluce oo

15 05 fuel and water which is safe o0 use for imgation

In acbdition 1w this we encourage and promote biological
pest comirel, organie farmimg lechnigues and returm ol

ull matural nutrents w the soil that are Brought with

supply of s cane o the malls. We strongly suppon

the activines of Worldwide Fund for Natare, mun regular

»“_:p:';

Shakarganj Mills Limited



Vacuum System at Ethanol Dehydratiol
The vacuum system is used to dehydrate ethyl alcohol at low fem
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caticn PrOZIUNINGE s Fod Wwalcr inanagement
BR e planiation campaigng twice

lechnology inin

oy 16 considered s the backbone
1 o ] menngcmeni policies Denlings
mumber of supplicrs of raw materials

Juae 3 Tair manner with the hel

I We have 4 custom designed
chain mansgement which inlegraies
: AmbEms 10 ensure smiooth (how of raw
mely and fuir payment 10 suppliers

&8 and our offices in different
thioigh dedicated communication
o Nield offices locted in more

i1 kb custom designed for the

& Linux plutfiorm. This has now
mh‘d ERP salution. In order
h growing Shakargan) business

s deployed high-end scrver
supponied LAN and WAN
feature of the WAN connectiy 1y
ik ol approximately 64 K between
s which is considered the s
An the Central Punjab, for such a

in the infravirictune has
meeting its integration wned

ally fragmented
LWith the introduction of the
ﬂ e beching l|.|.l_|.'i|."\. S el
[ciosely netted Shakarganj

husiness Prscesscs have actually |1I|.:ltLt_'h| cultural

change in the company, during the year 2005-2006.

I our drive towards adopting best corporate practices
together wiih I*."l.'hrllrh':p_k' ||:'\.1:|::|;!4.' foor all business unis

and the BrOmp as 3 w hole, we are |1!;.|1:||||l:|;|_1 L[5 .;||;'4_||.,|i|‘;,'

the world's leading Enterprise Svstem. We hope that the

system under consideration would help the company in

L"tluibll"lllll!.: accurale and Mrll."\'du'r M'r.;||l_'1_| 1w L'1'r|'||j'f_|1:‘-\._

This would certainly improve the decision-making

prosess, ensuring better profits for sharehol

‘-;l"hl :_"l-l\- CITEANCE TOF WS 15 N0l an eXxencise (3] l|.'lh|'|||1|}'
with regulotory requifements. We aim o go beyond
wiht is required of ws in rules and regulations. Corporate
SOVEMEnce 15 a constanl review and evaluation of all
ASpects of OUr OpPeTiiinns, our slralcgy and the wWay we

comnduct our business, A separate, more detailed report

on our rode as a responsibbe corporate citizen is included

in this annual repor

“
Shakarganj Mills Limited
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Juice Extraclio
The sugarcane after shredding is passed through series of milfi
extract maxmimum sugar juice from the suga
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L Commitices
 Committer dhevises lo
ihe compainy with the sole object of
betuimns 1o sharchalders by optimal

term policies

als and treods 10 e odistey

in plunming for (utune

~ hli.he::r! constitmied 1o address aml
pl Bty Besiouree Development. The

altee i 1o }l_lll.]l." the manage menl

MY commmities Keeps all
the company upsdatcd in a fast

heelps 1o maintmin a balunced
ang maximire relurms whitle
Tow lewed

6 wii the Hest Corporate
ﬁu‘ in o ew on producing
ﬂp‘l‘l Institutod by ICAP and
d.\':ﬁ 1o ihe cuompanies fos lear
w; and presenition

Your company's contribution @ the communily wis

COmpany

By Primie: Mamister Shauksd

peed by Pakistun Centre for Philanthropy., The

wins-given an award for 'Cor

Wi

The Company swas also dwianded the Hest Expor

Perform

Pk

irepiny |

digrins thnt fiscnl wis awarded o Shiak

istan Chambers of Commerce

o Ao 20062005 by the Fedoration ol
A

anck Trpclusary

the hiphest exports of Erhaamol from Pakistn

Islmmmabad h_-. honorahle Prosident of Pakistan Ciemeral

Perver Muosharrad

Outlook

With expamiled production capacity due o commencement

of operations of satellite Facility at Bhone we are confudent

of achieving better resulis in the Fiscal 07

Hovwever

WE EXpPOC] SO « hallenges 1hat SEEE AR ingliasiry may

fage in times o come, which maoy atffect the overal]

results of your company also, Despite beiter anticipated

RUBATCINES S, the

SHE

prce war for procurcmant of

cane staricd m previons year i Likely 1o continug

this vear also. o order 1o mitigale thas spfudiion we

7

ing Mialls Limated

-



Ethanol Manufacturing F
Pipeline network is used for providing steam energy for heating
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taken sqmie e steps for sugarcane
-}‘I.Ih-'iiCiJ'IH_l. of newly commenced
Which would ensure availi ibility of
WII ve price. However we fisel

W eould now be marketed locally ai
B Tentile trade is expected 1o have stifl
B Ml'l-"dumlt!l! In oodin |m:-||||l_'l||'|r|

1o be on higher side hence
this situation and decrease our
g i the coming years we have
lign o investment portiolio
by realignment of ponfolio and
have resched 10 the satration
for rl-“i-l-lll-'il'lkI the CXPRANSIOn
i ek aid the retiremnent of ¢ o]y
ulll the additional capacity will
ifed £Xira cash resources and

' 13 folio will decrease our

e resultanily there will be

A& source of guidance and

and we appreciate their

& progress and Prosperity
“! B0 express their sppreciation
o Iovaley and hard work of the

wirkers, stafT and members of the M Eement Leamm
Lhur sugaincane farmers are the backbone of our industry

and we thank them tor their contieeed suppon

*J'mkargam

Swkargn|

By Order of the Board

MM

—
Al=an M. Saleem
Chiel Exccutive
Lahore, February 3, 2007

7
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Statement of Compliance with Code of Corporate Governance

[his statement is being presented 1o comply with the
Code of Corporate Governance as contained in
Regulation No37T of the Listing Resulations of the
Karachi Stock Exchange and Chapter X101 of Listing
Regulations of Lahore Stock Exchonge and Chapter
Al of Listmng Regulaiions of Tslamabad Stock Exchange
for the purpase of establishing a frmework of good
povernance, wherchy a listed comprny is managed
in compliance with the best practices of corposale

Fl METTRL L

The company hos applicd the principles contuined in

the: Code in the following manner

I. The company encournges representation of

imdependent non-execulive directors. At present six

Dircetors are independent non-executive dircctons.

The directoss have confirmed that mone of them
1% servimg as o dirgctor in more than ten lsed

companies, including this company,

Lo Allihe resident directoss of the COmpany are
registered as epayers and none of them has defaubied
in payment of any lean to o banking company. a DFI
an NBFC. None of them is a member of a stock

exchange.

! A casal vistancy was occurred duning the year
ended Seplember 30, 2006, which was duly filled-up
by the Board of Dincetors,

The company has prepared a Sttement of Ethies
il Business Practices”, which has been signed by all
the directors and employees of the company.

fr. The Board has developed a vision § mission
stagment, overall corporate strategy, amd significam
policies of the company. A Complete recard of
particulars of sigmificant policies alognwith the dates

o which they were approved o amended bl

mantamed.

Signilicamt policies are formally approv
the Hoand, h'.:l'uln'l.'\'\.'tl'_ ihe overall COrporaie 4

in the process of bcang Foormmulated For Boand)

% All the powers of the Board have bees
excrcised appointment and terms and oo
employment of the Chiel Exccutive ....
have been taken by the Board

L The meatings of the Board were pres
the by Chairmian and, in his absence ]1:‘- ad
elected by the Board for this puspose aad
mel onee i CVery quarter lJulIIIH' the: yeard
September 30, 2006, Wrillen notices of thel
Meectings, alongwith agencda und workingg
were circulated al least seven days hefor
The Minutes of the ||:||_-|:|i|:3\. Wiere ADp
recorded amd circalated, |

1 T members of Boand have stiends
caurse o apprise them of their duthes 58

sabvilities.,

L The board has approved ;||11;|i|i
Company Secretary and ihe head of
incheding their remuneration and iemm .
of employment, as recommended by OO 0

|2 The Director's Report for the
Soptember 30, H06 lkas been prepared ik
with the :r|:;||.1ir|.-n1cm-\ al the Code m

14 The financial stitements of he
duily endewsed by the CEO and CFO
by the Buoard,

S

Shakargan) Mills Limited




i Compliance with Code of Corporate Governance

: b CEL) and exccutives do not hold
res of the company, other than
ke paniem of shareholding.

WH with all the COPOre
'I'Nl-ﬁl'l!ﬂ'l!nl::‘ of the Code.

dan audit committee
-iﬂﬂbﬂil‘lg the Chairman of
it Charter of the Company
i members of the Audi

o ly literate,

audit committes were held
prior o approval of
of the company and ax
lermis of relerence of the
d and mwdvised o the

effective intemal audin
ime Hewd of Interm:al
tons of this function

- Rz Ahmad &
suitably gualified and

of the company have
bm given a satisfactory
H'D] meview Programmg
Accountints of Pakistin,
% of the Nirm, their
Fh'l‘ldl hold shares of the
and all fts pariners are
ithonal Federition of

an eode of ethics as
ered Accountants of

M The statutory auwditors or the persons issociated

with them have not been appointed w provide
ather services except in sccordance with the listing
regulations and the suditors have confirmed tha they
have observed TFAC guidelines in this regard

Y We confirm that all other materfal principles
contained in the Code have been complied with

By order of the Board.

-'W

e

Abhsan M. Salecm
Chicf Executive Officer

Lahere, February (03, 2007

”~

g
Shakorganj Mills Limited
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A. F. FERGUSON & CO.

Corporate Governance

Review Report to the Members on Statement
of Compliance with Best Practices of Code of

PraceyaTes

A& 1 Tiguesn b On
Fred Ao owrlasli
it ¥l

Wi have reviewed the Statement of Complinnee with
fle st proctices contained in the Code of Corporate
Clovernance prepared by the Board of Dircctors ol
Shakarganj Mills Limited o conply with the Listing
Regulution Mo, 37 of the Karachi Steck Exchange,
Chapier X101 of the Lahore Stock Exchange and
Chaper X1 of the Islamabad Stock Exchange, where
the Compamy s listed.

The responsibility for compliande » ith the Code ol
Corporate Governance is that of the Buoord of
Directors of the Company. Cur responsibility 15 1o
feview, 10 the extent where such compliance can be
ahjectively verificd, whether the Statement of
Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s
comphiance with the provisions of the Code of
Corporate CGovernance and repon il il doses ol
Acreview is limited primarily to inguiries of the
Company personncl and review variaus

thie Cole

A part of our sudin of financial statements we ane
regquired to obinin an uiderstanding of the
wecounting and internal control systems sufficient G
plan the sudit and develop an effective audit
approach, We lave not carried oul sany special
review of the internal contrel system o enable bs 10
express un opinion as o whether the Bourd’s
sttement on internal comrol covers all controls and

the effectiveness of such intermal controls.
Based on our review, nothing has come 10 our
| attention, which cuauses us o believe i the

%

Shukargan) Mills Limited

9 .

dociuiinents prepared by the Company 10 comply with

Siatement of Compliance does nonappo
veflect the Company s complisee, in okl
pespects, with the best prictives conained i
Code of Corperate Governunce s spplicabé]
company for the year ended Septenibes 3,

Chartered Aceountants

Lishere, Felmary 03, 2007




L bl 3 ot Sepremnber W0, DR
phit and Jons scoount, cash o

n of chanpes i egyusty

s forming pan thereol. for the

£ Mabe that we hove ebiained
e planations which, o ihe
boliel, were necessary for

10 EXPrEss 4 G on
i o i

 sccondence woath the

C& CXmmining on @
the amoumis and

""" g porliches and

management. s well
o ol thee abwreg

i ”‘ amnd lows

e mokes thereon have
y with the Cosmpumgs
s agreerment with the
urther in sccordance

i mﬂ‘“}' applied,

e — — - %

|| P ousiCoress [

Wi Bty
FEE B i, b i o gl A

J TR PR
Latwarn, Pakoslpn

{FRTEE (RIS CI S PR TS g T L
o BARTEZT
Fan [ ERR AT R
=TT} bergunn gl dnis el ok

excepd for the change as stated 10 e 5.7 wath which
T M

v the evpendmee moumed duneg the yoar wan
for the purpere of the company s business: and

Cinid the Pasiness comducted, investments male
ard the expenditure incumed during the year wene
i accordance with the objects of the company;

(i mm our opanasn snd b e B ol o seloarmastin
s accvwding W the caplanstams grven s as the
halance sheel. profnn and boss account, cash Thow
statement and statcment of changes m ogquity fozethicr
with the noles Towmming peet thereod confomm with
approved aoeo ng stamdards as applicable
Pakistan, mmd give the informalion regquired by the
Companies Chrdinance. 1954, in the manncr so
revpuired and respectively give a true amd fair vicw of
the state of the company s aflars 3 @ Scplcmber

B0, MO0 el of the prisfil, s cash (o amd
changes in oty for the vear then ended. and

(il our opinion sakal deductible st souree ander
the Lokt andd Ulshr Ordingenee, 980 (XTI of 19806,
wiis deducted by the company and deposited in ihe
Central Fukai Fund estgblishied under section 7 ol
thar Uvdimance

Charered Aceountants

Labove, Febrsary 00, 2007

“Z
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Balance Sheel

A ot September 30, 2006

Mt 20
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AN RESERVES

Aahworized copital

BOLOEND I 2005 S0UHEEED ) ordinary shares of Bs 1 each LULIRLLT
SO O | 00K SO LR [rretercnoe shares of Bs 1 each LR
(TR

lssied, subscribed and puid up capital L] 5T0, 65
Beserves 20t D
Lineppeopriated profi K3, 189

A356.502
SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 LI

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term finances 5 1,459,203
Long term advances 9 |
Linkilities agminst assets subject w0 fnance lease 1] 131727
Employees’ retirement benefits 11 1353
Deferred incoms 12 4,524 |
1598, 107

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of bong term liabihnes I3

Short term |1|Ir|'q.'\lh.lllz_'\ sacwred 14 5.380,721

Trade amd other payabiles I3 M0

Acorued finiance cost ™ 1__:4.‘!,4;-
i, 761 bl

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITAMENTS 17

1171589

%
Shakwrganj Mills Limited
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« Balance Sheet
As ot September 30, 2006

Restatied
Mote MM 2005
{Hupees in thousand)
ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

# Property, plant and equipment I8 4,168 832 1,744,787
Assels subject 10 finance loase I 2771 278,643
Capitzl work-in-progress 20 633758 2602768
Brological assets 21 TAL3 12393
Investments - related parties 22 B4, 170 6 46
Laong teron boan and deposits 13 15157H 2,532
Dieferred taxanion 24 3H0.5TR 7,200

T AT iE 5.545.269

CURRENT ASSETS
Biobozical assers 21 [ 184580 100,304
Stores, spares and loose wools 25 96 | Tin 326
Stock-in-irade 26 1,423,800 41,516
< Trade debis 27 217,227 330,843
I vestments 28 2446277 2,791,926
Loans, mdvances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables X9 by 2700653
Cash il hank balances 30 13,335 | 19,733

344322 4,541,391

o
715890 _10.086.660
The anmexed notes 1 to 459 form an imegral pan of these Nnancial statemsents,
Chief Executive Chairman

a4

%
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Balance Sheet
A seplember 30, 2006

Hestated

Mot kL LI
(Rupees in thousand
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorised capitl

- BILKHLAKH) (2005 SOAKMLN ordinary shiares of Bs 10 each BICTRITI LU TELE Y]

= SN0 C2O005: 30,000,000 préference shares of Bs 1 each LT SOH1AHKD
L3000 L0000

s, subseribed jnd poid up copial 0 TIN5 540,537

Reserves 2.0 2405203
Linappropramted profit BLI8 156514

2350502 d02 204

SURPLLS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 A 157 3,183

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long twerm Ninances g | nasaz0x | | LAR4, TRY |
Long term advances 9 B.RT2
Liatalities against sssefs subject o lnonce loase 1k 131,727 153529
Emplovees’ retinement benelits I 1.353 267
Dreferned ineorme 12 | 4524 | | 5872 |
1598, 107 TORIAIE

CURRENT LIABRILITIES

Curment portion of fomg e labilities 13 ETR.17S | [_EJ‘THII:J ]
Sheert tenm bormowings - secured 14 5.580,72 FORRHER |
Tracke and other pavables 15 MLage 274420
Avermed finanee cosd 16 259 464 | 151,804

6760064 4807500
CONTINGENCUES AND COMMITMENTS 17

11,7 15,5090 ORS00

%

Shakarganj Mills Limited
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Profit and Loss Account
For the vear ended Seprember 30, 2006

Nole 20 2iHis
i Rupees in thousand b
Sales 1] = ANLET £ 002 460
Cast ol sales 32 (514353 HARLNTL)
Ciross prodil 2ivn 583 41389 d
L
Adlimimistrutive expenses 33 12107540 {1274006)
Laisarilstionn amd selling cosis i 1TASKL) (S8 1T0)
Oty ssperating expenses 35 {183,082 (39, 165
Cither eperating income i GOT7 KT 202,104
Profit From operations 405853 50144
Finance cust ¥ (TOLART Y 1279447
.......... — =TT .
{Loss) £ profit before tax [ELES 20T 1745407
Taxutwm i% 362475 37654
Profit for the year s 539 207,381
Farnings per share - basic Ruprees e 115 4.5
The anmexed pofes | o 49 form an mtegrul part of these Dinancial staleiments.
-
-
it 7’?5 e
Chiel Executive Chairmuan l
i
|
’ i
! .

%
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended September 30, 2006

CAPTEAL RESERY

Share cagital

Nalisticing wnid | Hesvarch and Shane Fair salue
mederniation | desdopment P reserE

Balané: i on Sepiember Wi S
A peviinialy e priad FRHAMp [RELET A BLE Y] LA RE T

Bestatcrmnt in spening balingy
ul fair value réserves die &
wemreniin of vrroe ik 39 - - [REXLT

Tealamee s on September 8, 2004 - pespafed L) 15040 SAMMNE BNy A0

Fanal dlivibend disr thae yoar evload
Seprensber M N4 =

Wramdior Seoms vurgrhis o e aliistion
ol pnpersy. plam and equiprsent
1 kv i cremeninl depreciatios -
Tramsstenmel i fuserves =
Proference shans inose & 1) TAZ.0ery
Fair value gam shuring the year -

5 LR R
Profit for b your -

Balanse ay va Sepiember 30, 308 . et D517 15 00K) A i) ELETY] 1330

Tramufers, 1o Creneinl esorve REFTTIT 5 ANNE}
Fiat value fons ahuring ihe. year = [ KL
Preminm on conversion of Predoenge
shares fnoee 6.1 126, 70 126, T%
Nnirs Shases jussiend duing ihe Y G207 IREITT
Rt abanes jsxus] ihuriny ihe year ([LEREL1F] A5 T
Vemnisfiet Bromn sueplus o revalstion
Al ey, plant and exuipeness
e acvoant il i rinomtal depyociation
Pimfil for ihe yes -

Balaner ay oo Seplember B, 2006 570, 14E Miams 1683 )7

The anncsd moses | i 40 Eormn an tetiganl pan o these Sinanclsl seiemens

Chiel Expcutive

4‘9 .

Shakargan) Mills Limited
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% E R ¥V E &
REVESLE RESERVE
Diflerenge uf
capital unds Eapsiiy “Toial 1 naggeropriasied Tisksl
schranic off Imvesimend el 1 Vb
arrangresnd Wi el wnarkiet valos
of g Suhetnlal {ienmal eqqualization | equallmthn Sahetntal

155,950 1L i mram 220 EEELEH L ) | Ao [ B 2iwr i
i KT 1k T 00 - [RiNe L ]
155550 | 1Pl s b B 22,7 LEECLL] A ] | =107 1 =0 LAOTES0M
[LEA LT ART A
- a il
il 2 104, R IR YT
L2007
L W BIE_ LD BEE I
HITAKL TR
[ELELT | S Rt AT LT pAdes ) dTLI TS 2SNl 156524 LR TR
12 MK Lok bl Lo LiLLn] LEILTLLY) [REIEEL LAY
ITHAN R {TEAKLER [ FLIRT]
126,708 126,705
FLOE T ] 162 A4
(LLRE ) . (LENES) TR el
2 N
ol £ 1 Bl 0 W
1A% 550 U] AN ATE 22N LERLLF] RALITY 2 LERE UL

Chalrman ~

%
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended Seprember 30, 200K

e

(]
P

Lgal statws and nature of  business

The company is incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on Karachi. Labore and Islamsibid Siock Exchanges.
It 15 principally cogaged in manulaciure, purchase wnd sale of sugar, ethanol, building material and yam,
T registered office of the company i= sintated in Lihore.

Basis of preparation

These fimancial statements have been prepared in accondanee with approved secounting standards as
applicable in Pukistan and the requirements of Companies Ordinance, 1984, Approved accounting sundanks
comgrise ol such Intermmipmal Accounting Stamdards (EAS ) o mtified under the provisions of the Conspanies
Orndinance, 1984, Wherever, the requirements of the Companies Ordinince. 1988 or directives issued by the
Securitics aml Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) difller with the requirements of these standards,
the tequinements of Companies Ordinance. 1984 or the requiremennts of e s directives ahe precedence.

Stmdards, Interpretations and ameadisenis o published approved secounting standands that lee i vel
ellective

The Following imendments to existing stondards have been published et are applicable o the company’s
linancial siatements covering antual periods, beginning on or after the following dates:

EMective T
i} IAS 19« { Amendments) - Emplovee benefins Octasbser [, 006
i) TAS 1 - Presentation of fnancinl statements - capital diselosure Oxtober |, 2007
[T IFRS 3 - Business combinations Chetobwer |, 2007

Mdboprtion of the above wmendments would resull i an impact on the nomre and exient of diselosunes made
in the future finoncial sttements of e compuny.

Basis of measurement

These fmmcinl sttements have been prepared under the historical cos convention exgepl Tor recognilion
af cormsin employees” retirement benefits a present valise as referred (o in note 5.2, revaliation of certain
property, plant and cquipment as referred o in note 5.3, valuation of biological nssets ol foir value as
refierred o i note 5.5 widl revaluntion of cerain financial instruments af Toir value a5 refermed (o in note 5.7

The preparation of lnaocial satements m conformity with the above requineinents requines ithe use of certain
eritical accounting extimates, It also requires managenient 1 exercise its jodgment in the process of applying
thie company™s nocounting policics. The matters involving o higher degree of judgmiem ar complexity, or
arcis wheee asanmptions and estimates are sipnificant 1o the financial sttements, are dischised i the
respective notes bo the financial statements,

Chiniige i secouning: estimle

I puerseance of revised International Accounting Standurd (TAS) B6 “Property, Plant and Equipmeni”
which ix applicable for aecenmting vears beginning on or after Jusuary 1, 2005, the compsany fas reyimed
the fallowing accounting cstimates:

Shakargonj Millks Limied

it
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- Motes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended September 30, 2000

The eompany now chirges deprecumon on all addigions to propeny, plant and equipment and pssels
subpect W linaice lease from the month in which an ossei s aveuired or capitalized while no depreciation
i charged for the month in which the asset is dispesed off, Previowsty, full vear's depreciation was
Chargesd o ll pssets acquired or capitalized during the vear while 5o deprecintion was charged on the
assets dlisposed off during the vear, Such o change has been acoounted for as @ change in an ACECRning
catinate in accondince with Intemational Accounting Stndand (1AS) 8 “Accounting Policies. Changes in
Accounting Esiimptes aml Erpose”.

Haid there been no change in the acoounting eimote, the biss after taxation lor the wear ended Sepriembeer
b, 2wl havie been hiagher by Bs 36,06 million, canry ing value of property, plant gl cquipmen
waonld hinve been lower by Bs 47312 million and carrying value of assers sobject o lnance leise waould
lave been lower by B 1 374 million. Consequential effect on profiv after vaxation e (e perisib is
it considered to e material,

The company, ks ol September 40, 2004 and in periods subsequent 1o tha dee incomeetly recorded  its
shares held i Safeway Mutual Fumd Limiied, on investment classified as wvailable for sale. resulting in
an everstidement of fair value gain as on September 30, 2004 aind subseguen reporting periods

This exror hus been correcied refrospectively during the curment year in sccordimce with Intermsitinmal
Accounting Stndand (1AS) 5 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Extimates and Ervors”.
Conscouently, the far valie reserve and camying value of investments decremsed by Bs 37006 million
anid Ks 44288 million as ot Szptember 30, 304 and Seplember 30, 2008 respeatively,

Significant accounting policies

Fas i

L urndnl

Provision of current tax 15 based on the wxable inconse for the vear determined in aceondunce with the
prevailing law for taxation of income. The chirge for current tax is caleuloted using prevailiig G nates
of Lax rates expected o apply @0 the profie for the year il enocted. The clarge lor current gex alae inclsdes
aljustments, where considened necessary, to provision for Ls nade in previows years ansing from
mwsaessments frnmed during the year for such years

Delerted

Preterned tax s seoomnted for using the balance sheet lability method in respect of 2l femporary
differcmces arising from differences between the canyving amaaint of osets and Habilittes in the financial
stitemaonts and the comesponding 1ax bases used in the compuatation of the mxeble profit. Deferred fas
Tnabsilities are generally recognized for all rxable temporary oifferences and deferred s assels are
recognided 1o e extient thut i s probable dial xable profits will be availsble againa which the dedisctible
temporary differences. umised lax losses and tax credits con be utilised.

Beterred wx vs cabeulated o the rates that are expected 1o apply o the period when the differences
reverse based on s mtes than have been enacted of substantively enacted by the halunce <heer date.
Deferred tay is charged or eredited in the ncome stitement, ex cept in whe cane of dtems credited or
charged e equity i which case i1 is mehsbed in equity

N
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended Seprember 30, 200060

el

Emglovees” retirement benclins

Dl benelin plans
The main featore of the schemes operatéd by the conspany for its emplovees of sugar and allied divisions
e as follows

All permancit cmployees whe ans in the manogement cadre of the company participate in an approved
funded dedined benefin pension plan, In addition, there is an approved fnded defined benelil grotuity A
scheme for all permanent emplovees, who ore in the managemenl cadie of the company subjecl fo o
meinimum gualifying penod of service acconding to the teoms of cmployment, Monthly contribitiens ae
mile 1o these funeds on the basis of actunrial recommendation al the rale of  20% per annum of basic

silary for pension and 8.33% per annum of basic salary for praniity. Actarial valwtion for the schemes
swas carried oal os al Seplember 3, 20006,

Actial returns on plan pssets dunng he year were Bs 168148 million and Bs 3294 mbllion for pension
anad grituity funads respectively, The actual returms on plan mssets represent the difference between the
fabr value of plan assets at the beginning of the year and as a8 the end of the vear after wljustments fir
werntribtions miuhe by the company as roeduced by benefits paid during the year

The future comtribution raes of these plans include allowances for deficit and surplus. Projecied unit =
eredit method wsing the fallowing sigmficant assumptivns. is used for valustion of these schenses:

DMt rate M
Expected increase in eligible pay b
Expevted rate of retrm on plan aweets LLLE]

The comipsny pelicy with regard o actuaril puips/losses i o follow miminam recoummended tigpeeiaich
amiber TAS 19 {revieed HNNMH)

Pelimed coomtrbution plims
There is an approved contrimnoey providen fund for ol pesmanent cmplovees. Egual monthly comribuiions
BN manche hj' thie oy amd ﬂllplu}l:r‘ i the funid i accordance with the fund miles,
-4
Tnrerest 68 7-8% per anoun is pavable to the fund on the balances utilized by (he coirpany which is
churged o profil,

Retirement benefits are pavable o sielf on vompletion of preseribed qualitying period of serviee under
thise selbenmes

Property, plant and equipraent

Frechald T, buildings and plant and machinery as at September 30, 1979 have been revalued by an
independent valuer i of that date and are shown o el revalued Dgures less aceanlaed depreviation
aml any wbeatificd mpaanment loss, Additeons sibsequent e that date are stated a1 cost less acc umulated

depreciation aml any skentified impainmen Toss. Al otlser prroperty, plart and eqguipient are stated af
cont bess pocumulated depreciation amd any identified impaimsent loss, Costs in elation b cemtuin progeny,
plami ancd exuipaient comprises of histoncal eost, revabiead smint asd bormmwing costs relemed o in moe 5,19,

Shakargany Mills Limited
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Notes o the Finan
For the year ended Seprember 30, 2006

al Statemenis

Increwies in ihe carrying amount arsing en reviduation of propeny, plant and equipment are credited 1o
sterphias o revalustion of property, plant and equipment. Decreases it offsel previoss ineneses of (he
sanwe isebs are charged sgaine this surplus. ll oller decresses are charged io income. Eacls year ihe
difference between depreciation based on revaheed carrying amount of the asset (the depreciution churged
tovthie ivconse ) and deprecution based on the assets’ origimil cost s ransfered Trom somlus on revaluition
ab progerty, plamt amd eguipment o anappropristed prolin, AL transfers ioffmom soplus om revalistbon of
property, plant sl equipment are net of applicable deferred waxation,

Magor repairs sl improveinens are capitalized. Minor repairs and renewals are charged o meome, The
giin or Joss on disposal or eetirensent of an asset represented by e difference between the sale procesils
aial the camryving amount of the psset is recogmized as income or expense,

Depreciation on all propeny, plant and equipment. excepd Land is charged 1o profit on the reducing balanee
tnethisl s as B0 werite of T the cost of an asset over its estimated useful life a1 the annusl mees gaven in
e 18 afler mking imto oecount e bmgrect of their residoal valves, i considered signilbeain

The pssets resufisal values and wseful lives ore reviewed. at cach linancial year end, and adjusted i

TET RIS AT n.|¢|‘!|rl.1'|u.l1l.||:| v sigmilienni. The ..'mrlpuu:r‘\ estimpie of ihe residunl value of dts POy, |;||;||||.
il equippment as it September M1, 20060 has 1ot reguired any asdjusinwent s s impact is considensd
insegnificant.

Prepwechanion om adidations 1w property, plint amd equipment is charged from the momb inowhich this asses
i ieipuared or copataliieed, while oo depreciation is charged for the month in which the aaset bs s ol

The company assesses il each balance sheet date whether there is any indicasion that propesiy, plont and
capibipmetit may be onpaned. IF such indecision exists, the camrying amsunt of such assees are reviewed o
assess whether they are recorded in execss of their recoverable amomm. Where comrving valies execel the
respeciive recovemble ameani, asseis are written down o thelr recoverable smounts and the resulting
inpinment b recognized in inceme cwremly. The recoverable amsount is the higher of gn asser's Gor value
less cost foosell amd valae in use. Where an bnpairment loss ‘is recopnized, the depreciation charge i
aidjusted i the Tutare perods 1o allociuae the sset’s evised carrying amounst over its esthimsted wselnl life

Subsgguent costs are inchded in the wset’s LTI A e revapnised as bosepande asel, o approprise,
only when if s probable that future coonomic benefits associated with the item will Mow 1o the company
inel thie ciomt of the item cin be scaviered selkibily. All othier fepair amd maimdeninee costs ane charged 1o
o durimg the period bowhich they ane incurred,

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an ssset represented by the difference between the sale
pescceds amd the corrying amwoont of the asset s recognized o an income or capense

Cagrtn] woirk - fn-progress
Capital wistk-insprogress is stsled ot cost less any identifed inpairmaent loss,

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Fow the vear ended Seprember 30, 20006

ahng [
Ricdogecal assers comprse of standing crops and lvesiock, These are sated at fair valug less extimated
Pt f-sale costs, with any resiltant gai or ks recognized in the profit and loss aecount. The faie
virlwe of stnaling crops is Based on the support price Tixed by she Govamaens and other factors such as
the estimated ormp yicld and ares under cultivation, Fair value of lvestock is estimated an the basis of
ket prices of Tivestock of similar ape, breed amd genctic ment, Point-ol-sale costs ingliede all coss
that woukbd be necessary (o sell the pssets, excluding Costs nocessary o pet Uee assets w the morkel.

T

The company 15 the lessee:

Sl Finamce L %
Leases whepe the compeary his subsitantially all the rcks and rewands of ownership ans classified as Mnanee
leasacs, At anceptaon, finsnce leases are capitalized an the lower of present vidue of minkmam lease I nls
under the lease spreensents and the Tidr value of the dssels,

The rebaned rental obligations, net of finpnce cost, are iecluded in liabdites agpinst pssets subject fo
Tinance lease as pelerred (o in note 10, The liahilities are classifed o current wml non-cument depeimling
upin the diming of the pavment,

Euch lease paymen s albocated berween the lishility and finonoe cost s as o achieve 3 constunt rale onp
the balonee outstamding, The interest element of the rental is chiarged o profit over the lease eom

Ascts acquired wder a finance lease wre depreciated over the wseful lie of the ssset on reducing hulanee
methorl an the rates given in note 19, Deprecimtion on leased assots is charged fo the profit and o
A

Drepteciation on ashditions o leased assels 1s charged froon the nwsmib in which an asset is aequired while
no deprecintion s charged for the month in which the assen is disposed off

Sfs 2 Ohperaling beases
Leases where a sagnificant portion of the risks and rewasrds of ownership sre retained by the lessor sine
classified as operating leases, Payments made wder operating beases (net of amy incentives meeeived Trom
the lessory are chasged (o profil on a straighi-line basss over the lease term,

v esimems

Helel 82 tkalisrily

Iwvestments with fized momrity that the management has the intent and ability 1o hold w matority ase
ussified as held to maturity and are initrally mensored o cost and a8 stibeguent reporting dates measunad
anorised cost using the effective vield metod,

%
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Furr the vear ended September 10, 2006

A ahlable Tor sl

Inwestments classified ws availible for sale, inclading nvestments in associated wnderakimgs, are initally
measured b cost, being the fair valse of consideration given, &1 subsequent reporting dates, these
investments are remvessuned al Gir valie, unless fair valioe cannot be relighly mewsated. Unrealized gains
el Tosies trising from the changes in e fair valse are incloded i falr value reserve in the perisl in
which they anse.

Invisstmvents indemded Lo be Bedd for less thun pwelve months Trom the halanos shieet date or W b sold o
raise operating capital, are included in currend msaets, Al asther inwestments are classifiod os non-current.
Managensent determines the approprizie classification of ity Hwestments at the gime of the purchase and
re-gevilumtes such designation on o regular basis

The commipany, updo previous vear, classified investments i equily imstruments of wsocnied undertakings
including these where the company had significant influence. as available for wabe and snrealized puinsd
s wrising From chanpes in Tair value were directly recognised inequity in the period in which thesc
aremi anid cumulative gains and losses anising foom changes in foir valie were piclisded i et profie o
Jivis St the period in which an investment was derecognized. In avcondange with the neyvised Internatinnal
Accounting Standard (LAS) 38 “Investments in Associafes”. which is applicable o the company for
pecounting years Ieginning on or after January 1, 2005, the company. while presenting il ierim linangizl
] stutements. changed it accounting palicy in respect of equity instnaments of associated nnderakangs
where the company has sigaificant influcnce snd which are not expected to be disposed off within twelve
monthe from the balanee sheet date and secounted Tor them using the equity method of accounting.

However., the comgrany acqguired 1EE shares o Shukargunj Food Products Limited on Seprember 4,
0 and bs reguired 10 isae comadidated fnancial statemens alongwith s separale finamiind siatements,
in aeeordince with the requirements of 1AS 27 “Consolidated and Scparate Finaneial Statements”
Consequently, investments in associsted undenakings where the company s significant inflsence are
beeing clussified as ‘available for sale’ with wirealized gainalisses arising (rom changes in i vabise being
recognized directly ineguity in the peried in which these arnise, Investments in st wssociated undenakings,
in the consolidoted financial sitements, are being accounted for using the equity mothod, There is mo
impast of this change s cument of preyious vear's repaarted figures,

W

Held for iradiig

Investinents that are sequired pringipally for the purpese of generating a profit from shir teom Muctizations
in price are classified as trding investments amd ineluded b current nssets. These are initiolly measured
at cust amd ab sibsequent neporting dates, these investments are remeasuresd ot far value, Reolized and
unrealiced gains and Iosses arising from clianges in foir value are includesd in et predin or Boss for the
puriiu.l i wihich ey Arise,

The fair value of publicly traded securities is bused on markel prices quated on Karachi Stock Exchange
a1 e balanece sheet date. The investments for which a gooted market prive is not aviilable, are measured
i ot s it 1% mol practical ws apply any other valusion methodology.

Al purehoses pnd sates of ivestments ane regognized on the tmde date which s the date that the canpany
commits o purchase or séll the investent. Costof purchase includes transction cost

kA

%
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended September 30, 2006

510

512

Al cach balamce <hoet dote. the compamn reveews the carmyng amosnts of the mnocdmemts B s w bother
there 1 3ny mdication that sech mvestments kave suflered a8 meparrment s 1T 30y sach isdcation
exists. the recoverable amount s extimated i onder 1o determne the exient of the nspairment loss., if any.
Tmpairment losses are recognieed as expense. Whene an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
warrying amaount of the investinent is inersased o the revised recoverable amomnt bt Bmited o e excem
af initial cost of the investment.

Slanrs. spares @nd o foasds

LUsable stores and spares are valued principally 21 movieg average cost. while sonrs comadioned obsalone
are carsed 3t mil valee Bems i ot ae valeed 8 oosd comprrang mvosce valee plus othey charge.
pand dhc o

Sk - - b

Stock of raw matenals, excepd for those i transil, work-in-process and finahed goods are valued
poncipally wl the lower of welghtod avernge cost and net realizable value. Cost of work-in-process aml
limished goods comprises cost of direct matenials, labour and appropriste manulsciunng overbeads, Cost
ol ovam proshsced molaoaes, 8 by product, s determined on the basis of monthly average cost of molasses
parchased Fromm third parcs.

Materals m tramat afc stated af cosd comprrang oy valees ples other charpes pasd theroon.

Net realizable value sigmifies the estmated selling price n the ordinary course of busisess less costs
nevessary b be incurred in onder o moke a sale,

Financial asseis and Dubilies

Finmncial svects and fnoncial liabilities are recognized when the company bocomes 3 pany i the
which i the Laer valoe of comaderstom prven and received respectively. Thew hinancis) ssats and
abalitnes are vabsoquently = d 3t faur vabue of cond a5 the casg may be. The particolar mcaurcmsont
inctbnds ot e dinchined i the sy mbisal podicy statcmenits svacsaled with cach e

T HTsgtting of linancml assets mmd fmang il habahibes

Finsncial assets and fisanginl Tubilites ae offset and the pet amount is reported i the finoncial sisements
only when there is legally enforceable right 1o set off the recognised amount and the company imends
euther 1 setile on 2 net basis of o rcalise the assers and o senle the habilities sumaliancously,

Tramde dobats
Trade debts are carried ot orvpanal o smount bew an cobimote masde for doubifel reoemable halamocs
B ol Fev s of oulbsbandanig afwssits af the vear ol Bl debis aie wnlicn off when sientulsed.
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5.6

Cush il cosh -;'l.glli'k:ih.'llh

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost, For he pairpese of cash Aow statement
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, demand deposits, other short terim highly Fiquid
investments that are readily convertible o known mmounts of cash and which are sushject ooan msigmiicant
risk of chunge in value

Hormmwings

Loans and borrowings are recorded al the procecds received, In subsequent penads, bormowings are
stuted a1 amartized cost using the effective yiehd methaod, Preference shares, which are redecmsble on
specific date at the option of the holder, are classificd as labilitnes. The dividend on these preference
shares is recognized in the profit and boss account as finance cost. Prefierence share ane classified as equity
10 the extent ihére is conclusive evidence that these will not result in an ootflow of arother Ninumcil
asset o exchange of Tinancial assets or fubilities under conditions that arc poteniially unfayvorable o the
COMPIY.

B

Finance cost is aceounted for on an accreal basis,

Creditors, aeeruals amd provisions

Liahilities for creditors and other amounts payable are carried at cosi, which s the fair vilue of the
consideration o be paid in futore for the goods andfor services reoeived, whether or net billed o e
Company.

Provisions are recognized when the company his o present legal o constrsctive abligation as a result of
past events, it i probable will result in an ewtflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required o settle the obligation and o reliable cstimate of the amaunt can e munde, Provisions are
reviewed o year end and adjvaed wrefleo the current best estimate,

Diefierred ineone

Delerred income represents cioess of sule procesds in relation o the carrying amount of the assel
acquired under sale and lease back arrangement. Deferred income s amontized on 2 steangh Tine basis
awver the period of lease term,

Derpvative lnancial instromenis

These are initially recorded w cost and are remeasurcd o1 fuir value an subscquent peporting dites,

Foreign curreneies

All monetary assets and labiliies in foreign currencies are transhuted info rupees ol exchange ries
prevailing at the balanee sheet date, Transactions in foreign currencies are transhied into rupees at the
spot rate, All non-monetary items are transhated inle rupees al exchange rates prevailing on the date of
transaction or on the date when fair values are determined.

All exchange differences are charged to the profit and foss account.

%

Shakargang Mills Limited
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S0 Finnnee cosl
Mark-up. interest and other charges on borrowings are capitalized upto the date of commissioning of the
respective property, plam and equipment, acquired out of the proceeds of such borrowings, All other
mark-up, interest and other charges are charged o profit.

SH Hevenue riscogsnation
Revenue from sales is recognized on dispatch of geods 1o customers,

Dividend on equity invesiments is recognized as income when the right of receipt is established.

Rewrn on deposits is accrued on a time proportion basis by reference to the principal omstanding and the
applicable-rate of return,

521 Business sepmcnts

The company is divided into four business segments:

= Sugar division - manufagture and sale of sugar;

- Disnllery division - manufacture and sale of ethanol:

= Pamicle board division - manufactore and sale of particle boards; and
- Textile division - manufacture and sale of yarn

All these business segments are located in approximately the same geographical arca.

3201 Scpment pssetsansgd linbilines
The assets of & segment include all operating assets used by 2 segment and consists pringipally of operating
cash. receivables, invemtories and propeny, plant and cquipment, it off allowances and provishons.

Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities consisting principally of deferred liabilities. other
pavables and accrued liabilies.

The carrying amount of identifiable assets and habilities are directly anributed 10 respective segpments,
The carrying amount of jointly used assets and Biabalities of sugar and allied segments 1 classifed as
unallocated assets and liabilities.

52002 Alleseabacey of seensent CAPenses
All identifiable expenses are directly anributed 1o the respective segments. The joimtly incurred expenses
of sugar and allied segments are allocated on the basis of segment revenues,

%
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. Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
ZiHM M= My 2005
I Mumiber of shuresh {Rupres in thousand §
Crrdinuary
i 23,544,798 13,195 995 Crrclinary shares of Bs 10 cach
fully el im csh 235,448 1305990
1154516 15.337.034 Orchinary shares of Bs 10 gach issued as fully
paid honus shares 215445 153370
12847184 100,307 (W30 Ordinary shares of Bs 10 each ssued as FI.-I“}'
T = —— paid for consideration other than cash 128472 W3.070
57036498 38,843,009 STRIGS AREAMD
Preference
- 15, 210681 Preference shares of R 10 ench fully
o S pavich im cish NE— N
57036498 54,053,720 579365 540,537

Ordinary shares of the company held by associsted undenakings as at vear end are as follows:
ry B ¥

20 2oos
(Mo of shares)

A Stock Fund Limited 2023504 | HUMD, (NN
Crescent Commercial Bank Limited s 10
Crescemt Jute Products Limied 192,280 167,200
Crescemt Standird Business Management (Private) Limited - T.003
Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limated ENETNT 2772202
Crescent Sugar Mills & Distillery Limited 2681692 1,915 496
Safeway Mutwal Fund Limived 2513341 1572600
The Crescent Textile Mills Limited 4,522,907 3230 68
Premier Insurance Company of Pakistan Limited 44,500 S0,
Pakistan lnduserial Credit & Investment Corporation Limited o= 32544
16624417 11,590, T4
bl During the year the company has converted 152100691 preference shares into 2,540,184 ondinary shares

of Ba 10 cach in the ratio stated in note 8.3 through an offer o preference shareholders effectively ata
premium of Rs 4988 per ordinary share aggregating to Bz 126,705 million.

%
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended Seplember 30, 2006

Surplus on revaluation of property. plant and equipment

Freehold land, buildings and plant and machinery were revalued by an independent valuer as o Seplember 30,
1979 and stated in note 18 at appreciated value, The revaluation surplus is net of applicable deferred
income taxes.

20HM s
{Rupees in thousand)

Revaluation - net of deferred tax 3183 3212
Surplus transfermed 1o unappropristed

profit on sccoum of incremental

depreciation - net of tax 26 )

57 3.3

71 Incremental depreciation represents the difference between the actual depreciation on buildings and plamt
and machinery and the equivalent depreciation based on the histerical cost of buildings and plant and

machinery.
2 2ims
{Rupees in thousand
. Long term finonces
Term finance cenificates - secured - nofe .1 - 79,952
Long term loans - s¢cured - nove 8.2 1,620,632 1,865,830
Redeemable preference shares {non-voting) - unsecured - node B3 345785 345,755

Sl IRT 2.291.537

Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities

- Term finance certificates - secuned | - 79952 |
- Long term loans - secured | 507,184 326,802

207,184 A0, 754

459,203 1.684.783
e

%1 These have been repaid during the year

%
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Long term loans - secured

Loan Lensder po 2005
{Hupees in thousand)
I Pesbrata Indmuinal Crodst and
Tt Corporion |Lsmibnd dnks 6082
F MACH Hank Limised WLTED o000
3 MCH Bank |imited £s00 14,4000
4 MCH Bank Limited 75000 75 1K)
5 MCH Bamk Linsite:d 10625 19375
6 Ades invessmens Rak Lamised  JUSN 30,000
T Matiosal Bank Limsecd 12500 a7 SN
i Tntemmatsonal Blouaseg 55M 7413
Finance Limiied
L s Invesement Hank LI S
Pakistan Limikd
M Pakistan Kowas [svesiment IELIHHE MR
Commgany { Private ) Limined
11 Symicabe enm Han DLERE SN
17 Askon Conmercial Back Limaad 10408 14458
(B} MCHE Bask | smned 245 it B4,
14 Mecran Bank Limied 7,42 (YL

AMAR | RASEID

Rate of mark-up
perm
900

*Hane rate » M subject
s oot ol 7%

7.50¥%
ki rale sl o
oo o 5%

*Hgue rabe subject

1 floor of 5%

**Haxe mate + 350
skt do Moor of 5.5%

=ifase fale « 189%
"R rate + & 25%

R rale + I
subject B Moo of 7.4%
and sap of 15%

=B rabe # 2%
et o s oF 7,575
andd cap of 1%

#5Hine fule + 3% whjoc
1o Pl of 5,255

*Hyw rale + E subjoct
ik Tl ol %k

"R rale & 205 aubject
T Mlamar nl 355

"Haw raie = 25 sabpedn
1 floor of &%

Mark-ap
Sumber of inslabmenls sulstanding  pajabic
7 qpuarterly mstalimenis ending May 2008 Quanely
15 cpaarterly invatalimenis onding My MM Cuanerdy
| sgami -annpal snialisem cnling. Apanmerly
Febnsary 2007
Payable i lump vem i Septermber 207 Quanerly
5 seim-amayal installments emling
Sepmember 2007 tinchuhng | ovendoe  Quarterly
installment amaounling o R, SETS m b
4 wemi sl installmonts eding
Seember NEK S annual
A4 s anmmal ssaibments. ording Semi mnual
Jaty HE
1A momthdy insialimesss onding
Fanuasy JAKF Alimihily
& apred annual insisllmens ending
Mllay 2008 Semm annual
4 s ammual inslallisems coding
Augent NNIS Semi anisal
¥ g anmmal insclimenis ooy
Cctodser 2000 S il
4 quamerly installments cmding
Sy 2NN Lirterly
% gupuall serm anmiisl indaliments
commenging Masch S Juarerly
15 qanerly installmsems coling
Movembsr 200 Cusneaty

* Hase rate: Avorape avk raie of sivmonth Kasachi Imer Bank Offer Rase ("KIROR™) eewet for each mark-up perusd
*5 R ks Cut-oll viehd of the Lx ssction of the G-months Government of Pakistan Treasury Bills.
258 s gmies SHE Disooed rale b be st Bor each mark-ap period

%
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MNotes o the Financial Statements
For the year ended September 340, 2006

The compamy his Bs 100 il lion undrosn bormowing facility as a1 September 30, 2006 which is available
e May 24, 20040, Thes facility has been armanged to finance the working capiial necds of distillery unit.

Security

Lo | in 7
These are secured against first charge on property, plant and equipment of the company mnking pari passu
with other creditors.

U R,
I ks secured against equitable mortgage on immovable property linanced through the oan,

amiery 49 pawd 000
These are secured by way of hypothecation charge over plant and machinery of the testile division.

Lasan 11
The boan is secured by Girst charge by way of hypotheeation over all moveable assets of the company and

equitable montgage charge over plamt and machinery of the satellite facility

Lawan 12 1o 14
These are secured against specific charges on plant and machinery Tinanced through the respective loans.

Redeemable preferemnce shares (non-voting) - unsecured

Redecmable Preference shiares lm!llnw:li.rlgl were pssued i 20005 to the sharcholders of ihe company in the
ratie of 85 prefercnce shares for every 1M ordinary shares held as on October 22, M and 10 cenain
institutionul investors in equal propomion. These shares ane listed on Lahore and Kasachi Stock Exchanges,
The conversion option 1= nat binding either on the company o the preference sharcholders except in case of
the conversion upon maturity, where the preference sharehalders opis for conversion, subsequent 1o the
company's failure o pay preferred dividend dunng e entire tenure.

T ol redempiicn

Preference shareholders may convent preference shares into ordinury shares of the company at the end of
every financial year or the company may convert these preference shares o ondinary shares i whole or in
paert through a tender offer. The conversion is set in the ratio of 167 ordinary shares for every 1,000
preference shares w a face value of Bs 10 cach.

The preference shares will be redeemed after five years of the sssuance if the conversion option is not offered
by the company (o preference shareholders or the preference shareholders do ned opt for e conversion optisn.

Reaate ool dlivichend
The preference shurcholders have a preferred right of dividend @ 8.5% per annum on a comulative hasis,

Shakargan) Mills Linuted
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5300 Preference shares of the company held by associated undenakings as at yvear end are a< follows:

(M 25
(™0, of shares)
Asion Stock Fund Limited 18I 000 180,000
% Crescent Commercial Bank Limited 10N IRLEIEL L]
Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited 2,999 3946 2,999 196
The Crescent Textile Mills Limited 2. 740,050 2,746,050
Premier Insurance Company of Pakistan Limied 5,125 53,125

69T 6,978,571

2k 2005
{Ruptes in thousand
4, Long term advances
Total advance from leasing companics - 10,674
Less: Cwrrent portion shown under current liahilities - 1802

g_ ) - 1.872

These have been iwansferred 1o liabilities against assets subject o finance lease during the yvear, on receipt of
TCAPECTIvE a5Sels.

2006 2005
(Rupecs in thousand)
Iy Liabilities against assets subject o finance lease

Present value of minimum lease payments 03718 257,780
Less: Cumrent portion shown under cument liahbilities T 725
131,727 183,52

The minimum lease payments have been discounted o1 an imphicit iterest rate ranging from &69% w1 7.55%
1o arrive af their present value. Rentals are paid in monthlyfquariedyfsemi-anmnual installments and in case
of diefault in any payment, an additional charge at the rate of 3% o 206 shall be paid. The lessee has the
opion to purchase the asseis after expiry of the lease term.

Taxes, repairs and insurance costs are 1o be bome by the company. In case of early wermination of lease. the
lessee shall pay entire wmount of rentals for unexpired period of lease agreement,

%
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The amount of future payments of the lease and the period in which these payments will become due are s

Follows:
Minimum Future Present value of lesse
Lease finance liahility
payments ookl 20 ~ I
(Rupees in thowsand )
Nt lwter than one year 16,874 TlL.a9 74.251
Lates thai one vear and not
later than five years 13,982 131.727 183,520
30830 203718 257,780
I Employees' retirement benelils
Mole 2006 s
({Rupees in thousand i
The amounts recopnized in the balance sheet wre w follows:
Pension fund = mote 11,1 4451 1132
Gratuity fund - note 11.2 12598 rl._‘H_Lij
2151 267
LT Pension Fund
Present valse of defined benefit obligations [[ITATRE 105657
Fair value of plan assets (116,759 (SHLER )
Mon vested (past service) cost to be
recognized in later periods (8505 (10,028
Unrecognized aciuarial gains 21267 64348
Liability as af Seplember 30 4,951 rZEP
Linkility as at October | 31333 .08
Charge 1o profit and loss account 2963 5,465
Contribution by the company (3244 (65016

Liability a5 a8 September 30

193] 2232

Fair value of plan assets include Term Finance Centificates and Preference Shares of the company whose
fair values as a1 September 30, 2006 are Bs 0505 million (2005: Rs 1517 million) and Bs 3.5 million

{2005: Rz 2.75 million ) respectively.

Shakarganj Mills Limited
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Ciratwity Tund

Present value of defined benefit obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Unrecognived actuanizl guins

Asset as at Seprember 30

Asset as al October |

Charge e profit and loss account
Contribution by the company
Assel sl September 30

20y 2iME
{Rupees in thousand)

23,172 22,668
130,235 (25.057)
4,465 454
12,59%) T 156a)

(1, 965)
14629
(2.262)
12,508)

Fair value of plan assets include Term Finance Certificates and Prefercisce Shares of the company whise
fair vilues as ot Seprember 30, 2006 are Rs (0169 million {2005: Rs 0,507 million ) and K= 0.5 million

(2005: Bs 165 million) respectively,

Charge o profie amd boss acoount Tor the yvea CONPRSes:

{ Riipreics im thousand j

Pension Tund Giratuity Tund
20003 2005 2UHM: 2005
Current service cost 004 4.573 200K 1687
Interest cost for the year 508 TA480 2,040 1.694
Expected return on plan assels (9083) (T80} {2,508 12,2600
Recogmition of past service cost 1433 1,433 - -
5503 5465 1620 113}

Deferred income

This represents the unamaontized balance of excess of sale proceeds over carrying amount of plint and

machinery on sale and lease back transaction with finencial institutions,

The defierred income is being amorised each year over the respective period of the lepse term, The amount
credited to the profit and loss account during the year was Bs 2413 million (2005: Rs 2,116 million),

%
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13, Current portion of long term liabhilities
Long term Dinances

Laong term advances
Liabalities against assets subject to finance lease

4. Short term borrowings - secured
Shon term minning finances

Export refinance
Short term lnonces

4.1 Short term miiing finances

Running finances available from a consortinm of commercial banks under mark-up EFANZEmEns il o

= note §
- it &
- mote 10

= nevie 4.1
- Aok 14,2
- noe 14,3

2(HMx

2005

{Rupees in thowsand )

SOT 184

71991

579,175

3930188
REIR
1,290,845

5,580,721

T asEny

2O 58

iy, 754
1802
74,251

3496543
1iH14 30
MR

Fs 4314 million (2005 Rs 4,549 million) The e of mark-up range from Re 0.2795 w0 Be 0, 3849 per
R LOGK per diem on the outstanding balance or pant thereol. The aggregate running finanees are secured
against pledge of stock-in-tride and marketable securitics and regisiersd hypothecation clarge on current

assets of the company,

142 Expaorn refinmmee

The company hies obtained export finance focilities aggregating (o Bs 350 millian (2005: Rx 289 million) |
The rates of mark-up rnge from Re (L1921 1o Re 02055 per B 1O per dicm or pirt thereof. The
aggregste cxport and import finances ane secured against lien on export contracts aivd ranking charge on

currenl assets of the company.

4.5 Shaat term figinces

Shon term finance facilitkes available from a consortium of commereial banks wder muark-up aringensnis
amaoun to Bs LS00 million (2005:Rs $57 million). The rates of mark-up range from Re 01584 10 Re 10,3652

per B LIKKY per diem on the balance sutstanding, These ane secured against registercd chirge on cument

assets of the company.

OF the aggregane facility of Rs 350 million (3005: Rs 116.778 million) for opening letters of credit and

R 4,500 million (20035: Bs 89,996 million) for pusrantees, the amount wiilized a1 Seprember 10, 2006 was

R 44778 million (2005: Rs 22,135 million) and Bs 89,996 million (HIS: B9 90 million) respectively.
The aggregate facilities of letter of credits are secured against lien over shipping/import docsments, The
aggregate facilitics for gunrantees are secured against margin deposits referred 10 in note 20, pledge of
murketable securities and charge on current assets of the company,

Shokarganj Mills Limited
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15.  Trde and other payables

20 2005
{Rupees in thousand )

Trake creditors = maote 15,1 196,101 12 S
Advances from customers 95N 10,0r)
" Securnily deposits - movie 152 - 5220 1,738
Acerued linbilitges 4, A8 34200
Workers' profil panticipation fund - mobe 15.3 Ell 9517
Sales tax puyable 5087 -
Uncluimed dividend 1,744
(Mhers = mnter 154 1.7
B B0t
151 Trade creditors inclede amount due 1o related partics Rs 2636 million (20035: Bs 1.206 million).
152 These are nterest free and refundable on completion of contmicts,
UMMy 2iHn
{Rupees in thousand)
153 Workers' profil panicipation fund
As at October | 9.517 11308
Interest charged dering the year 257 412
Prowision for the vear - 47w
0.TT4 20195
Less: Payments made during the year B4 1,682
As @l September 3 M) 9517
154 Included in oaber liahilities are provisions amounting o Bs 32334 million (2006 Rs 32334 million) in

respect of probable loss from pending litigation of the company against Sales ax suthorities amd the Excise

department. There has been no movement in these provisions during the year

I, Accrued Dnance cost

Accrocd |'e'|;l|‘l!-1.||’!| il

= Long term fineces

- Liabdlities against assets subpect 1o Nnance leases
- Short term borrowings

26 2005
{Rupees in thowsand

93,523 £3,955

1554 1,734
ed 62 66085

159469 151.50M

%
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Contingencies and commitments

Contingencies

The eompany has issued following pusrantees:

Hank guaramtes of Rs 86.50 (2005 Rs 56.50) million in favoor of S Nonhen Gas Pipelines Limited
against performance of contracts.

Bank puaranice in favour of The Administrator of Zila Council, Thang against Exit tax payable (o Zila
Council amounting w Rx 3,125 (2005 3.12%) million.

Other bank guarantees appregating to Rs 0,371 (2005: 0,371 million.

Cross corporate guarantee in Favour of Allied Bank Limited 1o secure long term finance Fecility availed by
the company’s subsidiary, Shakarganj Food Products Limited of Bs 467 million (2005: Nil),

L IIII:I'IIIIItIIJq,'|I|'|\.

The company has the following commitments in respect of

Leters of credit other than capital expendimre Rs 2507 (3005 Bs 2393 million,
Contract for capital expendire amounting 1o Bs 132,484 (2005; Ks 161,722 million,

Property, plant and equipment

T ] .
Cind b bard| [ dsted [ A ! Phossd b
e TE] ol . 3t eprryaalion chargs! drprrcisie. el K ol
rphreitar b, pirmber M, Sepatnsber 4, ket Sepbrmbvr M. Sopbiber M, gl i
Jeas el 2, b L LTS ] D LY
Ptk Lusel [RR 42380 Mram RERETT]
By and rasds oa
Hrvchenkd Laset AL IBLTaE 6T (I 16450 132, B R 534
Pant and machisery LA 5y L RLR. ] KL RLT] BT 155 541 URLTERT] 424
RS (A1
Tenedn amd oqaipamen sl 14,141 SLL ] ) f417 T2 [ s ] 1020
Water, ekt il
weiphbridpe cquipmon BLAY L] bLAR T 1 Al a5.49 1587 (B8]
Pi® Tk
Farnitery ami Fivtures Ll 4w g 15872 1K} (LAR]] 16T ([5]
fTEiN (] ;'_'.
e rpoper N aAn & i PN [LREY] 3% atdas Imaax o
(L) (Ll
Vehsclre Hhaz LML BI554 5150 bo.ak AATT N u
(B L0 Y] AT
Litowabony Eopapmmom (R a4 LA Fa B Tel 2 T  Bidn ] Sl
Armmn sl smmsand s L] il T | i I® I
Eibyary Bussy LR ] A L TAKT LESY Bant F i
K] (L1}
nie T inm0m Tl samen 1386021 T o Lall 163 i, D A2
(3742 15
o T T Ty (TR KiTT] (ETET
LRSS ib, i M)
The carrying amount of frechold lad, buildings and plin and machinery would have been Bs 234 510
(20052 R 192610 million), Bs 274155 (3005 Bs | 36667 million) and Bs 3,354,420 (2005 Kx 1.323.222
million} respectively, had there been no revaluation. pe
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18,2

19,

2010 2005
{Rupees in thousand
The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:
Capital work-in-progress - unallocated expenditure - mobe 2002 185 1654
Cost of sales (including depresiation of
Eix 21,745 million during the trial run period
of mew facility capitalized during the yearp - note 32 il 400 121 469
Adminisirative expenses - ot 33 15410 20,212
143,335
[hisgumal of property, plant and equipmeni
1 Rupaees in thaousamd |
Mvrwmiailsed
Partboulars of mscis Seld 1o Cnl depreciation Hossk; valles Sale p :_\ Hllade off dis
Plast and Machinery {hutuiche party - Trides Ciodon MGk Lamsied | 2594 TA%4 810 L e potistanty
Virlkicles Usmming oempanies - ab and ko back
Furat Nafusruad Bash Medataha .40 1,10 L300 L1 ] Nepuinin
Fira Namood Bask Modaraha 4108 i LAt ] 519% &
Fayal Fask 1180 b 2 b 1] &
Fayual Bk L ILY) e alIETY &=
Sulrbdissy cempany
Shakarpan| Food Prodects Limied AT L] 817 (11} Nrpotiation
Shabarpan| Food Prodecs Limied el e b} S -
Employors
Kashif Rara Karmi L] El e (1L1] Nrpodistan
Mukbiar Abznad 151 L1l = 138 o
Imtir Abmmasd LEN} 156 [FT} 19 -da-
Al Wi Farocg Y ml 40 mn oy
iabraiy Abmal k] b 151 I da
N Ali L1} 134 27 45 da
ia Abmmed m 1) &h a3 -iba-
Fabnd Mlujishy m 35 ™ 7 e
Chamsicke gty - Muhartmad Yosal ik 545 I W5 da
[be iriscts having book valur bl B 5000080 1158 MR a8 1188
gﬂ‘*‘ _|A1.:r._: § 2l F0 LA

Acssets subject to finance lease

bormmulated  Phpreciation  Aoromelaied  Bosk valoe
st ms gl Adadhtioss U msl  deprecialion chasge deprociation as al Hatp of
Seplrmber 3, (transfers’  Sepiember M. Seplember ML iramefeng S ber 51, Seplember ML doprrciati
20 ileletiom | I o) lor the year LY oY %
214N 4540 s HETO [LEL ALY R ] 575
(30N [N ]
B 741 15597 TS 4659 L 1] s LITEH b 1]
[ ke 5] 914 E
LEL Bl BLALS 1505 s ] IR Tinx
[ 1] ]
54, 11R kAN EL AT LY 25,7 oLy ] 2TEAE
IE & i3, 180
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended Seprember 30, 2006

20

s

{Ropees in thousand)

9.1 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Capital work-in-progress - unallocated expenditure - ot 20.2 - 1.791
Cost of sales - noe 32 15314 20,740
Administrative expenses - note 33 L 1.365
26,228 25.796
20, Capital work-in-progress
Civil works 24,079 24811
Plam and Machinery - mte 20,1 228075 1,697,936
Unallocated expenditure - note 20,2 AE079 115925
Advances for land, plant and machinery and vehicles I¥5.525 S (46
631,758 2,602,768
M0 W includes an amount of Bs Nil (2005: Rs 101 million) being the cost of machinery financed by
leasing companies.
202 T includes depreciation on property. plant and equipment and leased assets of Rs 00156 million ( 2005:
Rz 1.654 million) and Bs Nil (2005: Rs 1791 million) respectively.
M3 Aggregate balance of capital work in progress includes finance costs of Re 15.857 million (2005
Rs 154,668 million).
ik ooz
{ Rupees in thousand §
21 Biological assets
Sugarcane
Mt 174,929 14,207
Trvmnre: 7413 12,393
152,342 116,640
Rice - muature TART 607
Livesiock « mature N
_ aw 122,787
Mo - current TAL3 12,393
Currem 184,586 110,304
159,540

Shakarganj Mills Limitcd

122,787

.
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Motes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended September 300, 20006

21.1

212

el

The value of sugarcane crops is based on estimated vield of 784 (2005: T83) mounds per acre on cultivated
area of 7623 (2005; 6,602) acres, The value of rice crops is based on the estimated vield of 22 (3005; 27)
mounds [REF alrE on cultvated area of 1,043 { 2005 624) acres. As al Rd:pll:n!ll‘u.-r E0L NHKG, 9T 005 1 44
acres are wwler preparation for wheat cultivation,

ZiWMy
{Rupees in
thousand
Movement during the yewr
Biological assels as af October 1 122,787
Increase due o parchasesfoosts incurred 227133
Cimin arising from changes in fair value less estimated point of sale costs 1.0y
Decreases due 1o hurvest § sales 1 155,950
Biological assels as a1 Seprember 30 191 999

Biological assets were recognized for the first time during 2005, Comparative information is ot presentesd
as il is imprsctical 1o reasonably determine the amount of the assets as on Ociober 1, 2004

20HH6 23
i Rupees in thousand b

Investments - related parties

Available for sabe - noae 22,1 494,170 A S
Addvanie against purchase of shares in subsidiary
comprany Shakargan] Food Products Limaned IS0 INH

BALITO 604946

\watlable Tor sale

Subsidiary company - Al cost - mobe 22.1.1 L] -
Associated companies = aib cosl - mobe 22.1.2 EEL R 423,572
ithiers = il gansl - abe 22.1.3 2.M)

A 3] 423,572
Adld: Comulative Fair valse gain N T34
Less: Impairment boss recognized during the year (3391} |
Fuir valuwe goin 5379 ITL3T4

494,170 i uln

%
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended Seprember 30, 2006

2210 Subspory company - ungquoied
Shakarganj Food Products Limited

1000 { 2005: MNil) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each
Equity held 100% (2008: Nil)

212 Associated compamies
Orunted

Creseent Commercial Bank Limited

5058, 26 (2005: 7.287.626) fully paid erdinary shares of Rs 10 each

Creseent Steel and Allied Produets Limited

1922134 (2005: 1.185.397) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

Crescent Jule Products Lamites)

536,817 (2005 536,817) fully paid ondinary shares of Rs 10 each

Saloway Mot Famd Linnned

17420914 (2005: 16,912,002 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 cach

Acaim Stock Fund Limeied
8T 16,5000 (2005: 18,7 16,5000 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

Unguaoted

Crescent Stundond Buosiness Monagement (Private) Limited
OO0 2005 1 000,000 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

Centeal Depository Company of Pakiscan Limited
1 30,Cnh (30052 Nily fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 100 cach

Crescent Siandand Telecommunications Limited
00,0000 (2005: Nil) fully paid ordinary shases of Rs 10 cach
2203 Chihers

Ulnnipuastiead

Cnescent Giroup Services {Privade ) Limiated
220,000 { 2005: Nily fully paid ordinary shares of Bs 10 cach

2

Shakarganj Mills Limited

2iH 2iHis
{Rupees in thousand)

S, 9EH 3463
35 T2 15,135
141,239 140,232
(LN EL 184, 185
aus7 G957
(ENTTT] =
Linni =
-I_H:_li AHH 423,572
2,200 =
2.2 -

]

A



ar

'i

MNaotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2006

fa

RER

ek e

Investments with face value of Bs 3236046 ( 2005; Bx 21307 million) are pledged as seconity against
shor fernm h.lm1wi115.x relerred moon note 14,

4 O10UTO% shares in Crescent Comimeercial Bank Limited with a Face value of Rs 50,107 million are pledged
i a separate U0 account with the State Bank of Pakistan as per SBPs requirement for granting of license
o Crescem Commercial Bank Limited,

i 2005
{Rupees in thousamd )
Long term loan and deposits
ks - consibered }'mld Lan;
Shakarganj Fousd Products Limied - mote 231 2420
Asian Capital Managemenl Fumnd Limited
related party - meMe 23.2 LEEE L] [LIXLLE
Sui Northern Gus Pipelines Limited - masie 233 4040 4,040
TA564 14,1400
Lass: Current portson shown asder short term advances - el 26 414 -
Th 146 EWE]
Advance to Creek Masina (Privaie) Limited: « il 234 A8ART (RITEE]
Prepayinents (]
Security deposits A5T8EF 0 A0302

15057 4,532

This represents an unsecured, intercst free foan o Shakarganj Food Products Limited, @ 100 % owned
subsidiary of the conpany to meet ils working capital needs, This is repayable on demand, however, it i
o expected o be repaid in the ensuing year and consequently thas has been classified os a long term asset,

Thix is an unsecured, interest free huon extended o Asian Capital Management Fund Linined (ACMEF) 10

meet its working capital requirements. The company intends o utilize this amount o invest in the shares of
ACME pursuam toa planned merger between ACME and another company, Safeway Fund Limited. which
is pemding die 1o relevant regulatory approsals. Conseouently, this his been classified as a long tenm asset.

This represents an un-secured oan given w Sui Nonhern Gas Pipelines Limited for the development of
infrastnscture for supply of natural gas to the plant af Bhone, Mark-up is charged at L35 per annum and is
reveivable annually. This amount is receivable in 10 egual annual installments commencing My, 3007,

This represemis payment for two apariments in the Creek Marina Project pursuant fo a2 Settlement
Agreement entered into by the company and Crewent Standard Tnvestment Bank Limated (CSIBL} wherehy,
principally. in liew of the ameant of Bs 150 miltion owed by CSIBL to the company, the company reccived
2.06%,625 shares in Alwern Energy Limited (AEL), o listed company, at an aggregate vahse of Rs 17,325
millica, assignment of share depesit money of CSIBL in AEL amounting fo Rs 93,737 million and two
upartments in the Creek Marina Project valued st o total of Bs 40 million.

%
Shakargonj Mills Limited



Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended Seplember 30, 2006

2, Deferred waxation
The deferred 1ax asset comprises temporary differences relating o

Accelerated tax depreciation

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Employee retiremnent benefits

Unused iax losses

Diminution in value of invesiments

5. Stores, spares and loose tools
Stores (including in iransit Rs 0,899 million 2005: Nil |
Sparcs
Loose tools

Less:  Provision for obsolete items

200 2008
(Rupees in thowsand)
(671,122 { 280, T
1176 [R50
26 B3
LO3%8R] 2RE.008
20,26 =
K0.5TR 7,200
74311 42,758
24,761 33841
2072 1,227
100, 144 T7.526
NE 1,500

T, i 76,326
Z===-+ —_—

251 Stores and spares include items which may result in fised capital expendiure but are not distinguishahle,

26, Stock-in-trade

Raw materials
Waork-in-process
Finished goods

el 11 s
(Rupees in thousand)

170605 574,125
982 2X521
344870

1,632,219 ;
1

2 HM B41.516
= o

A0 Raw materials and finished goods amounting 1o Rs. 1,802,824 million {2005: Rs 849,408 million) are
pledged with lenders as security agiinst short term borrowings as referred to in note 14,

I7. These are unsecured and considered good.

%
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Notes o the Financial Statements
For the year ended Seprember 30, 2006

2006 2005
: {Rupees in thousand )
28, Investments
Availlable for sale - pote 28,1 2. 246, 00k 2356835
Held for imading - note 28,2 85811 206481
* Held 1o maturity - mote 283 Mo 228610

246277 2791926

280 Availuble for sale

Reluted parties -l eost - e 28.1.1 642,171
Others = eos - note 28.1.2 252408
“KU4,579
Aded: Cumulative fair value gain [ 1.462.756
Less: Impairment loss recognized during the vear -
1 AGZ. 256
T 2356835
& 211 Related panics
Associated companies - quoted
Pukistan Industrial Credit & Investment Corporation Limited
Nil (2005: 30,169,136) Tully paid ordinery shares of Rs 10 cach - 620,503
The Premier Insurance Company of Pakistan Limited
66,507 (2005: 48.155) Nully paid ordinary shares of Bs 5 cach 44 44
Alern Esergy Limited
ATHE (2005: 15000000 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 4,772 19425
E Associated companies - unguoted
Crescent Group Services {Private ) Limited
il (2005: 220,000 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 cach - 23060
416 642,171

~
%
Shakarganj Mills Limited



Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended September 300, 2006

2

L1

(Rupers in thousand)

212 Oihers
Lol

Pukostan Inclusirial Credin & Investmem Corportion Limiled

T 0463 2005: Nil) fully paid ordinary shases of Rs 10 cach ELRTET]

Crescenl Leasing Corpongion Limited

6,752,257 (2005: 6,752,257 fully paid ordinary shares of Bs 10 each RE542

CUresdent Stamband Investment Bank Limsited
10,270,249 (20052 10,064,749} fully paid ordinary shares of Bs 10 each T2

Cneseein Stamband Masdaraha

204 05O (20050 2,034, 500 fully paid ordinary shares of Bs 10 each 2K, 240

Intermationi Housimg Finamee Limitesd

DL 68T SO0 (2005 1,300,000 fully paicd ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 18,750

lutsilee Apimnang amld Weaving Mills Limited
15,584 { MM15; 15,5845 I'I.I“}' pﬂid ul'din:].r_'r' shares of Bs 10 ench -

Prodenteal Discoum & Guarantee House Limiled
Nl (2005: 12,0000 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each =

Pakison Sirategic Allocation Fund Limited

203, 00K (20065 3,340,000 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each RATET]
Unaguaed

Ceniral Jh.‘|\|'-~|l|l|.1. Company of Pakistun Lmated

Nl 20005 1O fully paid ordinary shares of Bs 10 each .

Crescent Standord Telecommmications Limated

Il 20005 30,0000 fully paid ordinary shases of Rs 10 each =

Crescent Stondard Brokerage amd Investment Servives Limited

BROVO00 {1005 MNal) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 22,1H)
TEE 4914

T4.M42

20, 20w

18,750

14,00

ERLLY

252,408

frvestments with a faoe value of Rs 406,510 million (2005: R 338814 million) are pledged as security

against shoet term running finances referred to in pote 14,

%
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended Seplember 30, 2006

2.2 Held for imuling

Related parties - note 2821
Oihers - note 28.2.2

20 Relnvexl parties
Associated compainivs - quated

Pakistan Indusirial Credit & Invesiment Corporation Limited

NIl 2005: 1,205.916) fully paid ordinary shares of Bs 10 each

Crescent Commercial Bank Limited

271987 (2005 150,960 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each
B2Y ihers
Croted

Al Meeran Mutoal Fumd Limined
NIlC2005; 45000801 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

Bunk of Panjab Limited
G5, (K { 2005 Wil p fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

Fosicor Pakesian Limited
M 2005: 5000000 fully paid endinary shares of Bs 10 cach

Crescent | gipang Cosrportion Linvited

I E22 88 (2005 1,746, 188) fully paid ordinary shares of Bs 10 each

D Fumogg Motoes Limiled
il (20005 225,000 fully pard ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

Dewan Sulman Fiber Limirecd
Nl (2005: 2000000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

13, G, Khon Cement Company Limited
IH0LEHHE { 20085 Mily Tully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 cach

Fuatji Fertiliser Cainpany Lt

Nl (2005 J0UHHE fully paid ordinary shares of Bs 10 each

Hubs Poswer Company Limited

Ml {2005 103000 fully paid orcdinary shares of Bs 10 cach
CIF

2004 s
{ Rupees in thowsand

%312 H5. 178

SYARS 121,303

XTI 206,451
f 11T s
{Rupees in thousandy

= 233

29,321 1,849
29,322 85,1

: 4681
580 -

- #32

14.574 24 447

- 5.400)

- ER Rl
Yl -

- 3n07

- 30,07

008 T 706

%
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Motes to the Financial Stalemenis
For the year ended Seplember 30, 2006

20 2005
(Rupees in thoasamd |

¥ 20031 72,706
Iisternationi] Hoosing Fiunee Limiced
1,347, 250 ¢ J005: 1, 106,000 fully paid ondinary shares of Bs 10 each 147 10u618
Induas Movors Comypany Limited i
Nl 25 30,0000 fully paicd ordinaey shares of Rs 10 each = G050
Lscky Cement Company Limited
Ml { 2005 30,0000 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 cach - 2620
Mpstian Clomizan Linvitcd
SN (2005 Ny I'ul|3,- p:ud 1:|'|1,Ii.r||.1r|;I shares of Ba 10 each R | =
Chl el Cios Devebopanean Coaporatian of Pakistun
0000 ¢ 2005 WAl l’ull:.- puirl urdlnury shares of Bs 10 each 319
Pakistun Indusirial Crehie & Investment Corporstion Limined
1 T4 20052 Ml fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 cach 131 »
FICIC Commmercial Bank Limied
Nl NN 155,750 ) I'ullg,I il 1:||1.I't||arr|.- shares of Bx 10 each - 6, Wb
"wkastan Intermational Aidines Corporstion Limited
Ml {2005 125,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Bs 10 each - kY
Pakpstam FTA Limited
Ml (20065 215,000 fully paid ordinary shares of Bs 10 each - 1,591
Pak Soeuks Motors 1"-.|-|1|'-;|t|:|. Limeied
Nil (2005 63,1300 fully paid ondinary shares of Rs 10 cach - 9,533
FICIC Insarance Company Limied 2
1251 ARG (200582 Nilh fully paid ordinary shases of Rs 10 cach 20l
Telecands Limited
Al 2005 20000 fully paid ordinary <hares of Bs 10 each - 2460
TRCE Pakestan Lanngl
Ml {2005 3000 fully paid ordinary shares of Bs 10 each - 3270
Frpack Filins Lomaled
Bl (3005 1005000 fully paid ordinary shares of Bs 100 each - 4.561

=

%

Shakarganj Mills Limied
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended September 300, 2006

283 Held 10 muturiny
Musharika Investmeni - mote 28.3.1
L3 Ceriificate of deposits - mote X8.3.2

Less: Impairmient loss recognized during the year

2004 2005
({Rupees in thausand )
17.934 56,407
159,228 __L'._r:,zl__r,t_
177,162 12610
(hE,702)
111460

.31 This represents investment under musharika arrangement with Crescent Standard Mosdaraba on profi and
loss sharing basis. Consequent o consistent failure of the Musharika to pay profits and in view of the
rapidly deteriorating financial position of the Musharika, the company has assessed its recoverable amount
at Nil and consequently, full casrying amount of the investment his been considered impaired and charged

Q‘ tex the prodin and loss account,

HAD These represcns certificates of investment issued by Crescent Standasd Investment Bank Limited (CSIBL)
anmd carry mark-up it the mate of 8.65% payable quanerly. Ina press reberse issued on August 30, 2006, the
Securitics and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) sued than an “Administrotor’ had been appointed,
womseguent fo investigations into the bank's affairs which revealed financial imegutarities and violaions of
legal recuarements, to protect the interests of the depositors and stkeholders and 10 sifeguand the assets of

the bank, Payment of profits has been suspended by the bank.

Based on the knest available un-audited financial statements isswed by the bank through its Administrator,
the bank has fegative equity and its aggregate liabilities exceed is wial assers by Bs 1687 million. The
exact amount of loss is not ascertainable at this stage, however, in view of the foregoing, the company has

v

considereed it prudent to recognize impairment loss of approximately 309 in the investment.

%
Shakarganj Mills Limited



Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended Seprember 30, 2006

29 Loans, advances, prepayments and other receivables

Lasans to emiplovees - considered god
Current portion of long term loan receivable from
Sut Northemn Gas Pipelises Limited
Advances - considerced gomd

- tor suppliers and contractors - e 29 |
- ROF SURATCAN Erowers - TR 29,2
- Allermn Energy Limited - note 29,3

Adivances o sugarcane growers - considened doubrful

D from rebated parties - unsecured
= considensd good = e 29,4
- eonsidered doubiful - mewe 29,4

Dvidend receivable from related parties
- comispde redd Snud
= comsidered doubtful

Claims recoverable from povernment
» Ingome tax
- Sales tax

Prepayments
Margins aguinst bank gusrantecs
(hhers

Less: provision against doubtful receivables - note 29.5

201 These relate to normal business of the company and are interest free,

LT 2005
(Rupees in thowsand )

T4
414
41851
11,250
115,368
139475

2.0HH)

1,206 |
25,600 |

29,005

b1
1.0
1.5

26,483

264H3

41,957
1114
0,019
A4 142
(31.795)

2182347

1,085

51828
#0661

9T AR

2000

BRI T8

81,789

17,304
| 23 0136
ETTRET
31,764

LI15
2306

272653

{2.000by

270,653

2E - These relate to nomal business of the company and camy mark-up ranging from 9.25% o 10.16% per annum,

%

Shakanganj Mills Limied
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended September 30, 2006

03 Advance o Altern Energy Limited was given us unsceured sponsor hoan and carrics markup ot the e of
B A62 5% per annum. Subsequent 1o the vear end, consequent 1o a Share Purchuse Agrecment of the company
will Descon Engineers Limited for panial divestment of the company in AEL, the advance along with the
markup thereon has been refunded to the company wnd has thus been classificd s <hort tenm asset.

2ibM 2003
{Rupees in thousand )
24 Duse from relaed parties
Comsidercd goaod
Crescent Sugar and Distillery Limited s =
Crescent Steel and Allbed Produets Limited 74 135
Crescent Stundard Business Monagement {Private) Limited LrE] 245
Crescent Standard Investment Bank Limited #1409

1206 %1750

Considered doubtlul
Crescent Standard Investment Bank Limited 8609 =
Bos s

£ 205

Prowvision against doubaful advances

As at October | 2000 2000
Provision during the year s P
As at September ) 3795 2N

30, Cash and bank balances

Al banks on:
< Raving scoounis = master 31|
- Pak rupees P REA 134
= - Fowergn curmrency - node 30,2 LT . AT0
100, 2wl Sind
- Currem aecouis ET.053 17654
T T N T T
In hand 3022 1,535

LR I T 1§

1 Profit on balances in saving accounts mnges from 0.23% 1o 7255 (2005: 0.25% 10 6.2 %) Frer

LI Foreign currency accounts include US Dollars 5,306 (2005: 5,292 and Euros 710 (2005: T58).

%
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2006
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* Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended Sepiember 30, 2006

L Imter-segment purchises have been eliminatesd from woal figunes.

LY FLLIL
(Rupes in thousand )
2.2 Salaries, wages and other benefits and sugarcane research and
development include following in respect of retirement benefits:

, Pension fund RN
Cirntimity fumd Mg
Provident Tund 4
447
33, Administrative expenses
Salaries, wages wndd ether benefits - noge 33,1 TTTE 40,352
L Repairs and maintenanee K08 (R
] Insuramee 5054 FA%
Vehicle running and mainenance 7881 B
; Traveling and conveyance T M5 L1886
| E Printing and statimary 1954 2430
Electricity and gas 2044 LAle
Tebephone, postage and telegram 4,543 1oEs
] Legal amd professional charpes - mite 33.2 EAH5d A5
| Consultancy amd advisory services 1,324 1A
- Reent, rates and taxes LM 2755
! Staff traiming and development 158 128
| Enteriminmen 2,203 414
} Subscriptions 7862 4412
1 Advenizements 1 623
| Registered office expenses T26 126
| Provision against doubtful receivables 29,795 =
- Bad debis and adviances written off 231 -
| Depreciation on:
:' - propery, plant amd equipment I5420 20,212
! - beased assets 74400 3265
Hhers 1432 2495

2L754 137016

330 Salaries, wages and otser benelits imclude following
in respect of retiremem benefis:

Pension fund LR 23015
Cirtwaty Fund T35 505
Providem fund 1.0k 1106

4.592 1936

| 2
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2006

2 oS
{Rupees in thousand )

312 Prodesseonal services

The charges for professional services include the following
in respect of auditoss” services for:

- Biatulory audit T 425
- Half yearly review 150 150
- Certification charges [ 1L
- Ot of poekel expenses 1 A . §

947 BT

3 Distribution and selling costs

Salaries, wages and other benefins - st 34.1 287 1,310
Freigh and forwanding 55474 45902
H:l.l'ld'i.ll:g aml dhistrbution 1465 1,143
Loading and unloading charges A0 4,427
Sales promotion expenses 506 1,226
Insurance 0, TYR 2,072
Others . o=
TAEEL SET0

M Salaries, wages and oaher benefits include provident fund contribution of Rs 0,098 million (2005: R+ (L056
milliony l‘r}- the company,

20 200E
35, Other operating expenscs (Rupecs i thousand)
Workers Profit Pamicipation Fund - GATH
‘Workers Welfare Fund 512 =
Lo on sale of progerty. plant and equipienat EXUTH 24
Impairment losses on:
- Availuble for sale investments:
classified as long term - nede 23, RL L -
classified a5 shorn term - node 28,1 54,171 -
= Held o maturity investmenis - nodie 283 63,702 -
Merger expenses - 570
Social action [ROERNN EXpnses 4071 . EHd
Met exchange loss 12,041 4005
Donations. = nute 35, | J.722 13,003
Cithers 1T 1.235
183,082 39,165

W Mone of the directors and their spoises had any inlerest in any of the donees,

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended September 30, 2006

200 2005
{Hupees in thousand j
6, (iher operating incomse

Incasime from financial assets

; Profit om sale of investiments A55.384 32307
Realized gain om investments held to maturity 1482 23517
Unrealized gain on investments held for trading 7.6t 24,128
Drividend meome from:

- related partics BRE 44,188
- others 149703 15,178
Underwriting commission 1 64 -

Liaakality written hack s 467
Feturn om bank deposits 240 il

547055 0,245
Inconme from non-TNinancial assets

Scrap sales [ 25907 16.136
e Agriculiural income - e 3 pon3 22 344
= Profit on sale of propeny. plant wnd equipmem - 6,068
Rental incomse 94 | 83
Commission on sale of fentiliser H5 41
Amortizanon of defermed income | 413 2006
(hhers | 54073
il 632 61861
GOTART  NZI0G
W0 Agmculiural income

i arsing on changes in fair value £ initial recognition of
- Fair value of biclogical pssets less estimated point-of-sale costs Loz 122757
3 Fair value of hiolsgical assets harvested less estimated point of sales cost 187,934 4360
(LR N T N
Less: costs of biolegical assets harvested 158,950 144,812
W03~ Fda

37, Finance cost
Indcrest amd lnmk-up A

= Long term finances - node 371 168051 RS
- Shaat terin |'u1mm'ings 497, 202 (LY s
=l - Workers' profit panicipation fund 257 412
' | - Fiance legse 32768 147
Bank charges, commission and cxcise duty 1493 H429
A Others - noie 37.2 2918 .
TOLGRY 27947

%
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Motes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended September 30, 200

This includes preferred dividend of Rs 32,805 million (2005: 25973 million).

ra

This includes penalties aggregating to R, 1.6 mllion kevied by leasing companies dug o delayed payments,

MM i
{Rupees in thousand)
i} Faxation
For the year
= Curren 24,700 28, [HH)
- Deferred (324, 182) 1?-.5.1_8&1
1260, 4R2) 4462
Priogs vear -
- Cument {14,797 LT
= Deferred 15K, 196) 154,146
(TX993) 152,146}
1362 475) 127 684 )

15 1 In view of the available tax bosses, the provision for current taxation represents the minimum tax due under
section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance. 2000, Such minimum fax is availahle for set off against nosmal

tax Hability that may arise in five succeeding 1ax years.

For purposes of current taxation the ax leses available for camry forward as a8 Seplember 30, 2006 are
estimated approximately st Bs 2971 million (2003: Rs 907 million), including assessed 1ax losses of Rs 907

million { 2005; Rs 628 million}.

B2 T charge reconciliston

Nu|n¢|‘1'|1'a| |'¢t.:|:||'||;i|'|a[i:||1 bncl'a.'l.'zri the average tf!'l."cli'\-r.- X riwle
and the applicable tax rate

Applicable tax rate

Tax effect of amowms that ane:

- Chargeable o tax at lower rates

= Exempt for tax parposes

- Mot deductible for 1ax purposes

Tox effect wder presumpive regime and others
Eifect of change in prior years tax

Average elfective tax eate charged to poofil and bt account

35
T ane

(50410
{15.41)

W2 Since the company is in losses, the current lax provision represemts the tax under section 113 of the Incone
Tax Ordinance. 2001, therefore it is impracticable wo prepare the tax charge reconcilison for the year.

%

Shakarganj Mills Limitcd

N



0

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended Seprember 30, 2006

39,

£V ]

L1
.

41

Earnings per share

Basic carnings per share

{Loss)h / profit for the year Hupees
Weighted average number of ondinary

shares in issve during the vear Numbers
Eamings per share - hasic Rupees

[iluted carmings per share

[LLEL R

53477810
1.25

Hestated

2005

27 3R 1N

A8 A0T G55
4,32

There s no dilation of the basic earnings per share of the company as the effect of compiny’s commitinen
to convert 1000 preference shares into 167 ordinary shares of Bs 10 cach s anti-dilutive,

Cash used in operating activities

{ Lovss Wprosiil belone taxation

Aalids Adjustment for:
Diepreciation on property, plant and eoquipment
Depreciation on leased assels
Amortization of deferred income
Liability wrinen back
Lawss ¢ (profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment
Impairmeet losses on investments
Ciabn on sale of invesiments
Prosvision against doubaful receivables
Bad debis amd advavces written off
Unrealized gain on invesiments held for trding
Proviston for emplovees’ retirement benefits
Dividend ineome
Fair value guin on recognition of biological assets
Finance cost

Profit before working capital changes

Effect on cash low due 1o working capital changes:
{Increase) in stores and spares
{Incremwse) in stock-in-tracde
{Increase) in binlogical assels
ecrease / {incremse) in trede debls
(Increase) in loans, advances, prepaymems and other receivables
{Increase) in invesiments
Inerense  (decrease) in trade and other payubles

20HH

205

{Rupres in thousand)

{295,836} 174,687
T IET.O06 | 133337
26,228 25,796
(2410 12,116y
[ELE] -
‘ 3.00H 116,18
159,204
{38584 -
20,705
e ]
(7 {24128}
7.502 555
| (150,285 549, 30
| {30,013) £22.344)
TOL6EY | | 279447
60,7 261 331141
A SI0H3R
123.04) | FRIET
(RE2,29%0) (476.0926)
{30, 1949} (100, 443)
113616 {214,048
(33.342) {195,329)
ca (324,283
67712
(796821
(451,931

%
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended Seprember 30, 2006

41, Remuneration of Chiel Executive, Directors and Executives

L1 The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the year for remuneration, including cenain
benefits, to the Chiel Executive, full time working directors and executives of the Company is as Tollows:

IHrector — Execulivies

2006 205 2HM 205
(Rupees in thousand)  (Rupees in thousand)

Munagerial remuneration TN 1,200 17,9100 15,735
Contribution to provident fund, gratuity
and pension funds 3 5 5501 2.3
Production incentives = - 1 3ih -
House rent 405 540 6507 54983
Unilaties Uil (el 1.761 1.573
Heimbarsable expenses 210 2,705 552 BOS
Oithers - 57 1.0 1036
1516 4,697 33472 27,8495
Mumber of persons 1 1 13 13

412 The Company also provedes some of its executives with company maintained cars.

413 Aggregate amount charged in the financial stements for the year for fee o 8 dinectors (05 5 direcions)
wars s 6O (20005: Rs 1600,

%
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= Motes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended September 30, 2006

>

Related Pany Disclosures

The refated parties comprise associated undenakings, other related companics and key management
persannel. The company in the normal course of business carries oul transections with vierious related
parties. Amownts dise from and due 1o related panties are shown snder receivables mmd pavables and
remuneration of the key management personnel is disclosed in note 41, Other significant transactions with

related partics are as follows:

Helitionship with the company  Nature of ransactisns

i Associated Undenakings

i, (her related partices

1. Paast employment
benefit plans

Purchise of goods and services
Aale of poads and services
Shine of comman expenses
Lense remtals paicd

Dividend inconse

Insurance preminm paid
Repayment of long term loan
Finance cost paid

Expenses incurred on behalf of ihe company
Receipt of funds on behalf of the company
Fayments mide tofon behalf of the company
Purchase of marketable securities

Sale of propeny, plant amd equipmen

Share deposit money given

Imterest free boan given

Expense charged in respect of retiremem
henefit plans

2006

2005

{Rupees in thousand)

i 591
65,379
76
1,233
ABS

AN
150,930
177407

17525

1127

AS0LANHY
0420

11137

T20
240,040
5,083
8312
44,188
2204
2190
fiid

1,420

425,837
168,177

LA

Adl transactions with relmed parties have been carvied out on commercial terms and conditions

%
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Notes 1o the Financial Statements
Fuor the year ended September 30, 200k

43

44

Capaciiy and production

Hugar
Rated crushing capacity -

O the basis of 140 days (2005: 160 days) M. Toms
Actual cane crushed M. Tons

The low crushing was due o shomage of sugarcane due o impact
of Feost atrack i .Iululur'_r My ancl unsuatable weather conditions

Iillery
O the Basis of 270 days (20065 270 days) working Laters
Actual production Liters

The lovw productaom of ethonol was due (o du:umgc of
raw meaterials and lack of available onders Trom customers

Particle baard
O the basis of 100 days (2005: 200 days) working Cubic meter

Actial |||'u-sll|.||.'l'i|.m Cubic meder

The lovr production of particle board was due 1o shortage of baggase.

Texnile
Capacity (convened in 20s counts) Kegs
Actual production (converted in 2k counts) Kgs

The bew production of yam was due to stoppages in electncity supply

and shut-down 1:l|.|!|iull for s mantenance works,

Number of employees

The company employed 2,147 employees as at September 30, 20006 { 2005

Shakargan) Mills Limated

2240000
1,288,547

43, Db, M
276256110

SAMH)
1477

K500, 261
TRV NS

AT,

2003

1 L0000
1,324,510

43,200,000
33245064

RLL]
1584

5,809,263
1952951
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For the year ended Sepiember 30, 2006
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For the year ended September 340, 2006
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Fimuncial assets and liabilities
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended September 30, 2006
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b

il

46,2

Fananiial risk management ohjectives

The company finanees it operstions through equity, borrowings and manggensent of working capatal with 3
View o maintaining a reasonable mix between the varions sources of Tfinamce s minimize risk. Taken os a
whode, risks arising from the company's financial instruments is limited as there is o S (Nt X prsune
tor market risk in respect of such insruments, The company manages its exposure o Nancial risk in ihe
following manner:

Concemration of credil rink

Credin risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting dme if counter partics
Failed conmpletely 1o perform as contracied. The company s credit risk primarily attributable o s rrade
debits and its balances at banks. The credit risk on liguid funds is limited because the counter parties ane
ks with reasombly high eredin satiiges, Out of the wial financial assets of Bs 3946 million (4005 Rs 4,147
million}, the finmwinl assets which are subject to eredin risk amount 10 Bs 329435 million (2005 Bs 4145
millionh. The company believes that it is nol expesed o major concentration of credit risk as exposure is
spread over a large number of counter partics in case of trude debis, To minkige exposure to eredin risk, the
compiny applies credin limies 1o its customers.

Curreney nsk

Currency risk is the risk thae the value of o financial insrument will Auctsae due o chamges in foreign
exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due o trnsactions with
foreign buyers and suppliers. The company believes that it is not exposed 1o major foreign exchange risk,

lnideresd male sk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the volue of a fnancial instroment will Muctoae dise o changes in markes
interest rates, The company borrows at fixed and market based rates and as such the risk is minimized,
Significant intenest rate risk exposures are primarily managed by a mix of borrowings m fixed and variable
interest mtes and comtmcting floor and cap of interest mes as refermed 1o in note 3.

Liggueiahiny risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that an eoterprise will envounter difficulty in raising funds 1o mect commitments
associnted with finaneial instroments. The company Follows an effective cash management and planning
policy to ensure availability of funds. The company also aims at maimaining Aexibility in funding by
keeping commitied credie lines available,

Fair value of Timancial assets and liabilities
The carrying values of all financial assets and linbilities reflected in e Dmmneial stalcments approxInie
their fair values, Fair value is determined on the basis of shjective evidenee a1 each reporting date,

[Xite of awthorzation of issue

These financial sttements were authorized for issue on February 03, 2007 by the boand of directors of the
COMPnY.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended Seprember 30, 20

48,  Events afier the balance sheet date

The Board has recommended 1o issue bonus shares in proportion of Nil (2005; 15) bonus shares for every
106 oeclinary shares held.

49, Corresponding figures

Previous year's figures have been rearranged, wherever necessary for the purposes of comparison, =
Significant re-arrangements made are as follows:

(Rupecs in

thousand)
Classified from Loans, advances, deposils, prepayments and other receivables 1o
Long term loans and deposits
« Advance to Creek Marina 15044 M}
Classafied from Investments 1o Long term loans and deposits
- Asian Capital Management Fund

Vi, B &
Classified from Cash and bank 1o Loans, advances. deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

- Balance with Crescent Standard Invesment Bank Limited K409

The above figures have been re-amanged as the re-classification made is considered more appropriate for
the purpose of presentation,

Thassergmnlias

Chiel F..:acullv:a Chairman

%
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A. F. FERGUSON & CoO.

& et fue of

Procewstgrsoust(Gorers @

Auditors” Report to the Members

Wee have sudited the annexed consolidated financial
slatersents comprising consolidated balance sheet
of Shakarganj Mulls Liowited and its subsidiary
company &s al Seprember 30, 2006 and the related
comsalidated profit and loss aceount, consoliduted
cash flow statement and consolidated staement of
changes im cquity together with the notes forming
part thereof, For the vear then ended. We have
also expressed separate opinian on the Tinancial
sttements of Shakarganj Mills Limited except for
the financinl statements of its subsidiary company,

Shakasgan) Food Products Limited (Formerly A, M,

Fruit Products (Private) Limited), which were
reviewesl in aceondance with International Standurd
on Auditing applicable to review engagements by
anather firm of asditors, whose report has been
Furnished (o s and our opanion, i so G os it relates
o the amounts inclheded for such company. is based
solely om the review report of such other puditors,
These finuncial statensents aie the respoissabiliy

of the Holding Company”s management, Our
respaonsibility is o express an opinion on these
Tinancial statements based on our adin,

Our audit was conducted v accordance with the
Intermational Standords on Auditing and accondingly
inclisded such tests of accounting recosds and such
other suditing procedures a5 we considered necessary
in the circumstances,

Giroup's share of income from associated companics
of Rs 27882 million shown in the consolidated
profil and less account and in note 23,1 (o the
consalidated financial stalements i based on
unaudited financial statements of these associated
ﬂ,'mnpqu'n,:a.,

A0 Fergunsn & Co.

Charbered Arcoustist:

505 5069, S Floos, Alsigh Baldng
PO Box 39, Shahrafve O+ Aram
Eahue, Pakikan

Todepstecna TORETD e T T
(DY B30T 700

Fax IO BB 155l

F-rmasl Tergronbien. fel Dl

Except for the effect, if any, of the matter referned
io in ihe preceding paragraph, in our opinion the
comsalidated financial statements present fairly the
fimancial position of Shakarganj Mills Limited amd
its subsidiary company as ol Seplember 30, 20K
amid the resulis of their operations for the year
then enaded.,

Chartered Accoumants

Lahore, February 03, 2007

%
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
As ab Sepiember 30, 2006

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authonsed l;.lpilu.l
- HD o, O ( W05 B0, 0040, 0000) ordinary shares of Bs 10 each
« S0 (HH000HD 2005 500,000, MK preference shares of Rs 10 each

lssued, subscribed and paid up capital
Reserves
Unappropriated profil

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term finances

Long term addvances

Liahalitees against pssets subject to Ninance leise
Employees’ retirement benefits

Deferred income

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Currenl porteon of h:ms term habalines
Short term borrowings - secured

Trade and other payables
Accrued finance cost

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

2

Shokarganj Mills Limited

oG -l

=3

iz
13
14

15

MM 25
{ Raipees in thousand
b LIRIE BN
SN, MY SO0.00
R 1. )
ETh.365 30.537
LaX0.575 1257435
255159 332494
Ldnd 199 1130466
LIST I8l
L5600, 203 | B4, TR
RET2
151,727 183.52% |
1656 a7 |
384 | | s5E7
2AME A0 2083323
S, 175 482A07
5055, 1M JUER S5E P
4TURTT 274421 | -
I51.528 151,54

TAM 2,780

12,450,546

4, =0T Kk

10,113,862
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at September 30, 2006

Mol 2t 2N
(Hupees in thousand)

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Progenty, plant and squipiment 17 4961, 084 1,744, TRT
Intangible issels I8 11943 -
Assels subject W Tinance lease £ 277.341 TR
Capatal work-in-progress M 63,77 2602, 708
Ciommbwill 21 T9. Tk
Hi.q:lh!gi:;il.l sgts 22 7413 12,393
Investmeents - related parties k3 aldd12 LR
Laong term loan and deposits M 941546 M, 532
Deferred tnation 3 3TexTy 7200

766,725 5,540,254

CURRENT ASSETS

Biological assets 22 : 184,580 J_I T, i
Stores, spanes amd [oose ools Mo 121833 T6H. 326
Stock-in-trasde 27 1886061 941,516 |
Trade debis % 220,741 | 330,543 |
Investments 29 | 2446277 2,825,143
Lowans, advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables kL ok THG 270653
Cash and bank balances 3| 1%EaT
541382 4,574,608
12480546

The annexed motes | 52 form an integral pan of these financial sisiements.

Bl fﬁa—,ﬁw

Chiel Executive Chalrman

%
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended September 300, 200

MNode 2 2005

{Rupees in thousand)
Sales iz SAIET &, 502 A6
Cost of sales a3 15,143,938 _AABLOTT)
Girwss profit 266,583 481,350
Administrative expenses 34 1210,754) (127.016)
Dristribution and selling costs 35 (TALERD) (58,170)
Other operating expenses 6 LI45.891) (3, 165)
Orther opesating income v 607,687 199,143
Profit from operations N T TR
Fimance oot 18 1 TOLL689) (279447
(Lowss Wincome from associated companies 127 8H2) 62,556
iLaoss}/ profit before tax (286,527 239000
Taxation
- Giroup 3% 240770
- Associoted companies 1504

349,204 13959
Prafit for the year attributable to squity holders of pareni 62730 263249
Combined eamings per share - basic Rupees 4 | 548

The annexed notes |10 52 form an itegril past of these financial statements,

e e M'-

Chiel Execulive Chalrman

%
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended September 30, 2006

Cash Nows from operating activities

Cash used in operations

Fimance cost P.'I.hl

Taxes paid

Employees' retirement henefits paid
Met (increase) in long term deposits

et cash used in operating activities
Cush Mows from investing activitics

Fixed capital expenditure

Invesiment made

Procecds froan sole £ maturity of investment

Acquisition of subsidary SFPL. net of cash acquined
Inwestrments in associoied companies

Repayvment / (Disbursement) of long term loan to SMGPL
Dividend received

Procecds from sale of property, plant wnd equipment

MNet cosh wsed in investing activities
Cashy Mlivws Trom linancing activities

Procesds from long term finances

Proweerds from isswe of share L‘leiblll

Repayvment of long term finances

Sale proceeds from sale and lease back transaction
J,:mg terim lvances

Net increase in shoe tenn borrowings - secured
Payment of finance bease linhilities

I¥vidend paid

Mel cash from financing activities
Mol (decreaseinerease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equoivalents st the end of the vear

The annexed nodes 1 10 52 form an integral part of these financinl siatements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the vear ended September 30, 2006

Balance g on Semember 30, 204

Final dividend foa the year endod
Sepsember W 3004

Teanslor from surplus on revaluation
of progxerty, plar and equipmem
i1 scoent of incremental deprecialion
Translomed o reservies
Wreferonos Shares ime 3.0 8
Fair value gain dering ke yoar
Share in P vadue e of assaociaied componies
Preadii. for the vear
Halance an on Septembey B0 3008
Tramders s Gencral Reserve
Fair vahug ks dening the yoar
Sebaare i Lair valee veserve of dnsociinl companies

Premmiiiim i oot of prelanose
shargs ipaie 4.1

Bhosaus Shares ol desing the yoar
Right shares isused dufing e year
Trasalicr Enwm serpias on pevaluatan

ol peogerly, plamt and equipmend

o socwam of incnementl depeecialion

Pridin (o4 the yeat

Balance as om Soptembaes W1 30

The annesed sotes | o 32 form an imegpral pan of thewe linancisl eatermenis
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended Seprember 30, 2006

Legal status and nature of  business
Shakarganj Mills Limited (the parent company ) and its subsidiary, Shakarganj Food Produces Limied
{together, 'the group’) ane enganged in the following business:

- manufaciere, purchase and sale of sugar, ethaioel, building material amd v thaigh the bolding
conpany, Shakargang Mills Limited; and

- manutacture and sale of juices, dairy prodiects and other allied products, through the subsidiary company,
Shakarganj Food Products Limited {formerly A, M, Fruit Prodects {Private) Limitecy,

Basis of preparation

These financial stwtensents have been prepased in sccordance with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Ordinance. 1984, Approved accounting
standards. comprise of such International Accounting Standards (LAS) a5 nodified under the provisions of
the Companies Ordinance, 1984, Wherever. the requirements of the Companiex Ordinance, 1984 or
directives ssued by the Secunties and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) differ with the
requirements of these standards, the requirements of Companies Ordinance. 19848 or the requirements of
U suicd directives take precedence.

Standarls, Interpretations and amendments 1o published approved sccountimg stiundiands tha ane ma el

elflechive

The following amendments o existing siandards have been published that ase applicable 1o the group's
financial stwements covering annual perods, beginming on or after the follswing dages:

Effective from
il 1A% 19 - { Amendments | - Employee benelits Otober |, 2006
1 1AS | - Presentation of financial sixtements - capital disclosure October |, 2007
lin} IFRS 3 - Business combinmions Cetober 1. 2007

Aclagtion ol the above amendments would result in an impact on the natere and extent of discloswnes maude
in the fure financial staemems of te group,

Basis of measurement

These financial staiements have been prepared under the histornical coat convention exeept for recognition
af certain employees” retirement benefits o present value as referred w0 in note 4.3, sevaluation of ceruin
preperty, plant and eqpapment as referred 1o in note 4.4, valuation of biolegical assets an Far valse as refemed
o i nede 4.8 and reviduation of certain financial instruments at fair value as referred o in nose 810

The preparation of financial statensents in conformity with the above requirements requires the use of centain
crbical accounting estimates. 1§ alse requires management 1o exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the group's accounting policies, The matters involving a higher degree of judpment or complesity, or ancas
where ssumpiions and estinsates are significant 1o the financial statements, are disclosed in the respective
nedes Lo the financizl slalements.,

Shakarganj Mills Limied
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Notes o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2006

Change in accounting cstimsie

In pursuance of revised Inemational Accounting Standard (IAS) 16 "Property. Plant and Equipment” which
ix applicable for sccounting vears beginning on or after January 1, 2005, the group has fevised the following
WOCOUNRINE eslimites:

The group now charges depreciation on all sdditions o propeny, plant and equipmsent and assets subgect
finance lease from the month in which an asset is acquired or capitalized while no depreciation is charged for
the month in which the asset is disposed ofl. Previously, full year's depreciation was charged on all assels
acquired or capitalized during the year while no depreciation was charged on the assets disposed off during
the year. Such a ehange has been secounted for as a change in an accounting estimate in accordance with
Intemational Accounting Standard (IAS) & " Accounting Policies. Changes in Accouming Estimates and Ermon”,

Hud there been no change in the aceounting estimate. the loss after taxation for the year ended Seplember M0,
2006 would have been higher by Rs 36,16 million, carrying value of property, plant and equipment would
hivee been bower by Bs 47,312 million and corrving value of assets subject w finanee lease would have been
fower by Rs 1,273 million. Consequential effect on profit alter tasation for fulure pericds is not considersd o
b material,

Significant accounting plicies
Principles of consolidation

The comsolidated financial staements include Shakangan Mills Limated sncl all companics in which it direcily

or indirectly contrals, beneficially owns or holds more than 30% of the voting secunties or atherwise has
power o eleet and appoint mose than S0% of its directors. Subsidiarics are consoliduted as from the dane
of acquisition using the purchase method. Under this method, the cost of an acquisition is measured at the
Fair vilue of assels given, equity insnements issued and labilities assamed at the date of the exchange, phis
costs directly attributeble to the acquisition. ldentifiable assets aequired and labalities and contingent
liahilities assumed ina business combination are measured initially at their fair values al the acquisition dae,
irmespective of the extent of any minority interest, The excess of cost of acquisition over the Bsir value of the
group's share of the identifinble net axsers is recorded ws goodwill. I the cost of scquisition is less than the
Fuir value of net msets of e subsidiany sogquired, the difference s recognized direcily an profit and kes account.

Interceanpany transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions between group companies ane
climinuied, Details of the subsidiarics are given in note 51, Investments in associated companies, where the
group has significant influence, are socounted for by the equity method,

Minority interests are that pant of the net results of operations and of et assets of subsidiries alinbatable o
imterests which are not owied by the paremt company,

Taxation

Current

Prowision of current taex is based on the taxable income for the year determined in aceordaeee with (he
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for curment tax is calenlated using prevailing tax mtes
o tax rates expected to apply 1o the profit for the year if enacted. The charge for curremt tax alse inclusdes
sdjustments, where considered necessary, 1o provision for tax made in previous years arising from
assessments framed during the yvear for such vears,

2
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended Seprember 30, 2006

Paeferred

Dieferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences
asising from differcnces between the carrying amount of assets and lisbilities in the financial datements
and the corresponding tax bases vsed in the computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities ane
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized o the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible emporary
differences. wnused tax losses and tax credits can be wiilized.

Diferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected (o apply to the period when the differences
reverse based on tax rates that have been enacied or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax i charged or credited in the income statement, except in the case of items credited o
charged 1o equaty in which case it is included in equity.

Provision is net made for txation which would become payable if retained profits of subsidiaries were
distributed to the parent company, as it is not the intention to distribute more than the dividends. the tax
on which is included in the financial statements.

4.3 Employees’ retirement benefits

The main feature of the schemes operated by the Group for its employees are as follows:

&
-t

Diefined bencfar plons

Purenid

All permanent employees who are in the management eadre of the group panicipate in an approved
Tunded defined benefit pension plan. In addition. there is an approved funded defined benefit gratuity
scheme for all permanent employees, who are in the management cadre of the group subject 1o a
minimum qualifying period of service aceording 10 the terms of employment. Maonthly contributions are
made 10 these funds on the basis of actuarial recommendation a1 the rate of 209% per annum of hasic
salary for pension and 8.33% per anmum of basic solary for gramity. Actwarial valuation for the schemes
was carried out as at September 30, 2004,

Actual returns on plan assets during the year were Bs 16,819 million and Rs 3,294 million for pension
and gratuity funds respectively. The actual returms on plan assets represent the difference between the fair
value of plan assets at the beginning of the year and as at the end of the year after adjustments for
contributions made by the group as reduced by benefiis paid during the vear.

The future contribution rates of these plans include allowances for deficit and sueplus, Projected unit
credit method vsing the following significant assumptions, is used for valuation of these schemes:

Discount rate R
Expected increase in eligible pay B
Expected rate of return on plan assets 105

The parent company policy with regard 10 actuarial gainsfosses is 1o follow minimum recommended
approsch under IAS 19 (revised 2000,

%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2006

Subsachiary

The subsisdiary company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all permenant employees wha
complete prescribed qualifying period of service. The obligations under gratuity scheme i< caleulated on
the basis of last drvwn salary and length of service of the emplovee.

.._
i
LB

Defined comtribution plans

Prarem

Thens 15 an wpproved contributory provident fund Tor all permancnt cmployees, E:‘;.lm-ﬂ menthly contribu-
tieens are mide by the group and employees to the fund in accordinee with the fund rules,

Interest @ 7-85% per annum is payable to the fund on the balances wiilized by the group which is charged
o prafin.

Retirement benefits are payable o stafl on completion of prescribed qualifying period of service under
these schemes,

44 Propery, plant amd equipment
Frechold land, buitdings and plant and machinery of the parent company, as al Seplember 30, 1979 have
been revalued by an independent valuer as of that date and are shown at net revalued figures less
accumulued depreciation and any identified impairment loss. Additions subsequent to thar date are aated
at east less accumulited depreciation and any identified impairment loss. All other propeny. plint and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss. Costs in
relation o cenain propenty, plant and equipment comprises of historical cost, revalued amount and
borrawing costs referred to in note 4,17

Increases i the carrying amount arising on revaluation of propeny. plant and cquipment are credited o
surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment. Decreases thay offser previcus increases of the
same assets are charged against this surplus, all other decreases are charged 1o income. Esch year the
dilference between depreciation based on revalued carrying amount of the asset (the depreciation charged
to the income) and depreciation based on the assets” original cosi is transferred from surplus on
revaluution of property, plant and equipment t unappropristed profit. All transfers toffeom surplus on
revilwation of property, plant and eguipment are net of applicable deferred taxation.

Major repairs and improvements are capitalized. Minor repairs and renewals are charged 1o income. The
£ain or loss on disposal or retirement of an sssel represented by the difference between the sile proceeds
amed the carrying amount of the wsset is recognized as income or expense,

Depreciation on all property, plant and equipment. except land is charged 10 profit on the reducing
balance method so as to write off the cost of an assel over its estimated useful life a1 the annual raies
given in note 17 after taking into sceouni the impaer of their residual values, if considered significant,
The assets” residual values and useful lives are reviewed, at each financial vear end. and adjusted if impact
on depreciation is significant. The group's estimate of the residual value of its property. plant and equipment
s Septeniber 30, 2006 has not sequired any adjustment as its impact is considered insignificant.

Depreciation on additions to propeny. plant and equipment is charged from the month in which the asser

%
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended September 30, 2006

is sequired o caphtalized, while no depreciation is chasged for the month in which the asset is disposed off,
The group assesses ot each bulance sheet date whether there is any indication that property, plant amd
cquipment may be impained. If such indication exisis, the carrying amount of wich assets are reviewed 1o
assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the
respective recovernble amount, assets ane written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting
impairment is recognized in income currently. The recoverable amount s the higher of an sset’s fair value
less cost o sell and value in use, Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge is
addjusted in the Tuture periads 1o allocate the asset's revised camying amount over its estimated useful life.

Subsequent costs are included in the wsset’s carrying amount oF recognized is 3 SERARNE I55C1, 05 APPIOpIIE,
only when it is probable that future cconomic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group arwl
the cost of the item can be measured relisbly, Al other repair and maintename costs are charged 10 income
during the period in which they are incurred.

The gain or loss on dispesal or relirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carryving amount of the xsset 15 recognized as an incomes or expense.

Intungible assets

Expenditure incurred on registration of Trade marks, copy rights and new brand development activities
are capitalized s intangible assets and stated a1 cost less accemulated amontization and any identified
impairment loss. Intangible assets are amonized using the straight lise method over o period of five years.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there 1s any indication that imangible asset may
be impaired, 11 such indication exists, the carrying amount of such assets are reviewed 1o assess whether
they are pecorded in excess of their recoverable amount, Where carrying values exceed the respective
recoverable amount, assets are wrilten down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impurment
Jass is recognized in income currently. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair valoe less
costs 10 sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognised, the amortisation charge is
adjusted in the future periods o allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life,

Expenditure incarred for promotional sctivities is charged to the profit and loss account for the period in
which these are incurred,

Capatil work-in-jroagress
Capital work-in-progress is stated a1 cost less any identificd impaimeent foss,

Ciomlwill

Goodwill {being the difference between consideration paid for new interest in Group companics and
associated companies and the fuir value of the Group's share of their net assets af the date of acquisition)
is capitalised and amonised over its estimated useful life ot an annual rate of 20 %,

Biclogacal assels

HiquE'u_-;jl assets comprise of standing crops and livestock, These ane stated at fair value less estimated
point-of-sabe costs, with any resultant gain or loss recognized in the profit and loss account. The fair
valise of standing crops is based on the suppon price fixed by the Government and other fagiors such .
the estimated crop vield and area under cultivaiion, Fair valee of livestock is estimated on the basis of
market prices of livestock of similar age, breed and genetic merit, Point-of-sale costs include all costs
that would be necessary 1o sell the asseis, exchuding costs necessary to get the assels i the markel.

Shakarganj Mills Limited
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended Seprember 30, 20006

4.9

492

4. 1

4101

4,002

Leases
The group is the lessee:

Finance beascs

Leigrs where the groap s \uh\lilnllull}' all the risks and rewareds ul'uwnunllip are chissailied as hinance
lenszs, Ak inn.:l.-pli-m.. Timance leases are |,'|I.pill;||i..l'¢i,l at the bower af presenl wvalise of minemum lease
saymients under the lease agreensents and the fair value of the assets,

The relmed rental obligations, net of finance cost, are included in liabilities against assets subject o
finance lease as referred to im note 9. The liabilities are classified as current and non-current depending
(T the I:ill!lirig ol the rayaeni.

Each lease payment is allocated berween the liabiliny and finance cost saoas wooachieve o constant mte on
the balance owstanding, The imenes element of the rental is charged 1o profit over the lease term.

Avaets seguired under a finance lease are depreciated over the useful life of the asset on reducing balance
miethaxd 3t the rates given imonode 19 Depreciation on leased assers is charged 1o the profin and loss accowm.

Deprecintion on additions to leased assets is charged from the month in which an asset is scquired while
o depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off.

Operating leases

Leases where o significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classilied as opersting leases, Payments made under operating leases (nel of any incentives received from
the lessor are charged 1o profit on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Invesinsenis

Investments in equity instruments of pssocited companies

Associntes are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not contred. Investments in
associates are pecounted for using the equity method of accounting and are initally recognised al cost,
The Group's investment in associates incledes goodwill (net of any accumulated impainmem boss) idemificd
(111 :lt.:|:|u'ix|li1:l||. The ﬂﬂ.lup'x share of 115 assocites” fuml:-;ll.:quihiliun pnsl-ll\ or hivssaes 1% :I'l.'l'.“j::liiipclj i the
ngoms statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves, The
cumalstive post-aeguisilion movements sre sdjusted against te carrying amaunt of the investment, When
the Ciroup’s share of losses in an associste egquals or exceeds ks interest in the associate, incheding any
other unsecured receivahles, the Group does nol recognize further losses, unless it has incurmed obligations
aor made paymenis on behalf of the associute. Linrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates ane climinated o the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates, Unrcalised losses are also
eliminated vnless the wansscnion provides evidence of an impairment of e asset iansfermed.

Chthwier imvesirmends

Held o muaturiny

Investments with fixed maturity that the management has the intent amd abiliny o hold o ooty are
classified ax held 1w ||'|::I:uril3,- and are iniﬁall}' measured ol cost and at xuhm:qul:lll reparting dates
measured at amorized cost using the effective vield method,

%
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MNotes W the Consolidated Financial Statements |
For the year ended September 300, 20006

L1

]

L)

Available Lor sule

Investmients classified as available for sale, including ivestments in psociated undenakings where the
group docs not have significam influence, are mbially measisred o cost, being the fabr valoe of considerstion
given. At subsequent reporting dates. these investments ane remeasured m fair value, unless fair valis
vannol be reliably measered., Unrealized gains and losses arising from the changes i the Gair

vitlue are included in foir value reserve in the period in which they arise

Investments intended 1o be held for bess than twelve monmths from the balance sheet date o o be seld 10
rase operting capital, ane included in cument assets, all other investments are classificd as non-currem
Munagement determines the n|1|1m'|1u'i\ul:¢ classificmion of fs mvestments at the time of the purchaise und
re-evaluates such designation on o regular hasis,

Held for trading

Investments thal ore seqoired |'|n'rirluci[.m'll:,.I for the purpse ol peneruting pm1'|l Fraan shvort ferm fTucina-
tioms in price are ¢lassified as trading investments and included in current asses, These are initially
mesured o1 cost and at subsequent reporting dites, thesg investments are remexsured at Gur value
Realized amd unrealized gains and losses ansing from changes in fair value are included in set profit or
b o the period in which they arise

The fair valse of pablicly raded secaritics i based on marker prices guoted on Karachi Stock Eschange
an the balonece sheet dute, The investments for which a quoted murket price is mot svailable, are measired
ntcost as b is ml practical o apply any other valuation methodology, ~

All purchases mmld sales of investments are recognized on the wrade doe wivich &5 the date that the group
COETNmAEs Tiw pun.'hu.w or sell the investment, Cost rrrl':'nm.:hl.n: ime huddes iranschion cost,

Al ench balance sheet dnte, the Eroup reviews the cnrryving amaamis of the mvestmens o assess whether
there is any indication that such invesaments have suffersd an impairment loss, 10 any such indication
exists, the recoverable nmount is estimated in order 1o determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any,
Impuarmient bsses are l'l'.'\'llp'l.i:l'ﬂl % expense, Where an in:p.qi.rrn::m Juss :.uh\.n.qun'rﬂl:v reverses, the carmving
amount of the investment is increased o the revised recoverable amount bat Timited 1o the exten of inital
cosd of the invesiment. =

P
Stowes, apares xWl loose (ool
Usable stores and spares are valsed principally o maoving average cost, while items considened obsolete :
are carmied at mil valoe. lBems in transit are volued ai cost |;4:||'||-Pr'ui11.,|.' mvoikce value r.||1u. vther charges
pand thersan

Stk im-irmcle

Stock of raw materials, except Tor those in transii, work-in-process and finished goods are valued
principally at the lower of weighted average cos and net realizoble value, Cost of work-in-process aml
Timeshed Fl.md': c:mpri»c\ comd of direct matenals; labour gl :ppnlprinﬂ: manulncturmg averheaids, Cosi
af own procluced molasses, a by product, 15 determined on the basis of monthly average cost of madasses
purchased from third parties.

Materials in transit are stated ot cost comprising invelce valaes plus other charges paid thereon

Net realizable value signifies the extimated selling price in the ondiniry course of Business less costs
necessary b he incomed in order 1o make a sale




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yvear ended September 30, 2006

4.13

415

.16

4.1

-d

4.18

409

4.0

Financiil assets and hobilities

Financial assets and  (inancial liabilities are recognized when the compuny becomes a parly o the
contractual proviseons of the instrument. Al finuneisl assets and labilives are initially measured al cosi,
Which is the fuir vilte of consderation given and received respectively, These financial assets and
liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value or cost as the ease may be. The particulur measurement
methosds achopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements asseciated with each iem,

Offsetting of financial assers amd financial liabilities

Finuncinl assets and Mnancial liobilities are off<er and the net amount i reported in the financial
statenients only when there is legally enforceable right 1o set off the recognized amount and the company
intendds gither to setle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to setthe the liabilities simultaneously,

Trache 1.|-:.:]'|I:\
Trade debis are carried @ original invoice amount less an estimate made foe doubeiil receivable halanees
b o review of outstanding amounts at the vear end. Bad debas are written off when fdentified,

Cash i osh equivalents

Cash amd cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpese of eash Mow statement
cash and cash equivalents comprise cush in hand, demand deposits, other shom term highly ligui
investments that are readily convernible w known amounts of eaish and which are subject to insignificant
risk of L'h:mgc n valee.

Borrowangs

Laowans and borrowings are secorded at the procecds received, In subsequent periods, bormowings are stated
al amontized cost using the effective yield method, Preference shares, which are redeemable on o apeific
date w1 the option of the holder, are classified as Dabilities, The dividend on thess preference shares is
recognized in the profit and loss account as finance cost, Preference share are clussified as equity 1o the
extent there s conclusive evidence that these will not result in an outflow of another linancinl asset or
exchange of financial assets or liabilittes under conditions that are potentially unfavorable w the company.

Finamce cost s accounted for on an acerual basis,

Creditors, aceruals and AL ESTETTY
Liabilities for creditors and other amounts payable are carried at cost, which is the Fair value of the
consideration 1o be paid in future for the goods andior services received, whether or not billed 1o the Eroup,

Provisions are recognized when the group has a present legal or consiructive obligation as o result of past
events, it i probable will result in an outflow of resources embodying coonomic benefits will be reguined
tor st the obdigation and a reliable estinute of the amount can be made, Provisions are reviewed ot yeur
end amd adjusted to reflect the current best estimute,

Dreferred income

Deferred income represents excess of sale proceeds in relation 1o the carrving amount of e asser
acquired wnder sile and lease back arrangement. Deferred income is amortized on a siesight line busis
awer the period of lease term.

Drerivative financial snstrumenis

These arc initially recorded an cost and are remeasured at fair value st subsequent reparting dates.

%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2006

421 Foreign currencics
All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign correncics are ranshued into rupees at exchange rates
prevailing i the balance sheet date, Transactions in foreign currencies are trnstated into rupees af the
sped rite. All non-monetary items are translated inio rupees al exchange rates prevailing on the dme of
transaction or on the date when fair values are determined.

All exchange differences are charged 1o the profit and loss account,

4.2 Finance cosl
Mark-up, interest and other charges on borrowings are capitalised upto the date of commissioning of the
respective property, plant and equipment, acquired out of the proceeds of such borowings, All other
mark-up, interest and oiler charges are charged o profit.

423 Revenue recognition
Revenue from sales is recognised on dispatch of goods o customerns,

Dividensd on equity investments is recognized ns income when the right of reecipt is established,
Return on deposits is accrued on a time proponion basis by reference 1o the principal outstanding and the
upplicable rate of return.

424 Business sepments
The groap is divided into following business segments:

- Sugar division - manufacture and <ale of sugar;

- Distillery division - manufactere and sale of ethanol:

= Particle board division - manufacture and sale of particle bowrds;

- Texnle division - manufaciure and sale of yarm; and

- Fruin and dairy division - manufaeture and sale of fruit and dairy products

All these business segments are located in approximately the same geographical arca,
4240 Segment et and liabilities

The assets of a segment include all opernting assets used by @ segment and consists principally of operating
cash, receivables, inventories and property, plant and equipment. net off allowancees and PRy isions.,

e,

Sepment liabilines include all operating liabilities consisting principally of deferred lishilitics, other
pavables and acerued Babilities.

The carrying amount of identifinble asscts and liabilities are directly sutributed to respective sepments,
The carrying amount of jointly used assets and Habilities of sugar and allied segments is classified ps
unallocated sssets and liabilies.

4242 Allceation of segment cipenses

Allideniifiable expenses are directly atributed to the respective segments, The jeimtly incwmed expenses
of sugar and allicd segments are allocated on the basis of segment revenues.

Shokargan) Mills Limited




Motes to the Conselidated Financial Statements
For the year ended Seprember 30, 2006

& lssued. subseribed and paid up capital
ZIHM 205 2iMMs 20
(Number of shares) {Bupees in thousand)

Chrdimary

= 2A54A.TYR 13,198,995 Ordinary shares of Bs 10 each

Tully paid in cash ERTIE L 131,950

2154510 15,337,034 Ordinary sharcs of Rs 10 each issued a5 fully
pisicl bonus shares 215445 153,370

12547054 130T Ordinaery shares of Rs 10 each issued as fully
B paicl for consideration other than cash 128,472 103,070
E7.906,494 3%,543.02% 70,305 KK A0

Preference
- 15,210,651 Preference shases of Bs 10 each fully
pasicl in cash - 152,107
STUM 498 54,063,720 579365 540,537
¥
Oredinary shares of the company held by associated endertakings as at vear end are as follows:
20Ny 2005
(Mo of shares)

Asian Stock Fumd Limited 2023504 1 RO, (00D
Crescent Commercial Bank Limited 13 L1
Crescent Jute Products Limited 192,280 167,200
Crescent Stumdard Business Management (Private) Limited - 7003
Crescemt Steel and Allied Products Limited o608 2772.:002
Crescent Sugar Mills & Distillery Limited 26R1,.692 19154906
@ Safeway Mutual Fund Limited P R | 1.572.601
The Crescent Textile Mills Limied A522 M7 323648
Premier Insurance Company of Pakistan Limited 44,510 S0,
Pakistan Industrial Credit & Investment Corporation Limited = 315444

6634 417 11,540,794

S0 Duering the year the pareni company converted 15. 210,691 preference shares into 2,540,184 ordinary
shares of Bs 10 each in the ratio stated in note 7.4 theough an offer o preference sharcholders effectively
at a preminm of Rs 4988 per ordinary share aggregating to Rs 126,705 million,

%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2006

f1. Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Freehold land. buildings and plant and machinery of the parent compary were revathwed by an independen
valser ns an Sepeember 30, 1979 and stated in wote 17 ab appreciated value, The revaluation surplus is nel ol
upyicable deferred income lases.

ZiWn s
(Hupees in thousand b

Revaluation - met of deferred tax 53 3212
Surplus transferred 1o unapproprimed

profit on sceouiit of incremental

depreciation - net of tax 2 29

LI5T ENE L

fil Incremsental depreciation represents the difference between the actual depreciation v buildings wnad plant
and machinery and the equivalen depreciation based on the historical cos) of Baildlings and plant aml

mzchinery,
20H s
(Rupees in thawsand)
T Long term finances
Term finunge certificates - secured - note 7.1 - T0.952
Long term loans - secured - nede 7.2 2O3E63Z 1 865830
Redecmuhle preference shares inon-veting) - ansecunsd - e 7.3 M5T55 345,753
2384387 2191537
Less: Current portion shown under current liabalines
- Term finance certificates - secured - TGS
- Long term bxns - secured [ 534.1B4 | 32802
524,184 40k, T54

1860203 1884743

Tl

These have been repaid during the year

%
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» Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended September 300, 20006

Lamm  Lenader

I ong ter loans = seenned

MM

2IMIE

| Rupers iin thawsand |

Pakistan Indusmal Credit and

Imvestment Conporatssn Limised A i
MACTE Rask Limiicd wATER
MR Bk Liminsd £ Sqn
&HCH Hash Limibod T8 i
NHCH Hamk Limined (TS
A Urrvostmeen [Rank Limaied 20,080
Mantisnal Hank Limited 125 oy
Intomational Housing 554
Finane Lamatod
Oivin Invesiment Hank s M)
Pakisism Limited
Fakivian Kewsn Invesimest s, (M
Crampany {Privase) Linsissd
Symdecale boim g LR
Aakaan Corremercial Bk Limdad 16,100
BICH Hank |imitod T I
Mocran Hask Limitod 47,181
Al [k of Pakiuon Limisad 150800
Tealusiraal Digvebopment
Bank of Pakiviss el M
T

Lk

DLERE LIS

15500

REZLLY

1375

187,500

T4

00

248,006

B, 50

1568 550
- ——=m

Rate of mark-up

SFE

*Hase el + 2% vobpect:
B0 Tl of 7%

150

“Hane ralo wolsect #n
W o 5%

*Har rale welbgscl

T Flisowr o 546

**Raso rale + 13%
subject i Thoor ool 3.5%

**Hase rate « 159

* s v = o 25%

SEehgie fale 4 20
sagbect b Floor of 755
and cap of 19%

==+ PBase neie » 2%
suhject o Poor of 7.4%
sl capood 135

#* B rate + VB subioct
10 Mo of 5 25%

"Base rabe + 15 sulbgect
80 Mooy ol &%

*Hase Falc + 3% wbjoc
o floor of B%

*Bx rale + 2% shjoc
1o Ml oo &5

*Ihane mte + 2

Refer st 7.3

Slark-up
o t “I 4 Lt " Ly B
Tapmartarly imndaliments onading May J0E  CQuanerly
15 ey mamibments ending May 0000 Quarerdy
I sewm-annual inal fnscrs ending ey
Fehiusty 2007
Fayade im hump sum in Sepiember X007 Quanerly
3 wevii-snnual sl lmosts ending
Sepeember 2007 fincluding 1 " Cuarterd
instalimeni smounting 1o Bs. 2578 m
& semi ansus] invtallments cnding
Sepiember 06 Sovan armas]
+ samni asnual insallmenss ending S ansus]
Buly 200
24 monthly instaliments ending
Jammary 2N Mhoaihly
4 wpwra annual imstallments enbing
My Maiik S anial
4 scrmu anssgal insiallmenis ending
August N Suma anitval
9 wmi mnual invallmens ending
Octoksor 20110 Seriid anmual
4 quaniczly installmenis cofing
Mawember 307 (peartcty
B oqual semi aresal (nsisilmssms
aommencing March JE7 Cruanerly
15 quanerly maiallments codisg
Nowember 2000 Quarerly
100 vl aniiial skl
voemmencsg Apnl Nilb Aogud D07 Semi sanual
11F sevmd anmmal installments cading
Agmill 214 imRe 7.3)

® Hase pate: Average sk rale of six-montis Karschi [ner Hank (ffer Rate ("KIBOR ) reset for each, markep peniod.
=" B rates Cint-ofl yickd of the Rast asction of the - months Govermment of Paliian Treaary ills,
=** A ratec SHP Deoosnn e 10 be w1 for each mank-op peviod,

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended September 30, 2006

ae

This represents the loan taken from Industrial Development Bank of Pakistan Limited amd was onginally

repayable in 10 semi annual installments commencing November 2002, The repayment of Toan was
extended by three yenrs by the Stae Bank of Pakistan's ‘Commitiee for Revival of Sick Inclustrial Units” and
i s nepavable by April 2000, Mo markup is ehargeable duning the cumency of the extended period of loan.

The group has Bs 100 million undrwn bormowing Tcility as o September 30, 2006 which is available upo
May 24, 2000, This fecility has been armanged to fingnee the working capital needs of disnllery unil,

Hecuriny

..llilull- I {18} T
These are secured against fiest charge on property. plant ol equipment of the company mnking pan passa
with other creditors,

Lasam 5
It is secured against equitable mongage on immovable propeny financed through the bgn

Rcvany % el 100
These are seeured by way of hy pothecation charge over plunt and machinery of the textile divisson,

Lasn |1
The boan is seeured by first chorge by way of by pothecation over all moveable assers of the company and
equitihle mongage charge over plant and machinery of the satellive fility

Lasam 12 des 14
These are secured against specific charges on plant and machinery finsnced through the respective loans,

Lasim 15
The loan is secured by way of fisst chirge over the assets of the Juice division of the subsidiary company,

Lavan 163

The Toam is secured by way of first charge over property, plant and equipment., inchsding T, building and
plant and machinery, of the dairy division of the subsidiary company. a ranking charge over all assets of the
subsidary company and a cross corporate guarmes of the parcnt company.

Kedeemable prefercnce shores (non-valing ) - wnsecuned

Redeemable Preference shares (noa-voling were issued in 2006 o the shareholders of the parem company
in the ratio of £5 preference shares for every 100 ordinary shares held os on October 22, 2004 and o certiin
pietittional investors in equal proponional. These shares are listed on Lahone and Kamchi Stock Exchanges.
The conrversion option is not binding either on the parent company or the preference sharcholders except in
case of the conversion upon maturity. where the preference sharcholders opts for conversion, subsequent 1o
the company’s failure to pay preferred dividend during the entire tenure,

Terms of redempion
Preference sharehobbers may conven preference shares into ordiniry shares of the parent company af the
endl of every financial veur or the panenl company may convert thess preference shares inte ordinary <hares
in whsle or in pan through a tender offer. The conversion is set in the mtio of 16T erdisary shares for every
IONKD preference shares al a face value of Rs 10 each,

Shakarganj Mills Limited



, Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Feir the vear ended Seplember 30, 2006

L

The preference shares will be redeemed afier five years of the issumee if the conversion option is no
offered by the parent company 1o preference sharcholders or the preference shaseholders do not opt for the
CONVETSIon ogdion.

Rt of dhividleml

The preference shareholders have a preferned right of dividend @ %.5% per annum on a comulative basis.

Preference shares of the parem company held by associated undertakings as an yeor end are as follows:

25 2iME
(Mool shares)
Asian Stwock Fund Limaged (BN 1 Bih, (NN
Crescent Commercial Bank Limited [ECITRTI (ELCITEL]
Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited LR L 2 4R 30G
The Creseent Textale Mills Limited 3.746,050 2 T 46050
Premier Insurance Company of Pakistan Limited 53125 53125

6.978.571 6978571

20N Mk
(Rupees in thousand)
Long term advanges

Total sdvance from leasing companees - 10,674
Lesa: Current portion shown under current labilites - 1,802
- BRT2

These have been transferned (o linbilities against assets subject o finance bease during the year, on receipt of
respective dssels.

2ibIM 2iMs
(Rupees in thousamd )
Liabilities against assets subject o finance lease

Present valoe of minimum lease payments 203,718 257,780
Less: Current portion shown under currem lubilities .80 74,251
131,727 183,529

The minimum lense payments have been discoumted o an implicit interest mte ranging from 6,605 1o 17.53%
fox rravee at their present value. Rentals are paid in monthlyfquarterlySsemi-annual installments and in case
of defaull in any payinent, an sdditional charge at the raie of 3% o 2005 shall be paid. The lessee has the
option to purchase the assets after expiry of the kease o,

Tanes, repairs and insurance costs ane to be born by the company, In case of early termination of lease, the
lessee shall pay entire amout of rentals for wexpired period of lease agreement.

%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended Seprember 30, 2006

L1

([IN]

The amount of future paymems of the lease and the peried in which these payments will become dise arc as

Tollows:
Minimum Future Present value of lease
Lease finance liahility
payments cosl 2006 - LS
{Rupecs in thousand)
Mot later than one vear EE NS 16,874 71891 T4.251
Laster than one year and nol
Tater than five years 145709 13982 131,737 183,529
234,574 30,556 23718 I5T.TRO
Employees' retirement benelits
Mote MM 2005

{ Rupees in thousand)
The amounts recognized in the balance sheet are as follows:

Pension fund - noae 101 4951 232
Ciratuily Tund - nove 10,2 {2,598) i1.965)
Unfunded grawity of subsidiary compaiy 1,303

34656 267

Pension fund

2(HM: 2iWiS
{Hupees in thowsind b
Present value of defined benefit obligations 103K 105,657
Fair vilue of plan assels (116.75%) (95LR31)
Mom vested (past service) cost 10 be
recognized in luer periods (8.595) {10028)
Unrecognized actuarial gains 21.267 6,434
Liabality as ot Sepaember 30 2252
Liability as m Cketober 1 =13 3278
Charge o profit mmd loss accoun 55403 5465
Conitribution by the company 3240 S
Lability s at Seprember 30 4951 0 2232

Fair value of plan assets include Term Finance Cerificates wmd Preference Shares of the parent company
whose Fair values as ot September 30, 2006 are Rs 0.505 million (2005: B 1517 milliony ancd
Rs 3.5 million (2005 Rs 2.75 million) respectively.

Shakarganj Mills Limitesd
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1.2 Girsiny Tuaid

2 s
{Rupees in thousand )
Present value of defined benefit ohligations 23172 22668
Fair value of plan assers 130,235 (25.087)
5 Unrecognized actuarial goins 4465 454
Assed as al Sepiember 30 (25980 (1.965)
Asset as m Okctober 1 (1963 (1712
Charge 1o profit and loss aceount 1629 11200
Contribution by the company (2,262 {1,373)
Assel as at Sepleniber 30 12.59%) (1963}

Fair valie of plan assets include Term Finance Centifiestes and Preference Shares of the company whose
fair values as ot Seprember 30, 2006 are Rs 0,169 million (2005; Bs 0.507 million) and Rs 0.5 million
(2005: R 165 million) respectively,

MLY - Chorge v profit and lss account Tor the vear comprisis:
(Hupees in thousand )

o Pension fund Gratuity Mund

206 2005 2006 2iMI5
Curment service cos 500 4573 2008 1.687
Interest cont for the vear LR 74349 20600 100
Expected renem on plan assets (YR 3) {7.59800 {250 (2. M1)
Recognition of past service cost L4iy 1433 =~

5963 5465 L629 NETH

1. Deferred income
This represents the unamortized balance of excess of sule proceeds over carrying amount of plant amd
5 muchinery on sale and bewse hack transaction with financial institutEons,

The defermed income is being amortized cach year aver the respective peried of the lense term. The amoum
creditid o the profit and loss accoumn during the vear was Bs 2.4 13 million (2005 Bx 2116 million),

”
4
Shakargang Mills Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended Scpiember 30, 2006

12 Current portion of long term abilities

L b
i Huprrs in Usowsand i
Long term finances - ot T 524,184 Aiwh, 754
Lisng term advances - e B - | Bz
Lisbilities spaims assets subject 10 finance lease = e 9 T 251
“ s aaE
I3 Short tenm bomowings - socwned
Shaowt cerm sunming finances = mte 13,1 AW v T Jawn 543
Expom refinanee - mote 13,2 RELES S [ILTEEL
Shaart germ finances - mote 13,3 1L 290LE45 390 TG

—_— e e ——

EhEE 200 R B SE

151 Shwwt torm renmng fmesccs
Hannenz (uhaic 33 slable from 2 cofmortaem of cossmscnal hosd s esder mark -ap sTerpemest. oo b
Res 4959 mallon § 2005 R 4,500 maflions The rate of mark-up range from Bs 002798 e Rs 03549 per
R 1000 per e on the outaanding balance or part ihereol. The aggregate ronning linances wre secured
agrainst pledge of sock-n-irade amd marketable secuntes and regestenad by pothecatvon charge on current
wsets of the group,

132 Lapen refimsnos
The group has obiamed expon finance facilities agpregating o R 353 million (005: Rs 259 million) . The
rades of mark -up tanpe from K 001921 e Bs 02055 por Bs 1000 por dem of pan thoeo!, The agpeepate
cuput and import frmosoes sre soowiod spamd les of cupont costracts s raslong charee on Jerros et
ool the grimep.

133 Skt term fimmwes
Short rerm Oinsnee Tcilines ovarlable from a consomum of commercinl banks under mark-up
st 60 B 1 SO0 million  2005:R 557 million, the rates of mark-up range from Bs ,15548 0 Bs 03652
per B LN per dhicm on the balance outaanding, These are secured apuimst registened charge on cuneant
avacts af ihe prowp.

(O the agpregate faciliey of Bs 350 milleon (005 R | 16,778 millsn) for openmg Lenors of cnedis snd

B 0 S il | N0 R 5% 9596 mallion ) for soarantors, the amsosst silirod @ Soptomber 50 006 wos
B 4 TTR mallson o 065 Bs 22 135 ol b s B 59 %0 msliion 005 59 99 mullea ) respoctney.
The ageregate facihtnes of keter of crodits ane seconcd agamst Ben over shippangfumpsst docsmenis. The
aggreguie facilities for pusrunices e secured against margin deposits. relermed w s aote 0, pladge of
marketable sevurities and charge on current assets of the group,

%
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k4

200 25
(Rupees in thawsand)
Prace amd other payables

Trade creditors - il 14,1 A6 209 162,940
Addvances from customers WHSHR T4
Sceurity deposin + nede 14.2 2210 1.738
Accrued liabilities 577 34210
Workers' profin participation fund = moe 14.3 L] 9517
Sales tax payable 15,087 -

Unchiimed dividend 1.740 1,779
{hiers - nide 14.4 57426 Ed.li!’_l

4THHTT 274421

Trude creditors include amount due 1o related partics Rs 2636 million (2005 Rs 1,206 million k.
These ane interest free wnd refundable on completion of contracis,
i 2iMrs

{Rupees in thousand)
Workers' profil panicipstion fund

Axal October | 9517 11308
Intercst churged during the vear 257 412
Provision for the year - 9T
9,774 2140
Less: Payments made during the vear S.hH4 11,682
As al Sepember 31 R 92,517

Includecd in other liabilities are provisions amounting 1o Rs 32334 million (2005 Rs 32 314 million} in
respect of probuble loss from pending liigation of the company against Sales tas authorities and the Excise
department. There his boen to movement in these provisians during the year.

20Wbs oS
(Rupees in thousand

Accrued fingnee cost

Acerued mark-up on:

= Long term finances 112,500 83,5945

- Liabilitics against assers subjeet to finance leases 1584 1,734

= Shart term bormowings 167,138 66085
281,528 T

K

s
7
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(i)
(i)

(i}
{ivh

(il
{iil

17.

%

Contingencies and commitments

Contingencics

The company hivs issned following guarantees:

Bank guarantiee of Bs 56,50 (2005 Bs 86,500 million in Gvour of S Nohern Cias Pipelines Limited

against performimwnee of contracts.

Bank puaramtes in Gvour of The Administrator of Zila Council. Jhang against Exit tx payoble o Lila -
Council amoaiting 1o Rs 3125 (2005: 3.125) million.

Cither bank pUECCs aggregating 10 B (L3N 0 2005: (3T 1) million,

Cross corpoite guarantee in Gvour of Allied Bank Limited 1 secure long tem finanee fwility availed by

the company’s subsidiory, Shakirganj Food Prodects Limited of Bs 467 million {HMIS: Mall).

Coanomilmenils

The company las the following commitments in respect ol

Laetters of credit oiher than capital expendimne Rs 2,507 (2005 B 23935 million.
Contract for capital expenditure amounting 1o Bs 132433 (2006 Rs 161722 millon,

Propeerty, plant and equipment

i Banpuras i Bt —
Contiren sherd Vv viberd Avqselotyd Deprovstion rcwmalird Mok 12k -
] i Acquhiien  mssl @l Geprialin gl Ny gt anal B ol
Srphevala M, bl ol Sephember M, Sepiember 8, Fddloiin i ol vt M, S LS =
s il mbiar Bl et Bor the yres  eleoliain S, o, %
Trrchobd Lend K 2050 A pLTH] LTI TL]
Haddings aml sk o
Torchwhd! Lmd I 14 T 47547 41973 LLER [T TR [LF ] Vi 474
Pl sl oo Bty TR N paLE ) ME LR ) |24 A hil In? LR R R ] T.
[ RE1T] AL
Trnoks o oy A [ERI1] e AR My BaTY Ly e ] T s [ 1]
Wakar, chocir amd
wriphbndpr rugrecnl Bl | LT UL T8 XAl LT, T o, L Lol
[k} LLLD A
Fursmtase smdl Tiercs CILE] 5 pE) (B o I5AT2 BNT il L EL]] (BEY ] %] —
[{EET L]
MTier il ] 4.505 (-1 LLETH [LELH] nn | Fhas iLm P-ai
(k0] L]
Vihackes LR A5 AT L B (8. i) LEE 114 A1 b
oS0 AT
Lasborateny Fippncai 12 LA Lo 17812 R L 4 T Lo 0
Arvie am! smesessn W b 122 ™ 2 1 L1 4 ]
| abwary howks wARN ik L T R L a 1 Ny k]
[LAL (L]
ET T T R
PR (7.0
s 2w A e 158 &y I, ER2 [EERLL) RXAE  iLTELTET
([ o, | i
The carrying amount of frechold land. buildings and plant and machinery would hiave been R 245 084
(2005: Rs 192.6100 million , Bs 319,116 (2005: Rs 136.667) million and Rs 3,072,993 (2005: -

Rs 1.323.222) million respectively, had there been mo revaluation.
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|'II 3

I8,

{Rupes in thowsand)
T depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:
Capital work-in-progress < unallocated expenditure - mote: 202 185 1654
Cost of sules (including deprecintion of
Rs 21.745 million during the wrial run period
of new Facility capitalized during the year) - ot 33 el 401 121465
Ackministrative expenses - niote 34 25420 0212
ZH'J' ™ 143335
sl of property, plant s aguipment
(R i i il
Accummlaled
Panticulars of msets Sl 1o Cat Hpiraali Ramk valse  Sale procevds Mode of dhpenal
Plaat and Machiners Whepisicde prary - Triten Cioon Ml Lhssined 12994 EA LT SR b Neepeiatnon
Vehiches ladeng omprasies - sabe and b havk
Firs Nasional Bask Modwraby S50 (ALY 44 5500 Neprsistion
Fira Natawead Bk Modaraba LA L 5.0 i R
Fayuil Banl 110 s 15 Liuk < -
Faysal Hanl Loy el 114 Py ] -y
Riclated prasties
Shakarzany Food Products Limsted L] 55 517 &l Nl ulsod
Shalargas) Food Procects Limited L] .1 3 ki) -
Emplayees
Kanhif Raza Karm 1] &l Ll 1o Regoeaston
Mukhesr Aberas 1Kl L] ] 145 o e
Ttz bl L1 185 &4 L] ik
Abdal Wash Faroogs e ! i bl e
ilraiz Ahmad 158 M 5l g <l =
Mt Al L7 kel 7 L] - -
fra Abmal 3 an L] Kl o
dahid Mujgiaha 3 s ™ im - e -
Chibside prarty - Mehamumod Yousal T Lo 11 1w i o -
[ieher wwsets having book valee bebow B 50,000 1% Ha Loa] (ME]
EAN [TE™S 215 2358
T
Intangible asscts
Asvustulated Accumulated ook vals
Cnd s al Uwlmst  amoribation amontbatios ol Rade of
Septemberr M, Aoqubitson w.ﬂ.mn Joquisition  Replember M, s&mnm
5 of subsldlary 200 of subvidiary 2004 %
Patents, cofy fights, bradle
mssarkcs sl bensd
development I5TH 15T - £n a5 [ERC n
200 121714 13174 LA a1 11543
m—t—
L -

%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended September 300, 20006

1%, Assets subject 1o finance lease

Codosal  Addilless’  Costasal  depreciation charge depreciatien
Septemilar 8, Seplember 4, depreciatisn
e

Srpiemlar M, (iransfrry’  Sopbomber 83 Seplember MU (irsmsfees )
T deletionm b 2005 Fr the vrar

Bosk vaer

aal Ralr of
i, L

Plani and nuackineey bl LT 45415 IRuss MATH 15055 Adpne L] 15
[RLTLTT (LR
Wb by [Nl LR 408 2apdy Lk ] Mina a2 i
11218 (L]
T LL A b LIE L] LR = LRy 3613 TR bp 1 (]
(49218 11LT3#0
s g LR TIDR M HTH 24, w0520 b T
A% (%180
UMy 20H05

Il The deprecintion charge for the vear hies been allocated o follows:

Capatal work-in-progress - unallocated expenditure - note 20,2
Curst of sales - note 33
Administrtive expenses - note 34

0. Capital work-in-progress

Cavil works

Plant and h-'Euchi.nq:r}-' = made N, |
Unallocated expendinre = note 2002
Advances for land, plant and machinery and vehicles

{Hupes in thoussnd §

18309
7909
26,228

88,087
2340
354974
IRE515

[TE% T

1.0
20,740

244811
16T Q56
115,925
544G

2602 THE

200 e includes an amount of Bs Nil (2005: 100 million) being the cost of machinery Tinanced by leasing

COREpanes,

MEE Ml inchsdes depreciation on property. plant and equipment wnd lessed assets of Bs 0186 million {200%;

Bx 1654 million) andd B Nil ( 2005: 1,791 million) respectively.

LA Aggregate balance of copital work in progress includes linance costs of Rs 15857 million ( 2005:

Rs 154668 million),

Shakargany Mills Limiied
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended September 300, 2006

%

pede |

006 s
{Rupees in thousand )
Caowsibwill
Balunce as gt October | - -
Acquisition of subsidiary = node 54 79.706 -
79,704 -
Amortization for the year - -
Balance @ at September 30 T4 706 -
Biological assets
Sugarcane
Mature 174,929 104,197
Immasture T413 12,343
182,342 1 1.6
Rice - mature TAHT 6,097
Livestock - mature X170
191,999 122,787
Mon - current 7411 12,3031
Currem 84,586 110304

191,999 22,787

The value of sugarcane crops is based on estimated yield of T84 (2005; TE3) mounds per acre on cultivited
area of 7623 (2008: 6,602} acres. The value of rice crops is based on the estimated yield of 22 (2005: 27)
mounds per acre on cullivated arca of 1,143 (2005: 6241 acres, As at September 30, 2006, 972 { 2005:

A9 ncres are wnder preparation Tor wheat cultivation,

2
{Rupees in
thousand
Muvement dunng the vear
Biodogical assets a5 a1 October | 122,747
Increase due to purchasesfcosts incurmed 27133
Gain arising from changes in Fair value less estimated poing of sale costs 1Lozy
Decreases due to harvest £ sales i 138950
Biobogical assets as a1 September 30 191,314

Biological assets were recognized for the first time during 2005, Comparative informuuion is nol presemad
as itis impractical 1o ressonably determine the amount of the assets w5 on October 1, M4

2N P
(Rupecs in thowsand )
Investments - related parties
In cqquity instruments of associated companies - notie 23,1 LRITE 1 R
Available for sale - mote 23,3 #3520 10HE 346
614,412 ¥

%

Shakarganj Mills Limited




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2006

20Hh 20035
(Rupees in thousand
230 Mo equiny instrements of ssocised companies
Canst 73003 350,100
Brought forwand amounts of post acquisition reserves amd profits
and negative goosdwill recognized dirsctly in profic and loss sccount 24T | 54, 165
612,579 SM2T8
Share of movement in reserves during the year (53,3001 24439
Share of profit for the year
- before taxation [ 127883}
- prowision for axation | 1304
{25, 3%
S30.x02
Less; dividends received during the vear = (1563
Baliwice as on September 30 = nede 23,2 EML302 SR, SHS
20 205

({Rupees in thousand

2 In ity instriments of associated comganies
et

Crescent Stecl and Allied Products Limied
LS22,034 (2005 1, 185397) fully prauel orchimary shares of Bs 10 cach 128,429 76,932
Equity held: 4, 12 % (2005: 4.07 %)

Snleway Mueal Fund Limited
17429914 (2005: 14,524,512 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 cach T 290,023
Equity held: 32.00 % (2005; 32.00 %)

Asian Stock Fund Limited
T8, 706,500 (2005: 18.716,500) fully paid ordinary sharcs of Bs 10 cich 137,126 158,573
Equity held: 20,30 % (2005 30,80 %)

Alpncdeed Texiile Mills Limited
B 360,000 ¢ 2005: Nil) fully pard ordinary shares of Bs 10 each e
Ecpuity held: 45,33 % (2005: Nily

[ et

Crescent Standard Business Management (Private s Limited
ERL NI 20005: 1 ORI fully pasicl ordinary shares of Rs 1 each 2T 3057
Epuity held: 29060 5 (20605, 2960 %)

Crescent Stnaband Telecommunications Limited - mwsle 2301
SOHLAMHY {20085 Millh fully paied ondinary shares of Rs 10 esch
Egquity held: 2488 % ( 30035: Nil)

S30.502 580,545

2

Shokarganj Mills Limited
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

-

FFor the year ended September 30, 2006
Investments in assoctates include goodwill amewrting (o Rs 26,442 million.

2320 Financial Stements of Crescent Standard Telecommunications Linnted (CSTL) hive been drawn uplo
June M 2005 only, which shows a negative cquity of Rs (0.3 million. In the parent company's seperate
fimanganl statements, these have been fully impaired and consequently, the camrying value of the investment
in the comsolidated Mmancinl sttements 15 also reduced o Mil,

-
2522 The growip's share of the results of its principal associaies, all of which sre incorporsied in Pakisian, and iis
share of e wssets (nclsbing gpoodwall and habilites) e as follows:
Percentage
Name interest held  Asseis Liabilities  Hevenues  Profitf{loss)
2005
Crescent Steel and Alled
Provducts Limited 4.07% HO5.036 28000 104,457 11,824
% Safeway Mutwal Fund Limited F2001% 205,641 4617 18874 15.KE13
Asian Stock Fund Limined 200.R0% (R 2,075 (955) (1.165)
Crescent Standard Business
Management (Private) Limited 20.601% 43314 18.516 3.3M0 306
630,944 F3218 125,700 55868
20y
Crescent Steel and Allied
Products Limited 4. 12% 168452 58,945 HE AR 16,562)
Safeway Mutual Fund Limited 32.001% 234819 T.A431 200,354 1504
Asian Stock Fund Limited 200.80%% 133,409 3715 (15,0300 { 18,656
Adjsdeed Textile Mills Limited 45.31% - T4, 106 - -
Crescent Standard Bosiness
Management { Private) Limited 20 G005 43,324 IR.516k 32016 (1,473
Crescent Standard
Telecommunications Limited 24.88% - - - NN
594,034 102,761 U7.259 (28.387)

%

Shakargan) Malls Limised
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2006

2331

The group's investment in Crescent Steel and Allicd Products Limited is less than 20% ba it is consadensd
10 e associate 45 per the requinemenms of 1AS 28 Tnvestments in Associates” because the group has significant
inflisence over the finsncial and operating policies of the company,

Wvanlable for sile

Assocnted L'l:ll!'l]lani.-c:i - i cosl
[ hhers = Wl ot

Add: Comulative fair value giin

Less: Tmpairment loss recognized during the year
Fair value guin

Vasocimted conpunecs

ol

Cresvent Commercial Bank Lomited

- nede 23.3.1
- e 23,32

5058, 1 26 (05 7,287.626) fully paid ordinary shares of Bs 10 csch

Crescent Jute Products Limited

536,817 (2008: 536,817) fully paid ordinsry shares of Rs 10 cach

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

| 30k £ 2005 Mily fully paid ordinary shares of Bs 00 each

(hhers
e

Crescent Group Serviees (Private) Limited

220000 { 2005: MNil) Tally paid ordinary shares of Bs 10 each

UMM

2005

(Rupees in thowsand )

64,958
2200
67.188
15532 |
12,2001 |
632
3520

SRR

L)
foe O3

el |1}
el 1]

Ti4nd

73463

| 2555 J
36563
1D, B

Tid63

73463

These are pssovimted companies under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, however., for the parpose of measurement.
ihese lave been clussified as available for sale’ as the group does not have 2 significant inflocnce over their

aperalions,

Investments with Face value of s 323600 {2003 Rs Nil) are pledged as security against shon tenm bormowings
refierned 1o in mde 13,

Shakarganj Mills Limived




~ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Fow the vear ended September 30, 2006

2

SO10.705 shaves. in Creseent Commencial Bank Limited with o face vitlue of Rs 50,107 million are pledged
ina separate COC account with the Stase Bank of Pakistan as per SBP's requirement for granting of license
o Crescem Commercial Bank Limited,

2 2005
{Rupees in thasusand )
Long term loan and deposits

Losans - considered good 1o:
Acrun Copittl Management Fund Limited

- reluted party - nole 24,1 LMY LT}
Sui Monthem Gas Pipetines Limited - wle 24,2 4. 140 4,140
Hid T oan
Less; Cwrrent portion shown under shor term advances - nie 30 __4i4

13726 T 3o
Aabvance 1o Creek Marina ( Private) Limited:

- mdle 243 M an7 SO
Prepayments 6 160
Security deposits 5783 o Angez
_ 9156 N4.533

This is an unsecured, interest free boan exiended o Asian Capital Management Fund Limited { ACMF) 1o
et s working capital requirements. The company intends to utilize this amoun Bk ivest in the shases of
ACMIE pursiant o a planaed merger between ACMF and another company. Safeway Fund Linited, which
15 pending due 1o relevant regulatory approvals, Consequently, this hus been classified s loaig térm assel.

This represents an un-secured loan given o Sui Northern Gas Fipelines Limited for the development of
infrastructure for supply of nameral gas to the plant at Bhoone, Mark-up is charged at |L5% per annum and is
reccivable annually. This amount is receivable in 10 el annual instillisents commencing May, 2007,

This represents payment for two apartments in the Creek Maring Project pursiant 102 Setilement Agrecment
entered into by the company and Crescent Standard Investment Bank Linited (CSIBL) whereby. principally,
in licu of the amoant of Bs 130 million owed by CSIBL 1o the company. the company received 2,165,625
shares in Altern Encray Limited (AELD), a Tisted company, at an aggregate value of Bs 17,325 million,
msignment of share deposit money of CSIRL in AEL wmeamting 0 Bs 93.737 miflion and two spanments
in the Creek Maring Project valwed an a eotal of Rx 40 million,

7
Z
Shakarganj Mibls Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended September 30, 20046

IJ
N

2.,

2|

Deterred tixation

The deferred 1ax asset comprises temporary differences relating 1o

Accelerated tax depreciation

Surplus on revaluation of propery, plant and equipment
Emplovee retirement benefits

Unused tax losses

Drimimstion in valee of investments

Investments in associated companies

Stores, spares and loose tools

Stores (including in transit Rs 0,899 mallion 2005: Nil §
Spanes

Logse tools

Less:  Provision for obsolete items

2006

s

(Ruptes in thewsand )

67,1220
(k]
T2
(LKL 4] |

B 168
093
2072
123,333

1504
121,833

{280, T
(1913

43
JRE0E

72000

42,758
33841
1,227

TT.826

1,500

T6h,326

Stores and spares include items which may result in fixed capital expenditune bt are nol distinguishable.

Siock-m-trade

Raw marerials

Work-in-process
Finished goods

DiMm

2005

{Rupees in thousand)

1 7iE
2.7
1693755
158601

574025
22521
H4ETD

41516

Raw materials and Gnished goods amounting 1o Rs. 1812925 million (2005: Bs 849408 million) are
pledged with lenders as security against short term borrowings s referred o in noee 13,

Thiese are unsecured and considered good.

Shokargany Mills Limited



» Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended Seprember 30, 2006

ELLE 2005
{Hupees in thousand)
29, Investments

Aviilable for sale = moe 20, 1 I 240 ANy 2052
Held for tnuding =N 29,2 HEEI 2 A5
- Held v maturity - note 29.3 B 228610
2446277
9.1 Avilihle lor sale
Related partics = s ~ node 29001 441 62ITH
Chhers - ol ot - note 34,12 e e 1)
T30, 30 T RULET
Add: Cumulastive fair value gain T 1495 473
Less: Impairment loss recognized during the year (54,171}
Z0HMy 2nE
{Hupees in thousand)
200 Refated parties

Associated companies - guoted
Fakistan Industriel Credit & lovestment Corporation Limited

NIl (2005 308 169,136 Fully paid ordinary shares of Bs 10 each - 626,502
The Premier Insurance Company of Pakisian Limited
06307 (005 48.155) Tully paid ordinary <hares of Rs 5 each 44 44
Altern Energy Limited
FTOM0E (2005 1,500,000 fully paid erdinary shares of Bs 10 cach 4,772 19,425
Associsted companies - unguoted
Crescent Group Services {Private) Limited

Nill (2005: 220,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Bs 10 each - 2.2(%)

45816 42171

%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended Seprember 30, 2006

{1 L Lo
[ Rupees in thousand)
ML (Rl
Cuoted
Fakistan Indusirinl Credic & Investmen Corporation Limited
29 LI0AGS (2005 Nil) fully paid ondinary shares of Rs 10 cach ER T -
Crescent Leasing Corporation Limited
6. 752,257 (2005: 6.752.257) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each HH.242 HE.542
Crescem Standard Investment Bank Limited
DU, 2700, 245 ( 206052 10, 16k, T tully pasd ordinary shares of Bs 10 cach 5412 T4.342
Crescent Standard Modaraba
20615000 ( 1005: 2,034, 500) Tully paid ordinary shases of Bs 10 euch 20240 20006
Internutional Housing Finance Limniwed
LGET SO0 2005: 1,300,000 fully paid orclinary shares of R 10 cach 18,750 185750
Jubilee Spanaing and Weaving Mills Limired
15,554 (2005: 15,584) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 ¢axch - =
Prudemtiol Discount & Guarantes House Limited
Nl (2005: 12.000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 cach 5 168
Pakistan Strategic Allscation Fund Limited
203,000 { 2005; 3, 340,000) fully paid ordinary shases of Bs 10 each 20 334000
Uinguoted
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
Pl (2005: HOOO00) fally paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 cach - 14,000
Crescent Standard Telecommaunications Limited
Nl (0005 3000000 fully paid ordinary shares of Bs 10 cach - 3000
Crescent Standard Brokerage and Investment Services Limited
BRI (2005: Nil) fully paid ardinary shores of Rs 10 each 220N}
728914 352408

%

Shakargan) Mills Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended September 30, 2006

Invesiments with a face value of Rs 406,510 million {2005 Rs 551 884
against short term running finances referred o in note 13,

Helsl for imnding

Related parties = note 29.2.1
(ihers - note 2923

Relmed parties
Associated companies - quoted

Pakistan Industrial Credit & Investment Corporsion Limited
Nil (2005: 1.205.916) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

Crescent Commercial Bank Limited
2UTL987 (2005 150,960) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

millicn) are pledged as security
2006 005
{Rupees in thousand)
2402 BS.1 78
59,449 121,303
RES1 206,481
—_——
o 83319
19,333 1.849
2322 £5.178
| ———— ]

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Fowr thae b g ended .‘;x‘pll.‘fl'l]'l-c.‘l' 30, 206

HL22 Oahers

Ouoted

Al- Meeran Mutual Fund Limites
Wil {2005; 45000800 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 cach

Bank of Punjab Lirmited
65,0000 (2005 Nil) fully paid ordinary shares of Bs 10 cach

Bosagor Pakistan Limited
il (2005: 5000000 Tully paid erdinary shares of Bs 10 each

Crescent Leasing Corporation Limited
1A22,188 (2005: 1,746, 188) fully paid ordinary shares of Bs 10 each

Dewan Faroog Motors Limited
il (M5 2250000 fully paid ordinary shares of Bs 10 each

Dewan Salman Fiker Limited
NI 2005 20000000 fully paid ordinary shares of Bs 10 each

D, G. Khan Cement Company Limited
10,000 { 2005: il Tully paid erdinary shares of Bs 10 each

Fauji Fertilver Company Limited
Ml { 2005: 30,0000 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 cach

Hub Power Company Limited
ML (2005 10300001 fully paid ordinary shares of Bs 10 cach

Infernational Housing Finance Linsited
1.347,250 ( 2005: 1,106,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 cach

frhus Motors Company Linited
il (2005 S0U000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

Lucky Cement Company Limited
il {2005: 500000 fully paid erdinary shares of Hs 10 cach

Mishmt Chunian Limited
B0 {2005 Nil fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

il and Gas Development Conporation of Pakisin
2450000 { 2005: Nil) fully paid ordinary shares of Rx 10 each

CiF

Shakarganj Mills Limited

20 WS
(Hupees in thowsand )
- 4681
3580
- 532
14578 4447
- 5400
- 1170
b =
- 1507
= 0TS
11047 TLGIE
- 6650
J 1620
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* Notes o the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the vear ended September 30, 2006

M) 3

Pakistan Industrial Credit & Investment Corporation Limited
1,799 (2005: Nil) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

PICIC Commercial Bank Limited
Ml (2005:155.750 ) fully paid ordinsry shares of Rs 10 each

Pakistan International Airlines Corporation Limited
Mil (2005 125,0000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

Pakistan FTA Limited
Nl C300E: 215,0000 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

Pak Suzuki Motors Company Limited
Bl {2005: 63,1300 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

PICIC Insurance Company Limited
1,250,486 (2005: Nil) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

Telecards Limted
ML (2006: 200,0000 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

TRG Pakistan Limited
Bl 20005: 300,000) fully paid ordinary shases of Bs 10 each

Tripack Films Limited
Ml {2005: 100,800 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

Helld tor neaturany

Mushanka Investment
Certificale of deposits

Less: Impairment loss recogmized during the yvear

- node 29.3,1
- figde 29.3.2

(Rupees in thousand }

35392 H2.504
13 —

- 6,300

- KM

= 1.5%1

- 4,533
23,9040 -

- 2460

- 3.2T0

4,561

50,489 121,300

111 2005

(Rupees in thousand )

17,934 56,407

159,224 172,203

17,062 T A0
03,7025 =

111,460 IR0

S

%

Shakarganj Mills Limited
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended September 30, 20060

Xl

nan

3,

This represents investment under musharikos srrangement with Crescent Standard Modaraba on profit and
loss sharing basis, Consequent to consistent failure of the Musharka to pay profits and in view of the
rapidly deteriorating financial position of the Musharika, the group has assessed ils necoverable amount
Ml and consequenly. full carrying amount of the investment has been considered impaired and charged io
the profit and loss account.

These represents certificates of investment rssued by Crescemt Stamndard Investment Bunk Limited (CSIBL)
and carry mark-up 1 the rate of §.63% pavable quarerly, In a press release issued on August 20, 2006, the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) stated that an "Administrator’ hid been appainted,
consegquent o invesligations info te bank’s affairs which revealed financiol irmegalurities and vioktions of
bepal regquirenents, o protect the interests of the depaositors and stakehobders and to safegund the assets of
the bank. Payment of profits has been suspended by the bank.

Based on the latest available un-puwdited Tinancial statements issued by the bank through its Adminisirator,
the bank has nepative egquity wed i aggregate iabilines exceed its tofal asscts by Bs 1687 million, The
exact amount of loss 15 wol wscertwinable an this stage, however, in view of the foregoing. the growp hus
comsidered it prudent to n.-!.'u:ré'_nin.- i:lllulinllcn[ liss ol appmilmh:ly 0% i the investment.

UMM 15

. {Rupees in thousand)
Loans, advances, prepayments and other receivables

Loans o employees - considered good 1212 1085
Current paartion of long term loan receivable from
Sui Morthem Cas Pipelines Limited 414
Adlvances - considened good T :
- tov suppiers and conteactons - nike M1, 1 TiHL 162 51828
- 1 SALZAFCHTE ZIOWErs - noke 3.2 11,258 1]
< Allern Energy Limited -nofe 30,3 | N5M6E | -
2400810 92489
Addvamees (o sugarcane growers - considered doubiful P 2, [N}
Do from related purties - unsecured )
- comsidened good - note 3404 ik | K1,789
consaderned doubiiul = midie 30,4 2R.69 | -
w505 #1789

Dividend receivable from relited parties

- gonsiderned gomnd 865 | -
- considered doubiful L0 | - ]
1961 -

Claims recoverable from government

= Income tax r BT | ﬁ'ﬁl'_-l—i
- Sales tux 22355 23056

47527 0,340

Prepavmenils 42,7603 0,768

Margins against bank guasantecs 1114 1115
Security deposiis 1. H8ib -

{Mhers 3|_:|.."‘_J‘ 23 My

305, 58] 272653

Less: provision againat doubifisl receivibles - motee 3003 (31,795) {2,000

363,786 370,653

Shakargan) Mills Limated
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Fur the vedar ended September 30, 2006

U |
U2

uLA

4

61,5

3.

Thiese reluse o normal business of the groap and ure interest Tree,
These relate o nommal husaness of the group and carry mark-up rnging Trom 9255 w10, 165 T .

Advance 1o Allern Energy Limited was given as ansecured sponsor loan and carries markiip ol the mie of
BAG2 5% per annum, Subsequem o the vear end, consequen b o Share Purchase Agreement of the company
with Descon Engineers Limited for parial divestment of the company in AEL, the advimee along with the
fmarkups thereon las been refunded (o the group and has this been classified @ 5 shor term asser.

ZUMM 00z
(Bapees in thossand )
I Broni melwted i
Comridered gossd
Crescem Sugar and Distillery Limited {153 -
Crescent Steel and Allicd Prodisces Limined 774 135
Cre=cent Sandund Business Munagement Private) Limited A4 245
Crescent Standand fnvestment Bank Limited = - 1
1,20 K178
Considered doubiiul
Crescent Standand Investment Bank Limited 18,699 -
19505

Provvission dgmitsd doabelul jlvances

As ol Oviober | 2 0HHh ZAMK)
Provvizion during the vear 29,795 =
Ax ol Sepdeniber 30k H.795 2INKD

Costy and bank halonees

AL banks an:

= Ruving pocodmnis =t 31,1
- Puk riipecs HLEE Y 134
- Forelgn currency = noke 31,2 __a 370
T, 20 R
= CHAenl socounts H7.MH) 17004
I8T.A50 15,198
i hasd A IR7 1,538

190,537 19,733
Predii on bilances in saving scoounts ranges froan (L25% to T.25% ( 20005: (,25% w0 6.2 %) [T

Foreign currency accounts include US Dollars 5,306 (2005: 5,392} and Euros 710 2005: T5R)

2

Shakarganj Mills Limited

R - N




Notes (o the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the vear ended Seplember 30, 2006
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended September 30, 2006

5%
LR |

Inter-segment purchases have been eliminated from total figures.

(WM

2005

{ Ruipees in thowsand b

Salaries, wages and other benefits and sugarcane rescarch and development incliude Tollowiing m respect of

retirement benefits:

Pension fund
Chrmiuity fiemd
Provident fuad

Administrative expenses

Salaries, wages amd other benelins
Hepairs and maintenance
Insurance

Wehicle munning amld maintenance
Truveling and conveyance
Primting wnd statiomary

Elecaricity and gus

Teleplone, postage and telegriam
Legal aned professional charges
Cansultancy and advisory services
Rent, rates and taxes
Smfﬁmining il :Er.wl..-lqarrmm
Entertainmint

Subseriptions

Adversements

Registered office expenses

Provision against doubtful receivables

Bl debis and sdvances writien off
Drepreciation on;

- progerty, plant and equipment

- lepsed assels
Others

Salaries, wages and other benefits include following

in respect of retirement benefits:

Pension fund
Ciratuity fund
Prowidbent fund

= node 34,1

- nediz 34,2

ER LY

Hikd
2444
447

70,778
9,508
5958
THRY
7.5
2954
2044
4,540
5,854

14,324
e

158
L3
THG62

441

a6

19,795
2311

25430
TN
14332

211,754

IHE

738
1.AMAE
4,592

150
615
2182

5047

449,352
EN
1494
ERLA

1, 186
2434
1416
30088
6458
T
2,755

128
414
4412
622

T26

2,212

1,265
2495

127016

2315
505

—  Lli&,
3,936

%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemenis

For the vear ended Soptember 30, 2006

L

Prisfessannil servaces

The charges for professionad services include the following

i respect of auditors services for

Wk 2=
I Rupees in thoasand )

-

- Sranwory andit T5H0 425
Hall yearly review 150 150}
= Certificaiion charges [ 14
< O oF piscket expensis ) i
7 73
35 Distribution and selling costs

Sularies, wiges and other bepefits - mote 35| 287 il
Freight amd foraasding ERAM 45492
Hundling amd distrbwtion 105 1.143
Lavding and undoaling charges fid 200 4437
Sules promsstion expenses Sy 1.2 M
Insufanee i, T 2073

Ohthers S -
TASH1 SH1T0

S Salarics, wages amd other benelits include provisdent fund contribution of Fs 0008 million (2005; Bs 0,086
millon) by the company.

iy L 1
{Bupees in thowsarmd )
3. Ohiber operating expenses

Workers Profin Participation Fund - LT
Worrkers Welfore Fund 572 -
Luss e sale of property, plant amd cquipnsent JaHH)

Impairment losses on:
Availeble for sale investmens:

clussifbed as long term - pole 23,3 L2iM
elssilied ax short temy - misle 2 ) 540171
- Heeldd tas nnkErly ivesimenis = mivie 3R 03,702
Merger expenses -
Social setion Progriim expenses 4071
Met exchange loss 12083
Damations - moke 3,1 L)
{hhers 170
145591

300 Mone of the diregtors and their spouses i any interest in any of the domees.

%

Shakarganj Mills Limited

@

(>




s
= Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yvear ended September 300, 2006

2l 2i0E
{Rupees in thowsand)
37, Chher operating income
Icomie fromm financial mssets
Profit om sale of investments JHE A4 3nnr
- Reealived gain om investments held 1o maturity 1482 2507
Unrealized gain on investments held for trading Tl 24028
Dividend income from:
- related pamics 585 41,225
- ethers 149,703 15,178
Underwriting commission ] o
Laabality written back M5 467
Beturm on bank deposits ]
STA55
Incvane from pon-finascid R T
Scrap sabes 35507
Agricultural incame -node 37,1 | i
Prodin om sale of property, plant and equipment -
. Rental income w
Commission on sale of fertilizer H5
Amortization of deferred income 2413
Uthers i
632
IT.AHT
T Agnicoliual ingome
Ciain arising on changes in fair value £ initial necognition of
Fuir value of biokogical asiets less estimated point-of-sale costs 10024 122,787
Fair value of biological assets harvested bess estimated point of siles cost INT9M AR
15K, 963 167,156
Less: costs of hislogical assets harvested ISESS0 44812

ETTTEN 2344
. Finance cost

Interest ancd mark-up on:

= Long ierm Ninances L | 165051 1,585

- Shont term bosrowings 497,202 ([t

= Workers” profit participation fund 157 412

= Pramee bease 21768 200047

Bank charges, commission and excise duty 10,493 h420

Others __ 208 -1
TOLARY 24T

Bl Thisincludes preferred dividend of Rs 32,805 million (2008: 25,973 million),

“
%
Shukargan) Mills Limied
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2006

39,

Joa

w2

40,

Wl

40.2

200G 2005
{Rupees in thousand )
Taxation
For thee year
= Cument 24,700 28 (0N}
- Deferred LIIT 0 06) 13.538)
(I8 d06) 4467
Prior year
- Current R [ XY
- Deferred 525671 | | (54,146
16T 36:4) (52.146)

(349, 7T0) (27084

I view of the available tag losses, the provision for coment taxation represents the minimum tax due under
section |13 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, Such minimum tax is available for set off against normal
tux lighility that may arise in five suceeeding 1ax vears.

For purposes of cament taxation the tax losses available for carey fosward as at Seplember 30, MW are
estimated approximately at Bs 2971 million (2005: Rs %07 million), incleding assessed fax bosses of Rs 907
million (2K15: R 6238 million ).

Simce the company is in Bosses, the current x provision represents the tas uader section 113 of the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 therefore it is impracticable 1o prepare the tax charge reconciliation for the year,

Restated
200 s

Combined camings per share

Combined basic camings per shang
Prostn for the vear Hinpaes 62T 263 2400600
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

dlwring the yewr Mumbers SRATTHRIN B O0NT 6
Easitings per shire - basic Rupees 1.17 548

Combaned diluted carmngs per share
There is ao dilution of the basie camings per share of Use parent company as the effect of paren company™s
womnmitment to convert |00 preference shares inte 167 ordinary shares of Bs 10 cach is anii-dilufive,

Shakarganj Mills Limsined

&

(

W

i




_ s

e e s

b~

&

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yvear ended Seprember 30, 2006

41.

Cash used in operiting activities

A Lows profin before tasation

Add: Adjustment for:

Depreciation vn property., plant and equipment
Depreciation on leased mesgts
Shisre of loss f {income) lrom associated CompEines.
Amaortizaon of deferred N
Liability written hack
Lawss £ {profinh om sale of property, plant and COApmET
Tmepairmient bosses on investmants
Crarim aon sale of investments
Prowiston against doubiful receivables
Biul debts and sdvances written off
Unrealized gain on investments held for truding
Provision for employees retirement benefin
Davidend income
Fair value gain on recognition of biological assets
Fanee cost

Frofil before working capital changes

Effect om cash Mow dise 1o working capital changes:
{Incrcased in stomes mul spares
{Incresse) in Biglogical assets
{Decrense k in stock-in-trde
Decrease f (increase) in iracde debes

ncreasey in boans, sdvances, prepayments and other receivabiles

(Increase b i invesiments
Increase [ decrease) in rade and ether payables

2 WS
{Rupes in thousamned j
(2R6SITH 210,200

7,006 | [ 143,335 ]

6,218 25,7106

3850 1S58

2418 (20164
1305 =
AT i Ha 0GR

122073 -
T3R5, 384

29,705

ran -
1T Al 424,128
7,592 0555
i 151,288 | {3603

(300035 | (22.344)
T80 | 279.447
HALS20 275273
MEIM 514,563
(23318 |
130, 150
(2200
[FIR [ ,

(23227 {195,820}

- 129, 3 )
K293 (237,205
(#56,125)  (1,550.3060
SI0I300 (10306803

2

Shakarganj Mills Linsited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2006

433

%

Kemuneration of Chiel Exccutive, Directors ind Executives

The aggregate amaunt charged in the financial statements Tor the year for remuneration, including cenain
prcnefits. 1o the Chief Exccutive, full time working directors and executives of the Company is as follows:

Director  Executives i
L1 2M0E 20 HHIS
(Rupees in thousand)  (Rupess in thousand)

Managerial remuneration 9N 1.200 .p30 15.735
Contrabution 1o provident fund. gratuiny
anl pension funds 3l 75 136 70
Prodhuction incentives - - (B -
House rent 45 540 BT 5.5
Utilities W) |20 24031 1,573
Reimbursable expenses 21 2,705 g HOE
(lers - 57 10w [T
1916 4697 4579 27805
Numbeer of persans | | 9 13

The Company also provides some of its execwtives with company maintiined cars.

Agpregate amount charged in the financial statements for the vear for Fee to 8 directors ( 3N05: § directors)
wiis Bs DU (2005: Bs 1600000,

Shakargan) Mills Eimaied
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended September 30, 2006

42 Relbated Party Disclosures
The related partics comprise associated umdertakings, other related companies and key management
personnel. The 4.'1r||1p:m:-' i the nermal course of business carrics ot ransactions with varicus relasied
partics. Amounts due from and due o reluted partics are shown under receivables and payubles and
remumerstion of the key muenagement personnel is disclosed in note 41, Other significant iransactions with
related parties ane as follows:

Zimbis 200
TRupees in thowsand
Relativaship with the compuny  Nature of transactions

1 Associated Undenakings Purchase of goods and services 591 730
Sale of goods and services HFATH 24,040
Share of commaon expenses T2 3083
Lease rentals paid 1.233 312
Dividend income kAl 4,188
Insusare premivm paid - 2.2
Repayment of long term boan - 2190
Finance cost paid - 3

i, Chber related panies Expenses incurned on behalf of the company LETY 14200
Receipt of funds on behalf of the company 154,930 425,837
Payments made wfon behalf of the company 177407 168177
Purchase of marketable securitics 17325 :
Sale of property., plani and equipment 1127 -
Share deposit money given 50,000
Interest froe loan given S A0

iii. Post employment Expense charged in nespect of retirement 11,137 L

benefit plans benefin plans

All transactions with relnted panties have been carried out on commercial terms and conditions.

%

Shakargan) Mills Limited




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yvear ended Seprember 30, 2006

43

%

Capacity and  production

LTI
Ruted crushing capacity -

Cin the basis of 140 days (2005 160 days) M. Tons
Actual cane crushed M. Tons

The low crushing was due to shortage of sugarcane due 1o impact
of frost attack in January 3006 and unsuitable weather conditions

Phistillery
O the basis of 270 days (2005: 270 days) working Liters
Actual production Liters

The low production of ethano] was die 1o shortage of
raw materials and lack of available orders from customers

Pamicle bosind
O the basis of 100 days (2006: 200 days) working Cubic meter
Aciual production Cubic meter

The low production of particle board was due 1w

shortage of bagpgase.
Textile
Capacity (convensd in 205 counts} kgs
Actual prochuction (eonverted in 20k counts) Kgs

The bow production of yarm was due to stoppages in
clectricity supply and shut-ciown of plant for magor
maintenance works,

Tkairy
Capacity Liters per day

Number of emplovees

2006

2, 248000
1288547

43,200 AW N
IT625.6110

KRR
1477

HA99, 253
TRI9.205

120, AHK}

The company employed 2,472 employees as at September 30, 2006 ( 2005: 1,470,

Shokargan] Mills Limited

.

[RCLIRELY
1,324,510

43, 0,000
33245964

6,000
1,584

BBk 63
TH52.9510
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended September 30, 2006

40, Business segpments
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended Sepiember 30, 2006

47,

Financiol assets and liabilitics
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2006

L151)

45

Frnancul nsk mussgensent objectives

The company fimmees its opertions through equity. borrowings mnd managemen of working capital with a
view to maintaining a reasonable mix between the various sources of finnee o minimize risk. Taken us o
whibe, risks asixing from the company's finaneial instramenis is limited s there is no significam EXpOsEre
ter marked risk an respect of such instrements, The Company manages its exposune o fnancial msk i the
following manner:

Concentration of eredin risk

Credit risk represents the accounting boss that would be recogniced ol the reponing date it counter purtics
Failed complercly 1o perform as comracied, The company’s credit risk prmanly aribatable 1o its ide
et wmd it balances ot banks. The credit risk on ligguidd Tunchs is limited because the counter parties ans
baniks with reasomably high eredit ratings. Out of the toal financial assets of Rs 3062 million (20M15:
B A 147 million), the financial assets which are subject o credit risk amount o Rs 3,659 million (2005
R 4,145 million), The company belicves tin it i nal exposed o g or concentration of credit sk g
eaposure is spread over a large number of counter parties in case of wade debis. To MEUKIZE CXPOsure 1o
ercedin risk, the company applics credin limits w its customers.

Currency risk

Currency risk s the risk that the value of & fnancial imsarument will Meciste dise torchanges in foreign
exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due 1o ransactions with
foreign buyers and suppliers. The company believes that it is not exposed o major foreign exchange risk,

Interes rafe risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of o fnancial instroment will fuctiite die o changes in market
interest mtes. The company borrows at fixed and market based mies and as such the risk is mininised,
Significant interest rute risk exposures ane primarily managed by & mix of borrowings at fixed and varihle
imtenest rates and contracting floos amd vap of interest mtes as referred 1o in note 7,

Lspucdity risk

Lequidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter difficulty in mising fumds o meel commilments
associated with financial instruments. The compuny follows an effective cash management and planning
perlicy 1o ensure availability of funds. The wompay alsc sims at psantining Mesibiliy in Tumcling by
keeping commitied credit lines available.

Fair vale of financial s and linbilities
The ciurying values of all fnancinl assets and liabilities reflected in the financial SIXCTeINS G rOxEnKte
their fair values. Fair value is determined on the basis of ohjective evidenee at cach reponing dute.

Diane of sumthorization of issue
These financial satemenis were anthorized for issue o February 03, 2007 by the bowrd of dircctors of the
L"l:ll'llF.ilI'I}'_

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended September 30, 2000

448, Evenis alier the balance sheet daie
The Boand has recommended to issue bonus shares in proportion of Mil (2005: 15) bonus shores for every
HHY opdinary shares held.

S0, Business combination
On September 30, 2006, 10066 shares in Shakargan] Food Products Limited (Formerly A, Fruit Producs
(Privine) Limited) were acquired by Shakarganj Mills Limited resulting in formation of the Shakargan)
Giroup. Details of net assets acquired and gocdwill are as follows:

{Rupess in
theusand)

Purchase consideration (in cash) [ILE]
Fair value of net liahilities acouired (796K}
Cooddwill 1970
The goodwill is aiributable 1o the high amicipated proditability of the acquired business,
The assets and liabilities arising from acquisition are as follows:
Property, plant amd equipment 192252
Capital work in progress 10,039
Intangible assets 10,943
Srores amld sparcs 22,189
Stock in trade 62,255
Trade debis 3514
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables H2.765
Cash amd bank balunces 2
Shire deposit money (IS0}
Long term finances (4000 ARy
Defermed liabilities « gratuity (1. 3030
Shont term borrowangs (7447
Current portion of bong term finances {17 AN
Trade and ather payables (197.547)
Accrued Nnance cost {22 158k
Prowision for taxation (1.326)
Met asset (T

S T carrying value of sssets and linhilities acquired approximate their fuir valees,

%

Shakargang Mills Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2006

1 [renul of subsidiarm
MNume of subsidiary Accounting Percentage Country of
year end of hokfing  incorpomtion
Shakarganj Food Products Limited June 30, 2006 100F% Pakixtan

iFormerly A. M. Fruil Products (Privaie) Limited)

]
-2

Cormresponding loures

Previous year's figures represent that of the parent and the associated companies only as the subsidiary was
acquired during the year.

s bt

Chiefl Executive Chllrmnn-

%

Shakarganj Mills Limited
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Yattern of Sharcholding Form 34
For the year ended September 30, 2006
i ol Sharcholders Sharcholding Todal Shares hedif
From To
243 | 11K TRRT
315 (17 5000 P 125
247 501 (UL 192,392
) 1,001 5 HX) 03,445
4% 2001 [LLXCEAE 345,973
4n L] 150000 S, 5k
2 15001 HLNK) 1550003
I ) 25,0000 232 s
7 25001 ).0H0 IHE HTH
9 ol 15,00 2507
7 35001 EUREL] 253,133
L} 4001 45 150 258,355
i 45,0000 S0, {H) T |
5 001 55,000 264,116
4 55.000 6001, 06H) 2R1530
3 ] 65 0Kp 154,075
4 TOLCH TE 00 2854520
1 T KO TRAID
3 LR ] BE AWK ail13
I H5,000 SHILIMXK HLEIE
3 R S5 W 2TLAR
I Rt 1MW) [ICIXCTH]
r | JLERRIHT | | 015 (W1 2002,1%2
I 105,001 | DRI 10y, b
4 120,001 125 (WK1 2454492
I 130,01 | 15.1H00 131,705 £
| IS0 155,000 (BRI LT -
I 155,001 10, 0XH 15%, 50K
| (AL | JELIEECH [E AR
d L] 195 00N IR0
2 155, (600 DN ELLEELE ]
1 ZIiLKRE 2150000 235
3 215,000 20NKK 54,2010
1 23500 2NN U |
1 245,00 2R NN 2501,0HK)
T g 2750600 RRIRELH
| 293,00 LR TN
| 105 (W1 AN 58T
| RA[FILTT] IR H] A4
| K LT 45,000 RELYTV T
1 435,001 EETITT 436, 713%
[ 445,000 450,000 440747
1 430,000 4550000 451830 2 o
z 455,060 A6 TN WA E &
I 545001 i (L LT Sdin 544
I 553001 S HN) 558 T
I rufL (W1 LLERRLL] sl A6
| A45.0001 RO HAT S
1 5 [RLLIREL ] INLLEEL T
1 [MELNIIT] 1, IS0008 [RELTETT
1 | AU i 1 SEH0NKE 1. 5Wi Wi
F | | SHES (] 2ANHLNEY ERLLITLE]
| 2020000 A NN 2AN23 500
| FAT5000 230, (N0 2 3T, 1N
I 2 50000H0) 2505000 2513,M1
I 26500000 2SN 20812
1 4,055 001 ERTTT ER TN
I 4520, 000 4,525 M) 4.5212007
I 4,645,000 B0 &, 400K2
| 12.070,00H 12, 175000 12071340
1w ST 807

%
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Pattern of Sharcholding
For the vear ended Seprember 30, 2006

%

24
55
26
57
ix
is

Uateguries of Sharcholders

Dirextors. Chiefl Executive (fficer, Their Spowse and Children
CUhind Exrcwtive

My, Aban M. Saloom

IHrectors

Mr. Khalid Bashure

M, Maghar Karim

M, Mubammas) Anwar

Mr. Muhamma Arshad

[Nreeters Spoise and Their Childern
M Abscls Marhor

M Shobwoy A Salecm

M. Tasveor Khals! Bashar

Executivis

Associated Companies, Undertakings & Related Parties
Asian Stock Fund Limited
Crescent Commercial Bank |issited

Salewiy Mutal Fund Limited
The Cresent Textibe Mikls Limied
The Premiber Insurwe Co.of Pakistan Lid

NIT & ICP (Name Wise Detail)
Investmens Corporation of Pakinan Limined
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE is hereby given that the 3th Annual General
Mecting of the Sharcholters of SHAKARGANI MILLS
LIMITED (the “Company”) will be held on Thursday,
249 March 2007 a0 11,30 .m. at Qasr-e-MNoor, 9 2
Main Boulevard, Gulberg-111 Labore to transact the
ﬁlll:w.-ing bugsiness:

Lo Toconfinm the minutes of Extraordinary General
Mecting held on January 20, 2047

I Toreceive, consider and adopt the Asdited
Accounts together with Directors” and Auditor's
feports thereon for the vear ended 30 Seprember
200,

e

Tor nppoimt ausditars and fix their remuneration,

4. Todiscuss any other business with the
rermissson of the Char,

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
Tang Aleem

Company Secretary

Lahore

February 3, 2007

I Partecipation in the Annual CGeneral Mecting

A member entitled to awend and vote at this
meeting may appoint any other member 35 histher
provy to pttend and vore,

The insanement appainting a proxy and the power
of attomey or sdher authority under which it is
signed or 3 notarially atested copy of e power of
atteamiey must be deposated at the Registened Office
of the Company a least 48 hours befone the time of
Meeting,

Members, who have deposited their shares i
Cientral Depository Company of Pakistan Limited,
are being advised to bring their National Identity
Cands mlong with CIC Participant 1D and sceount
mamber gt the meeting venue,

Shakarganj Mills Limited

P2

I asy proies are granted by any such shaschobders,
the same must be accompanied with ameaed
copies of the Matienal Identity Cards of the
grantors and the signatures on ihe proxy form
should be the same as that appearing on the
Mational ldentity Cards.

Bak Clisaire Motice for Ovdinasy Shares

The Share Transfer Books of Ordinary Shares of
the Company will remain closed from 22 March
2007 1o 29 March 2007 (both days inclusive).
Phiysical s fersiCIS Transaction Ids received
in order a1 the Registered Office of the Company
uptas the chise of business on 21 March 2007 will
be considered in time for the e termination of
entitlement of shareholders o atend aml vole at
the mesting.

Bk Closure Notice for Preference Shanes fos
the 2nd Year Ended Seplember 40, N

The Shure Transfer Books of Preference Shares
{Non-Voting ) of the Company will remain closed
for entitlement of 8.5% Preferred Dividend
(R L85 per Prefercnoe Share) From 22 March
20607 to 2% Murch H07 (hath davs inclusive.
Physical wansfersiCDS Transaction 1ds received
in oeder at the Registened Ofice of the Company
upo the close of business on 21 March 2007 will
b considered in time for emtitlement of Prefiermed
Dividend. The Preferred Sharcholders are pol
entitled to attend the meeting

Sharcholders are requested 1o immediately
neily thie change in address, if any,
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